Public Document Pack

22 September 2021
To:

Councillors Critchley, Galley, Hugo, Hunter, M Mitchell, Roberts and R Scott
Ms Gill Brown and Dr Stuart Green, Independent Members

The above Members are requested to attend the:

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Thursday, 30 September 2021 at 6.00 pm
In the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Blackpool

AGENDA
1

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in
doing so state:
(1) the type of interest concerned, either a
(a) personal interest
(b) prejudicial interest
(c) disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI)
and
(2) the nature of the interest concerned
If any Member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting.

2

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 17 JUNE 2021

(Pages 1 - 10)

To agree the minutes of the last meeting of the Audit Committee held on 17 June 2021
as a true and correct record.
3

AUDIT FOLLOW UP - CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION

(Pages 11 - 16)

To consider a progress report on the recommendations made in the internal audit
report of Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) issued on 20 July 2020.

4

INFORMATION COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE DATA PROTECTION AUDIT

(Pages 17 - 30)

To furnish the Audit Committee with a copy of the final executive summary report from
the consensual audit undertaken by the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) in
April 2021.
This audit was in relation to compliance with data protection and freedom of
information legislation.
5

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER - UNSUSTAINABLE LOCAL ECONOMY AND INCREASED
DEPRIVATION
(Pages 31 - 50)
To consider the controls being implemented to manage the strategic risk relating to the
local economy.

6

RISK SERVICES QUARTER ONE REPORT

(Pages 51 - 76)

To provide the Audit Committee with a summary of the work completed by Risk
Services in quarter one of the 2021/2022 financial year.
7

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/2021

(Pages 77 - 108)

To provide the Audit Committee with the opportunity to review and approve the
Annual Governance Statement for 2020/2021.
8

DELOITTE VALUE FOR MONEY ARRANGEMENTS REQUEST LIST

(Pages 109 - 128)

To consider the management response to Deloitte’s Value for Money arrangements
request list.
9

PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

(Pages 129 - 140)

To consider adopting a Partnership Governance Framework, as recommended in the
Annual Governance Statement Action Plan and at the meeting of the Committee on 29
April 2021 where consideration was given to a local Code of Corporate Governance.
10

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/2021

(Pages 141 - 182)

To consider Deloitte’s External Audit Plan 2020/2021.
11

EXTERNAL ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL AUDIT

(Pages 183 - 194)

To provide the outcome of the external assessment to determine whether the internal
audit team conforms to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
12

AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTION TRACKER
To consider the Committee’s updated Action Tracker.

(Pages 195 - 198)

13

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
To note the date and time of the next meeting of the Committee as 11 November 2021,
commencing at 6pm.

Venue information:
First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building.
Face masks must be worn when moving throughout the building. Please also maintain social
distancing.
Other information:
For queries regarding this agenda please contact Elaine Ireland, Democratic Governance Senior
Adviser, Tel: 01253 477255, e-mail elaine.ireland@blackpool.gov.uk
Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - THURSDAY, 17 JUNE 2021

Present:
Councillor Galley (in the Chair)
Councillors
Burdess
Critchley

Hunter
Roberts

R Scott

The following Committee members whilst not present in the room and not able to vote, joined
and participated in the meeting virtually:
Councillor M Mitchell
Dr Green, Independent Co-opted Member
The following were in attendance virtually:
Mr Neil Jack, Chief Executive
Mr John Blackledge, Director of Community and Environmental Services
Ms Alex Bracken, Housing Enforcement Manager (Items 1-5 only)
Mr Jez Evans, Head of Waste and Environmental Operations (Items 1-4 only)
Ms Vicky Gent, Director of Children’s Services
Mrs Tracy Greenhalgh, Head of Audit and Risk
Mr Antony Lockley, Director of Strategy and Assistant Chief Executive
Mrs Lynne Rowbottom, Transport Manager (Items 1-4 only)
Mr Steve Thompson, Director of Resources
Mr Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships
Mr Nick Rayner, Deloitte
Ms Nicola Wright, Deloitte
Councillor Mrs Callow JP, Chair of the Scrutiny Leadership Board
Mrs Elaine Ireland, Senior Democratic Governance Adviser (present in the room)
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Ms Gill Brown, Independent Co-opted
Member.
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Burdess declared a personal interest in relation to agenda items 5 ‘Strategic Risk
Register – Sustainability of the Council’ and 6 ‘Management Response to the External
Auditor’s Report to Those Charged with Governance (ISA 260)’ due to her position as
Council appointed Non-Executive Director on the Blackpool Transport Services Limited
Board. She further advised that should the financial details relating to the company be

Page 1

MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - THURSDAY, 17 JUNE 2021
discussed in detail within these items, she would declare a prejudicial interest and leave the
meeting for the duration of such discussions.
Councillor Roberts declared a personal interest in relation to agenda items 5 ‘Strategic Risk
Register – Sustainability of the Council’ and 6 ‘Management Response to the External
Auditor’s Report to Those Charged with Governance (ISA 260)’ due to his position as Council
appointed Non-Executive Director on the Blackpool Airport Operations Limited Board. He
further advised that should the financial details relating to the company be discussed in
detail within these items, he would declare a prejudicial interest and leave the meeting for
the duration of such discussions.
Councillor Galley declared a personal interest in relation to agenda items 5 ‘Strategic Risk
Register – Sustainability of the Council’ and 6 ‘Management Response to the External
Auditor’s Report to Those Charged with Governance (ISA 260)’ due to his position as Council
appointed Non-Executive Director on the Blackpool Transport Services Limited Board and
the Blackpool Entertainment Company Limited Board. He further advised that should the
financial details relating to these companies be discussed in detail within these items, he
would declare a prejudicial interest and leave the meeting for the duration of such
discussions.
Councillor Critchley declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 5 ‘Strategic Risk
Register – Sustainability of the Council’ due to her position of employment at a provider of
sheltered housing.
Councillor R Scott declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 5 ‘Strategic Risk
Register – Sustainability of the Council’ due to his position as a Public Governor on the
Blackpool Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust.
3 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 29 APRIL 2021
The Committee agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2021 be signed by
the Chairman as a true and correct record.
4 AUDIT FOLLOW UP - VEHICLE OPERATOR'S LICENCE
Mr Jez Evans, Head of Waste and Environmental Operations presented a progress report on
the recommendations made following the internal audit review of the Vehicle Operator’s
Licence which had been completed in November 2020.
The Committee considered the action plan of agreed recommendations and Mr Evans
reported that substantial progress had been made in addressing the issues highlighted by
the audit. In relation to recommendation R4 ‘The Transport Manager’s current
responsibilities should be reviewed to ensure statutory hours of work as stipulated by the
Traffic Commissioner are met,’ Mr Evans reported that a temporary post had been
established and a further new post would be created in Integrated Transport to ensure that
the Transport Manager resumed her statutory 30 hours per week in her role as Vehicle
Operator Licence holder. He added that the decision had been taken to make the temporary

Page 2

MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - THURSDAY, 17 JUNE 2021
team leader position a permanent post with effect from September 2021 to further assist
the Transport Manager to focus on meeting compliance requirements.
The Committee questioned what the anticipated impact of the Blackpool Waste Company
(Enveco) transfer of services would have on service delivery, in particular in relation to
recommendation R1 ‘The organisational chart showing the levels of communications and
controls over the two operating sites should be updated to reflect the current officers in
post.’ Mr Evans advised that the transfer of services to Enveco would result in a fifty per
cent reduction of the Council’s Operator’s Licence workload as vehicles were transferred to
the waste company. In response to the Committee’s concerns that penalty points on drivers’
licences were not being recorded as part of the licence checking process, Mr Evans clarified
that whilst all drivers’ licences were routinely checked, the audit had identified an issue with
regards to a potential delay in the Transport Manager contacting drivers in cases where they
had failed to provide their licence for inspection. As a result, Service Managers had been
reminded of their responsibilities in ensuring that team members had presented their
drivers’ licences in a timely manner.
Mr Evans informed the Committee of the beneficial impact of the audit as the review had
assisted in highlighting the statutory requirement for the Transport Manager to ensure 30
hours per week were dedicated to her role as holder of the Vehicle Operator’s Licence and
the resulting addressing of staff capacity had alleviated the additional pressures
experienced by the team.
Mr John Blackledge, Director of Community and Environmental Services reported that the
audit had been requested specifically to assist in identifying any capacity needs across the
team and that he was confident that the resulting restructuring of the service would result
in all compliance issues being successfully managed going forward.
The Committee noted the beneficial utilisation of internal audit to assist in addressing
identified concerns and the department’s acceptance and positive response to the resulting
recommendations.
[Mr Evans and Mrs Rowbottom left the meeting on conclusion of this item.]
5 CENTRAL SELECTIVE LICENSING SCHEME UPDATE
The Committee received a progress update on the Central Selective Licensing Scheme and
associated Housing Enforcement actions aimed at improving and regulating the private
rented sector. Ms Alex Bracken, Housing Enforcement Manager provided an overview of the
scheme, informing the Committee that Selective Licensing was a discretionary licensing
scheme covering those privately rented properties which were not covered by mandatory or
additional licensing. Selective Licensing was intended to address the impact of poor quality
privately rented properties, lack of management by landlords and to reduce levels of antisocial behaviour. Ms Bracken explained that as Blackpool already had existing licensing
schemes operating in 2018, the Council required permission from the Secretary of State to
introduce the new Selective Licensing Scheme in the Central area of the town. This had been
approved in December 2018 and came into force on 26 March 2019. Committee members

Page 3

MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - THURSDAY, 17 JUNE 2021
were told that the Scheme applied to the area which formed part of Talbot, Brunswick and
Bloomfield wards and that it would cease to have effect on 25 March 2024. Ms Bracken
advised that the Central Additional Licensing Scheme would cease to have effect in July
2021, with 339 Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) currently being licensed under this
Scheme.
Ms Bracken outlined the key facts of the Central Selective Licensing Scheme, informing the
Committee that 1712 properties had been licensed, with fees to the sum of £947,890 having
been collected. Committee members were informed that the cost of a licence was £775
(£542 with 30 per cent discount) for a single occupancy property, with multiple units up to
two costing £1,090 (£775 with 30 per cent discount) and £68 for every additional unit over
two. To date, 1422 landlords had applied for the Blackpool Standards which allowed for a 30
per cent reduction of the cost of a licence. In terms of enforcement, Ms Bracken reported
eight prosecution cases for failure to license had been pursued and three civil penalties for
failure to license in the Central Selective Licensing area had resulted in fines of £2500 each.
She explained that a civil penalty was an alternative to a prosecution case and resulted in a
fine that would be paid to the Council. The Committee was informed that other
prosecutions and civil penalty cases had continued across Blackpool regarding breaches of
enforcement notices and HMO management regulations, with a recent prosecution case in
the magistrate’s court resulting in a fine of £24,121.
Ms Bracken reported that Blackpool had received funding from central government as one
of five areas in the country to contribute to a national pilot looking at how far enforcement
could be taken in respect of regulating the supported housing sector and whether
improvements could be made. The new scheme brought in officers from other areas such as
Social Services, Housing Benefits, Corporate Fraud, Housing Enforcement, Fire Service and
Planning Enforcement and provided a means for a multi-agency approach to look at how
accommodation could be improved. The Committee was informed that the pilot would run
from November 2020 to December 2021 with the aim of reviewing all the supported
accommodation provision in Blackpool during that period.
The Committee was informed that since the commencement of the Central Selective
Licensing Scheme in March 2019, the Housing Enforcement Team had continued to
undertake full Housing, Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS) assessments in response
to poor housing conditions. Ms Bracken identified that 80 per cent of those assessments
undertaken had involved a deficiency in heating provisions and the Housing Enforcement
Team was assisting vulnerable tenants to deal with fuel poverty by engaging with energy
companies, working directly with landlords and involving support agencies. The number of
chargeable enforcement notices had increased over the last five years, with Ms Bracken
explaining that an enforcement notice was charged at £430, with the numbers having
increased to the highest level during the pandemic across 2020/2021 at 48 notices
compared to 27 in 2016/2017.
Committee members were informed that the Selective Licensing Scheme had been
introduced in the Central area in order to deal with high levels of anti-social behaviour. Antisocial behaviour (ASB) officers were funded by the scheme to deal proactively with reducing
anti-social behaviour and to engage with landlords, communities and tenants. Ms Bracken

Page 4

MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - THURSDAY, 17 JUNE 2021
noted that high levels of multi-agency work with Public Protection Officers, the Police and
Lancashire Fire and Rescue Services had continued throughout the pandemic in the Central
area to ensure anti-social behaviour and Covid-19 regulations were being effectively
enforced.
The Committee questioned whether the scheme offered good value for money for landlords
and queried whether the high level of enforcement indicated that the scheme was perhaps
not working effectively. Ms Bracken clarified that the Selective Licensing Scheme operated
in addition to the usual enforcement processes and had the specific aim of addressing and
reducing incidences of anti-social behaviour and ensuring effective management of
properties by landlords. In terms of offering value for money, Ms Bracken highlighted that
the Licensing Scheme included the services of an ASB officer who provided support in
dealing with tenants engaging in anti-social behaviour. The ASB officer would work
proactively with landlords as well as targeting ineffective landlords who were not
adequately managing their properties and tenants. The Scheme also included subsidised
training for landlords and advice regarding tackling fuel poverty and encouraging more
efficient fuel use.
In response to a question on the future of the Central Selective Licensing Scheme, Ms
Bracken advised that the Scheme would continue until 2024 and that a feasibility study was
planned in order to consider the extension of the Scheme beyond that date.
The Committee discussed the benefits of maintaining a central database to identify those
properties which had evidenced compliance with fire and health and safety regulations,
with Ms Bracken advising that both announced and unannounced visits occurred to check
that regulation standards were being met. She added that a full database was maintained
and that close working with the fire service had been established.
Ms Bracken noted that Blackpool Council was consistently proactive with regards to
enforcement and used all available tools and legislation, up to and including prosecution
where necessary to ensure a clear message was being communicated to landlords across
the town.
The Committee thanked Ms Bracken for attending and extended praise to her team for all
their efforts.
[Ms Bracken left the meeting on conclusion of this item.]
6 STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER - SUSTAINABILITY OF THE COUNCIL
The Committee considered a progress report outlining the individual risks identified within
the Strategic Risk – Sustainability of the Council. Consideration was given to the sub-risk
‘Insufficient funding to deliver services,’ with Mr Steve Thompson, Director of Resources
providing an update. He reported that budget monitoring had taken place from month 0,
which included forecasting the impact that the pandemic would have on the Council’s
financial position. The Committee heard that the residual impact of the pandemic continued
to pose a risk, with government funding having been provided for the first quarter of the

Page 5

MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - THURSDAY, 17 JUNE 2021
financial year. Mr Thompson advised that a refresh of the Medium Term Financial
Sustainability Strategy would be undertaken during the year, together with an updated
Medium Term Financial Plan of at least five years’ horizon. In addition, the suite of income
and debt collection strategies would be reviewed over the year.
Mr Thompson informed the Committee that a restructure of the Council’s accountancy
department was underway in order to refocus resources to meet reprioritised demands
such as corporate finance, wholly owned companies and capital expenditure. He advised
that the Council would receive a share of the £15 million allocated funding to address the
recommendations from the Redmond Review, aimed at addressing capacity issues. With
reference to the departmental restructure, the Committee queried whether additional
resources would be required to meet the demands of the current workload. Mr Thompson
responded by advising that a risk management approach would be taken to achieve a
reprioritisation and redistribution of workload across existing staffing levels and to further
develop existing talent within the team.
The Committee questioned whether the current spending ratio of approximately 79 per
cent of the Council’s budget to social care expenditure was sustainable. Mr Thompson
acknowledged social care expenditure as an area of potential concern, not just in Blackpool
but nationally and advised that the Directors of Children’s and Adult’s Services were
monitoring the situation.
Mr Neil Jack, Chief Executive provided an update in relation to the sub-risk ‘Insufficient
central government funding for Social Care,’ in relation to Adult’s Social Care. Mr Jack
reported that the Covid-19 pandemic had resulted in significant operational and financial
challenges for adult social care providers and that the Council had put in place a range of
financial and other support measures during the last twelve months which continued to
operate subject to a review at the end of June 2021. He acknowledged that there was
uncertainty with regards to the continuation of funding post-June despite the fact that
Covid-related costs would continue beyond this point. Mr Jack assured the Committee that
the Council would continue to raise awareness of the issues affecting the care sector with
central government and to lobby for additional resources through its work with the Local
Resilience Forum and other bodies.
The Committee asked how value for money could be assured from social care providers,
with Mr Jack clarifying that with regards to value for money there were other considerations
aside from the financial cost of a service. He informed the Committee that the Council’s
commissioning team closely monitored the provision and delivery of care services to ensure
that the necessary level of care was being provided on a case-by-case basis whilst also
working with providers to review individual care packages to develop bespoke care as
required.
In response to the Committee’s question over whether future demographic trends had been
reviewed in order to consider the use of invest to save schemes, Mr Jack reported that the
Council was working with providers to consider investing to save initiatives and cited the
example of the investment in Children’s Social Care to develop a more therapeutic fostering
service to reduce the need for residential placements for children. He noted that such

Page 6

MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - THURSDAY, 17 JUNE 2021
initiatives not only brought longer term financial benefits but also resulted in better
outcomes for Blackpool’s children.
The Committee sought assurance that the Council was receiving a consistent level of
provision from providers of specialist social care services, particularly in light of the fact that
such providers were charging increasingly high amounts to the Council. Mr Jack advised that
the government’s Fair Funding Review, an independent review of children’s social care, had
been launched by the Department for Education on 1 March 2021 and that the summary
findings of which would be provided to local authorities imminently. Mr Jack informed the
Committee that in order to closely match the needs of each child to the correct service and
for the best price, a team assessed each placement and ran comparisons across alternative
provisions available across the market. The commissioning team, led by Ms Kate Aldridge,
Head of Delivery and Performance closely monitored the services provided to ensure
adequate delivery of the agreed care packages.
Mr Thompson provided an update in relation to the sub-risk ‘The Council’s wholly owned
companies are no longer financially viable,’ explaining that the financial position across all
the Council’s companies had been consolidated in order to gain a full understanding of the
overall exposure of the Council. He noted the introduction of the Shareholder Committee of
the Executive which was now in place to hold companies to account and to streamline the
accountability of the elected member role with the wholly owned companies. The
Shareholder Committee consisted of the Leader, Deputy Leader and a member of the
opposition and would have decision-making powers. Mr Thompson highlighted the robust
financial reporting mechanisms and governance arrangements in place across all the
companies but acknowledged that uncertainty remained around the future restrictions and
potential losses as a result of the ongoing pandemic.
The Committee sought assurance that adequate controls were in place to avoid the
governance failings as identified at a number of other local authorities via recent public
interest reports. Mr Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships advised that the
lessons learnt from the errors of other local authorities would be used to strengthen the
robust processes in place at Blackpool. Mr Towers identified that a good practice that
operated currently at Blackpool which had been an issue in other authorities was the
recruitment of experienced and skilled independent non-executive directors and a system of
non-executive director appraisals and continued professional development across each
company. In addition, he noted that recovery plans were in place for each company which
had been agreed in conjunction with the Council and which were closely monitored to
ensure continued achievability.
Mr Antony Lockley, Director of Strategy and Assistant Chief Executive provided an update in
relation to the sub-risk ‘The Council fails to reduce carbon emissions and proactively take
action to address the climate emergency.’ He advised that the Council was on track to
produce and publish its route map to net zero by the end of this year and had already
completed a number of key contributions to the plan. Mr Lockley reported that an internal
audit was planned for later this financial year aimed at assessing progress against the
climate change agenda as well as the Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny

Page 7

MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - THURSDAY, 17 JUNE 2021
Committee playing an active role in monitoring progress and receiving updates on key
developments.
Mr Lockley highlighted a number of actions which had been implemented across the Council
to assist in the reduction of emissions, work towards changing organisational culture,
engage the town and influence national policy. Such actions included the recruitment of
additional Council officers to work on addressing climate change obligations as well as
working closely with neighbouring local authorities to action change.
The Committee questioned whether the achievement of net neutrality posed any risk to the
delivery of services for example by any of the Council’s wholly owned companies. In
response Mr Lockley reported that a managed transition to net zero carbon by 2030 would
be a potential source of growth and employment opportunities for the town.
When asked about any barriers faced by the Council in achieving the target, Mr Lockley
acknowledged that addressing the climate emergency was a big challenge but one that
needed to be tackled. He raised technological limitations and price as current hurdles but
predicted that as advancements were made, the price would reduce to make technology
more affordable. In response to a query around congestion charges, Mr Jack assured the
Committee that despite a number of larger local authorities implementing such charges
across their towns and cities, Blackpool would not be considering this as an option. He
reported that the focus would instead be on implementing improvements to the public
transport network to encourage a reduction in the use of private vehicles.
7 MANAGEMENT RESPONSE TO THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE (ISA 260)
The Committee considered the management response to Deloitte’s Governance Report for
2019/2020 as presented by Mr Steve Thompson, Director of Resources. Ms Nicola Wright,
Deloitte noted the Council’s encouraging responses and advised that a follow up of
compliance implementation would be included as part of the audit process for the
2020/2021 accounts.
The Committee asked whether in relation to long term debtor recoverability there would be
an opportunity to establish a debt profile and target investment to other areas of
Blackpool’s economy. Mr Thompson advised that whilst the debt profile would require a
refresh in response to the impact of the pandemic, once this had been undertaken he would
provide a copy to Committee members.
When questioned on whether the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) had the capacity to
research new ideas to identify savings or investments in their individual directorates, Mr
Thompson advised that the requisite processes were in place to allow this to happen and
that the allocation of capacity would be addressed as part of the imminent CLT ‘Away Day’.
Furthermore, Mr Jack reported that transformation capacity existed within Mr Lockley’s
directorate which worked to support departments to identify improved ways of working and
to assist transformation.

Page 8

MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - THURSDAY, 17 JUNE 2021
The Committee asked Deloitte when the 2019/2020 accounts could be expected to be
signed off, with Ms Wright agreeing to a deadline of 5 July 2021.
8 AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTION TRACKER
The Committee considered the updated Action Tracker, noting that no actions were due for
further consideration at this time. The Chair requested that the noted meeting between Ms
Wright and Mr Rayner from Deloitte with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Audit Committee
and the Director of Resources to discuss future working relationships be scheduled to take
place in the near future.
9 DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The date of the next meeting of the Committee was noted as 30 September 2021,
commencing at 6pm.

Chairman
(The meeting ended at 8.10pm)
Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact:
Elaine Ireland, Senior Democratic Governance Adviser
Tel: 01253 477255
E-mail: elaine.ireland@blackpool.gov.uk

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
Report to:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Relevant Officers:

Tim Coglan, Head of Public Protection
John Blackledge, Director of Community and Environmental
Services

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2021

AUDIT FOLLOW UP – CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To consider a progress report on the recommendations made in the internal audit report of Closed
Circuit Television (CCTV) issued on 20 July 2020.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To consider the actions being implemented to address the audit recommendations relating to CCTV.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

To enable the Audit Committee to consider an update and progress report on the audit
recommendations.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

None.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The relevant Council priority is:


Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience.

6.0

Background information

6.1

At its meeting in April 2020, the Audit Committee agreed to invite Heads of Service to the meeting to
provide an update in relation to internal audit recommendation implementation.

6.2

The report being considered at this meeting relates to the CCTV audit with the scope and assurance
statement as follows:

Page 11

6.3

Scope
The scope of the audit was to review the current position in terms of provision of CCTV cameras,
whether they are operational and being correctly charged for. The robustness of the new CCTV
proposal was also considered.
Assurance Statement
Internal Audit consider the controls in place to be inadequate with a number of material risks
identified and significant improvement required. In particular, main concerns relate to the provision
of cameras previously purchased and maintained via ward budgets, the robustness of the inventory
and the need to obtain procurement advice for the CCTV development project. A number of
recommendations have been made to help improve the controls in these and other areas.

6.4

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 3(a) - Internal Audit Recommendations and Agreed Actions.

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

The controls being implemented will be done so within current budget constraints.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

Risks need to be effectively managed in order to comply with relevant legislation.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

To enable the Audit Committee to gain assurance that risks are being effectively managed.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

None.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

None.

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

The progress report has been prepared in conjunction with the relevant Heads of Service and Chief
Officers.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

Page 12

No

APPENDIX 3(a)

Agreed Action Plan

Recommendation

Priority

Page 13

R1 The future requirement and funding for
the provision of the cameras originally
purchased from Ward budgets should be
established so that an exercise to
remove or replace redundant/nonfunctioning equipment can be
undertaken as appropriate.

1

R2 A full assessment of the condition of all
CCTV signage should be undertaken.
Signs identified as being worn should
then be replaced.

2

R3 Steps should be taken to provide an
updated CCTV inventory to Electricity
North West in order to ensure that the
risk of penalties is removed. An exercise
to undertake a full survey of the current
provision should be undertaken in order
to inform the inventory.

1

Agreed Action

Agreed.

Agreed. All signs will
need to be updated as
part of the upgrade but
the ones which are
worn need to be
replaced regardless.
Agreed. CCTV Manager
to meet with the
Service Manager for
Energy and
Sustainability to discuss
a way forward to
resolve this issue. If a
full survey is required
this could take some
time.

Responsible
officer

Target Date

Progress

CCTV
Manager

January
2021

Review of cameras
outside of the core
system is detailed in
the Executive Report
of 13th September
and will take place
over the next 12
months.

CCTV
Manager

January
2021

All signage will be
replaced as part of
the core system
upgrade.

CCTV
Manager /
CCTV
Supervising
Manager

January
2021

All relevant
information was sent
to Electricity North
West early 2020,
with the inventory
up to date in relation
to all cameras
managed by the
service.

Page 14

Recommendation

Priority

Agreed Action

Responsible
officer

Target Date

Progress

R4 Consideration should be given as to
whether it would be appropriate to
explore the possibility of establishing
further agreements to incorporate the
maintenance of additional provision on
Council buildings.

3

Agreed.

CCTV
Manager /
CCTV
Supervising
Manager

October
2020

Ongoing dialogue
with Property
Services and service
areas regarding
revenue
consequences of
their cameras.

R5 Advice from the Procurement Team
regarding the tender of all aspects of the
CCTV project should be sought as soon
as possible.

1

Agreed. This meeting
will go ahead as soon as
possible.

CCTV
Manager

R6 An appropriately experienced dedicated
project manager should be resourced to
ensure that the CCTV project is
effectively managed.

2

Agreed. An allocation of
£70k has been
incorporated in the
project budget for
project management.
The service will look to
appoint a project
manager once the
funding becomes
available.

CCTV
Manager/
Director for
Community
and
Environmental
Services

Completed.
August 2020

Two months
from the
date of
funding
provision.

The £70k for project
management has
been included in the
CCTV item to the
Executive on 13th
September 2021.

Recommendation

Priority

Agreed Action

Responsible
officer

Target Date

Progress

Page 15

R7 Advice from the Information Governance
Team should be taken regarding a Data
Protection Impact Assessment which
incorporates that changes to be made to
the CCTV provision as part of the project.

2

Agreed.

CCTV
Manager/
Director for
Community
and
Environmental
Services

One month
from the
date that
funding is
provided.

Information
Governance Team
have been a part of
the development of
the CCTV proposals
going forward and
inputted into future
Data Protection
Impact Assessments.

R8 The possibility of providing neighbouring
local authorities with CCTV provision
should be explored so that the potential
to provide additional income to the
Blackpool Council CCTV service can be
considered.

3

Agreed. This may need
discussion at a senior
level.

Director for
Community
and
Environmental
Services

October
2020

This will be taken
forward once the
new CCTV system
and control room is
up and operational.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Report to:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer:

Jonathan Pickup, Head of Information Governance
(Data Protection Officer)

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2021

INFORMATION COMMISSIONER’S OFFICE DATA PROTECTION AUDIT
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To furnish the Audit Committee with a copy of the final executive summary report from the
consensual audit undertaken by the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) in April 2021. This audit
was in relation to compliance with data protection and freedom of information legislation.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To note and acknowledge the ‘high’ assurance ratings across the three scope areas covered as part of
the consensual audit. These areas consisted of governance and accountability, information security
(security of personal data) and freedom of information.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

To provide the Audit Committee with an oversight of and an opportunity to scrutinise the audit
report.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

Not applicable, to note and acknowledge only.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The audit by the Information Commissioner’s Office is relevant to all Council priorities.

6.0

Background information

6.1

The Information Commissioner’s Office is responsible for enforcing and promoting compliance with
data protection and freedom of information legislation in the UK.

6.2

Blackpool Council undertook a consensual audit by the ICO of its processing of personal data in April
2021. The primary purpose of the audit was to provide the ICO and Blackpool Council with an

Page 17

independent opinion of the extent to which the Council (within the scope of the agreed audit) is
complying with data protection legislation and highlight any areas of risk to compliance.
6.3

The audit assessed the risk of non-compliance with data protection legislation, the utilisation of ICO
guidance and good practice notes and the effectiveness of data protection activities with specific
reference to the agreed scope. The three areas of scope were governance and accountability,
information security (security of personal data) and freedom of information.

6.4

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 4(a) - Blackpool Council – ICO Final Executive Summary Audit Report – April 2021 (published
https://ico.org.uk/action-weve-taken/audits-and-overview-reports/).

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

None.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

Article 58(1) of the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) states that the Information
Commissioner’s Office has the power to carry out investigations in the form of data protection audits.
Section 129 of the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA 18) also provides provision to carry out consensual
audits. Additionally Section 146 of the DPA 18 allows the ICO, through a written ‘assessment notice’,
to carry out an assessment of compliance with the data protection legislation.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

Failure to comply with the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) and Data Protection Act
2018 (DPA 18) can result in harm and distress being inflicted on individuals; as well as resulting in
financial and reputational damage against the Council.

10.2

The Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) has a range of enforcement powers including
enforcement notices, prosecutions and monetary penalties of up to £20 million or four per cent of
turnover (whichever is higher). As well as regulatory action, the UK GDPR stipulates that any person
who has suffered material or non-material damage as a result of an infringement of this Regulation
shall have the right to seek compensation.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

None.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

None.

Page 18

No

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

None.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

Blackpool Council – ICO Final Full Audit Report – April 2021.

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 4(a)

Blackpool Council
Page 21

Data protection audit report
April 2021

Executive summary
Audit Methodology

Page 22

The Information Commissioner is responsible for enforcing and promoting compliance with the General Data Protection
Regulation (GDPR), the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA18) and other data protection legislation. Section 146 of the DPA18
provides the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) with the power to conduct compulsory audits through the issue of
assessment notices. Section 129 of the DPA18 allows the ICO to carry out consensual audits. The ICO sees auditing as a
constructive process with real benefits for controllers and so aims to establish a participative approach.
Blackpool Council (BC) agreed to a consensual audit by the ICO of its processing of personal data. An introductory telephone
meeting was held on 22 February 2021 with representatives of BC to discuss the scope of the audit.
The purpose of the audit is to provide the Information Commissioner and BC with an independent assurance of the extent to
which BC, within the scope of this agreed audit, is complying with data protection legislation.

Blackpool Council - ICO Data Protection Audit Report – April 2021

It was agreed that the audit would focus on the following area(s):
Scope Area
Governance & Accountability

Information Security (Security
of Personal Data)
Freedom of Information (FOI)

Description
The extent to which information governance accountability, policies and procedures,
performance measurement controls, and reporting mechanisms to monitor data
protection compliance to both the GDPR and national data protection legislation are in
place and in operation throughout the organisation.
There are appropriate technical and organisational measures in place to ensure the
confidentiality, integrity and availability of manually and electronically processed personal
data.
The extent to which FOI accountability, policies and procedures, performance
measurement controls, and reporting mechanisms to monitor compliance are in place and
in operation throughout the organisation.

Page 23

Audits are conducted following the Information Commissioner’s data protection audit methodology. The key elements of this
are normally a desk-based review of selected policies and procedures, on-site visits including interviews with selected staff,
and an inspection of selected records.
However, due to the outbreak of Covid-19, and the resulting restrictions on travel, this methodology was no longer
appropriate. Therefore, BC agreed to continue with the audit on a remote basis. A desk based review of selected policies and
procedures and remote telephone interviews were conducted from 20 April 2021 to 22 April 2021. The ICO would like to
thank BC for its flexibility and commitment to the audit during difficult and challenging circumstances.
Where weaknesses were identified recommendations have been made, primarily around enhancing existing processes to
facilitate compliance with data protection legislation. In order to assist BC in implementing the recommendations each has
been assigned a priority rating based upon the risks that they are intended to address. The ratings are assigned based upon
the ICO’s assessment of the risks involved. BC’s priorities and risk appetite may vary and, therefore, they should undertake
their own assessments of the risks identified.

Blackpool Council - ICO Data Protection Audit Report – April 2021

Audit Summary*
Audit Scope Area

Assurance
Rating

Page 24

Governance & Accountability

High

Freedom of Information

High

Information Security

High

Overall Opinion
There is a high level of assurance that processes and procedures
are in place and are delivering data protection compliance. The
audit has identified only limited scope for improvement in existing
arrangements and as such it is not anticipated that significant
further action is required to reduce the risk of non-compliance
with data protection legislation.
There is a high level of assurance that processes and procedures
are in place and are delivering data protection compliance. The
audit has identified only limited scope for improvement in existing
arrangements and as such it is not anticipated that significant
further action is required to reduce the risk of non-compliance
with data protection legislation.
There is a high level of assurance that processes and procedures
are in place and are delivering data protection compliance. The
audit has identified only limited scope for improvement in existing
arrangements and as such it is not anticipated that significant
further action is required to reduce the risk of non-compliance
with data protection legislation.

*The assurance ratings above are reflective of the remote audit methodology deployed at this time and the rating may not necessarily represent a comprehensive
assessment of compliance.

Blackpool Council - ICO Data Protection Audit Report – April 2021

Priority Recommendations

Page 25
Blackpool Council - ICO Data Protection Audit Report – April 2021

Areas for Improvement
Document the procedure used to authorise the use of exemptions or exceptions and ensure the authorisations are recorded.
Include key elements of FOI/EIR legislation and internal requirements in induction training to be delivered to all staff.
Include key FOI/EIR elements in IG refresher training to ensure that staff knowledge and awareness is maintained.
Take action to ensure that the IG team has sufficient resources proportionate to the number and complexity of SAR requests
it receives.
Begin generating KPIs for its handling of physical and electronic records as soon as possible, including what percentage of
records are destroyed in line with the corporate retention schedule.

Page 26

Document the requirement to review and update the ROPA on a routine basis within the ROPA document and the DPIA and
change management documentation.
Review service level privacy notices to ensure they all follow BC's template format.
Ensure that all staff regularly update their knowledge and awareness through planned mandatory IS training, helping BC to
remain compliant with legislation.

Blackpool Council - ICO Data Protection Audit Report – April 2021

Appendices
Appendix One – Recommendation Priority Ratings Descriptions

Urgent Priority Recommendations These recommendations are intended to address risks which represent clear and immediate risks to the
data controller’s ability to comply with the requirements of data protection legislation.

Page 27

High Priority Recommendations These recommendations address risks which should be tackled at the earliest opportunity to mitigate
the chances of a breach of data protection legislation.
Medium Priority Recommendations These recommendations address medium level risks which can be tackled over a longer timeframe or
where some mitigating controls are already in place but could be enhanced.
Low Priority Recommendations –
These recommendations represent enhancements to existing controls to ensure low level risks are fully
mitigated or where we are recommending that the data controller sees existing plans through to
completion.

Blackpool Council - ICO Data Protection Audit Report – April 2021

Credits
ICO Audit Team
ICO
ICO
ICO
ICO

Team Manager – Lauren Sherratt
Engagement Lead Auditor – James Donnelly
Lead Auditor – Lawrence Way
Lead Auditor – Eve Wright

Page 28

Thanks
The ICO would like to thank Jonathan Pickup and Anthony Doyle for their help in the audit engagement.

Distribution List
This report is for the attention of Jonathan Pickup, Data Protection Officer.

Blackpool Council - ICO Data Protection Audit Report – April 2021

Disclaimer
The matters arising in this report are only those that came to our attention during the course of the audit and are not
necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the areas requiring improvement.
The responsibility for ensuring that there are adequate risk management, governance and internal control arrangements in
place rest with the management of Blackpool Council.
We take all reasonable care to ensure that our audit report is fair and accurate but cannot accept any liability to any person
or organisation, including any third party, for any loss or damage suffered or costs incurred by it arising out of, or in
connection with, the use of this report, however such loss or damage is caused. We cannot accept liability for loss
occasioned to any person or organisation, including any third party, acting or refraining from acting as a result of any
information contained in this report.

Page 29

This report is an exception report and is solely for the use of Blackpool Council. The scope areas and controls covered by the
audit have been tailored to Blackpool Council and, as a result, the audit report is not intended to be used in comparison with
other ICO audit reports.

Blackpool Council - ICO Data Protection Audit Report – April 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Report to:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Relevant Officers:

John Blackledge, Director of Community and Environmental
Services
Alan Cavill, Director of Communications and Regeneration
Vicky Gent, Director of Children’s Services
Antony Lockley, Director of Strategy and Performance

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2021

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER – UNSUSTAINABLE LOCAL ECONOMY AND
INCREASED DEPRIVATION
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To consider a progress report on individual risks identified in the Council’s Strategic Risk Register.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To consider the controls being implemented to manage the strategic risk relating to the local
economy.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

To enable the Audit Committee to consider an update and progress report in relation to an individual
risk identified on the Strategic Risk Register.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

None.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The risk impacts on all the Council’s priorities.

6.0

Background information

6.1

At its meeting in March 2021, the Audit Committee agreed to continue to invite Strategic Risk Owners
to attend future meetings to provide updates and progress reports in relation to the individual risks
identified on the Strategic Risk Register.

Page 31

6.2

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 5(a) - Strategic Risk Register Progress Report – Local Economy

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

The controls being implemented will be done so within current budget constraints.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

Risks need to be effectively managed in order to comply with relevant legislation.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

To enable the Audit Committee to gain assurance that strategic risks are being effectively managed.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

In the course of developing each regeneration, employment, housing and education project the
Council will consider whether there could be unintended adverse impacts on people because of
shared characteristics protected by the Equality Act. Where required more detailed equality
assessments will be undertaken.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

None.

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

The progress report has been prepared in conjunction with risk managers and/or risk owners.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

Page 32

No

APPENDIX 5(a)
Strategic Risk Register Progress Report

Strategic Risk: Unsustainable Local Economy / Increased Deprivation

No

6

Risk

Sub
No.

Unsustainable Local
Economy / Increased
Deprivation.

6a

Sub-Risk

Increased deprivation
and unemployment.

% Overall Impact / Consequences
Weighting
30%

Over dependency on
Council services.

Opportunity

Better opportunities for
Blackpool residents.

Controls and Mitigation
Gross Risk
Score
I L GS
4 5 20 Introduction of Joseph Rowntree living
wage for Council staff, Council wholly
owned companies, and promoting this
with contractors.

Further Actions
Nett Risk
Score
I L NS
4 4 16 Implement the annual targets from the
Blackpool Enterprise Zone Delivery Plan
2030, facilitating the growth of energy,
aviation and other sectors.

Risk Manager

Page 33

Target Date

Council Priority

Growth and Prosperity
Director of
Programme Director Communication and
Regeneration

March 2022

Economy

Social value an integral part of the
Council's procurement process and
includes opportunities such as job
creation for local people.

Get hundreds of people back into work via Head of Economic &
Director of
job schemes for the most vulnerable,
Cultural Services
Communication and
young people, disadvantaged and those
Regeneration
who have lost their job due to the
pandemic through various employment
schemes delivered via HealthWorks and
outreach provision.

March 2022

Commitment to use local suppliers
where possible.

Support local businesses to grow, expand
and recover post pandemic by maximising
take up of the Business Loan Fund and
available grants.

Head of Economic &
Director of
Cultural Services
Communication and
Regeneration

March 2022

Secured the status of the Blackpool
Airport Enterprise Zone.

Commence delivery of the Central Leisure Growth and Prosperity
Director of
Quarter through the delivery of the first
Programme Director Communication and
key milestones including seeking planning
Regeneration
permission and obtaining agreements for
the initial stage of the development.

March 2022

Complete development of 21st Century
conference offer at the Winter Gardens
and increase numbers of new conferences
and events.

Director of
Communication and
Regeneration

March 2022

Commence delivery of the projects
identified in the £40 million Towns Fund
programme.

Growth and Prosperity
Director of
Programme Director Communication and
Regeneration

March 2023

Delivery of the Hounds Hill extension and
ongoing recovery planning with the retail
sector to ensure that use of space in the
Hounds Hill is maximised to improve the
retail offer.

Growth and Prosperity
Director of
Programme Director Communication and
Regeneration

March 2022

Head of Strategic
Leisure Assets

CLT Risk Owner

Deliver phase two of the Central Business Growth and Prosperity
Director of
District at Talbot Gateway and obtain the Programme Director Communication and
necessary commissions for phase three of
Regeneration
the project.

November 2022

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report

No

6

Risk

Sub
No.

Sub-Risk

Unsustainable Local
Economy / Increased
Deprivation.

6b

Poor quality, housing in
inner Blackpool continues
to drive transience and
deprivation.

% Overall Impact / Consequences
Weighting
30%

Controls and Mitigation
Gross Risk
Score
I L GS
Negative impact on local Create an attractive new 4 4 16 Maximise available powers to regulate
economy.
residential offer by the
the private rented sector.
seaside.

Perpetuation of poor
social outcomes for
residents.

Opportunity

Support town centre
businesses and drive
economic resurgence.

Poorly managed HMO's Enable people to stabilise
detracting from the
their lives in quality
quality housing on offer. homes.

Further Actions
Risk Manager
CLT Risk Owner
Nett Risk
Score
I L NS
4 3 12 Restart the Foxhall Village development
Director of
Director of Strategy
following the collapse of the contractor by Development (BHC)
(Assistant Chief
commissioning the completion of building
Executive)
the Phase Three quality homes.

Target Date

Council Priority

March 2022

Economy

Page 34

My Blackpool Home delivering better
quality private rented housing.

Assist Blackpool Housing Company to
expand the reach of its work and tackle
poor quality properties through the use of
grant funding through the newly acquired
Registered Provider status.

Managing Director
(BHC)

Director of Strategy
(Assistant Chief
Executive)

March 2022

Delivered 191 new council homes at
Queens Park plus approval of the
Council Homes Investment Plan.

Work with My Blackpool Home to build
upon the 400 properties already
completed to a good standard with a
revised target of 900 good quality homes.

Managing Director
(BHC)

Director of Strategy
(Assistant Chief
Executive)

March 2024

Arrangements in place to reduce the risk
of homelessness across the town.

Continue with the multi-disciplinary pilot
project to improve the quality and value
for money of supported housing across the
town.

Head of Housing

Director of Strategy
(Assistant Chief
Executive)

March 2022

Quality affordable rented offer, with
more new Council / housing association
homes.

Deliver the Selective Licensing scheme in
Blackpool to regulate private sector
housing in the area. Additional Selective
Licensing currently being delivered in the
Coastal Area to plan, including the
introduction of the Blackpool Standard to
regulate Private Sector Housing.

Head of Public
Protection

Director of
Community and
Environmental
Services

March 2022

Prepare for the implementation of any
changes to legislation implemented
following the Governments White Paper
on Social Housing.
Commence delivery of the Council Home
Investment Plan adding 250 new Council
homes to the portfolio.

Head of Housing

Director of Strategy
(Assistant Chief
Executive)

March 2023

Head of Housing

Director of Strategy
(Assistant Chief
Executive)

March 2024

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report

No

6

Risk

Sub
No.

Sub-Risk

Unsustainable Local
Economy / Increased
Deprivation.

6c

Lack of appropriate
transport infrastructure.

% Overall Impact / Consequences
Weighting
20%

Opportunity

Loss of trade, reputation Improve transport
and confidence from
infrastructure for the
residents.
benefit of residents and
visitors.

Good parking
infrastructure is part of
the customer experience.

Controls and Mitigation
Gross Risk
Nett Risk
Score
Score
I L GS
I L NS
4 5 20 Road Asset Management Strategy in
4 3 12
place which sets out budget
requirements based on whole life costs,
and the Department for Transport Code
of Practice.
Highways Investment Group in place to
review network capacity and
regeneration of the town.

Further Actions

Risk Manager

CLT Risk Owner

Target Date

Complete the tram extension at Blackpool Growth and Prosperity
Director of
November 2022
North Station and start delivering a service Programme Director Communication and
up the new track.
Regeneration

£4.5million has been awarded recently to Head of Highways and
Blackpool to deliver Project Amber, which Traffic Management
will provide significant investment in the
highways going forward and there is a
need to deliver this project.

Director of
Community and
Environmental
Services

March 2022

Page 35

Highways Risk Management Group in
place which meets quarterly.

Deliver the programme of road works
around the Enterprise Zone to improve
access to the area.

Growth and Prosperity
Director of
Programme Director Communication and
Regeneration

March 2022

A review of parking undertaken and a
strategy in place.

Commission and consider a feasibility
study into possible improvements to the
South Fylde line.

Growth and Prosperity
Director of
Programme Director Communication and
Regeneration

March 2022

Blackpool Transport Services ticketing
app with live travel information in place.

Significant investment has taken place in
Highways with upgrading works including
upgrading of bridges, Yeadon Way and
Quality Corridors.

Council Priority

Economy

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report

No

6

Risk

Sub
No.

Sub-Risk

Unsustainable Local
Economy / Increased
Deprivation.

6d

Lack of educational
attainment / appropriate
training to meet the
needs of the economy.

% Overall Impact / Consequences
Weighting
20%

Opportunity

Loss of, or lack of, talent Schools Improvement
to take up employment in Funding.
Blackpool.

Controls and Mitigation
Gross Risk
Score
I L GS
4 5 20 School Improvement Board in place.

Further Actions
Nett Risk
Score
I L NS
4 4 16 Further enhance the tracking system for
school performance and work in
conjunction with the Regional Schools
Commissioner to hold schools to account.

Risk Manager

CLT Risk Owner

Target Date

Council Priority

Head of Schools,
Standards and
Effectiveness

Director of Children's
Services

August 2021

Economy

Page 36

Increased exclusions and
children missing
education.

Links with the Regional Schools
Commissioner and OFSTED embedded.

Refine the Inclusion Plan for schools.

Head of Schools,
Standards and
Effectiveness

Director of Children's September 2021
Services

Statutory requirement for
local authority to ensure
the adequate provision of
school places in local
area would not be met.

School improvement strategy in place
which is challenged through the school
improvement governance structure.

Review Medical Admission Policy to ensure
the right young people receive specialist
support and maintain a good
understanding of academies as admissions
authorities to prevent delay in school
allocation.
Further develop a school led system which
improves attainment at Key Stage 3 and 4
whilst holding individual Trusts to account.

Head of Schools,
Standards and
Effectiveness

Director of Children's
Services

August 2021

Head of Schools,
Standards and
Effectiveness

Director of Children's
Services

March 2022

Continue to gatekeep the process for
making referrals to the Pupil Referral Units
and ensure a robust Admissions Policy and
Right of Appeal is in place.

Head of Schools,
Standards and
Effectiveness

Director of Children's
Services

August 2021

Ten year strategy in place for 2020 to
2030 and Inclusion Strategy in place.

School Organisation Plan in place to
predict requirements for school places
so that provision can be made as
demand increases.

Overall Nett Risk Score

14

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report

Gross Risk
Score
20
20

Sub-Risk: Increased deprivation and unemployment.
(weighting 30%)
Risk Score in 2020/21

Nett Risk
Score
16
12

Risk Owner: Director of Communication & Regeneration
Existing Controls in Place:
 Introduction of Joseph Rowntree living wage for Council staff, Council wholly owned companies, and promoting this with contractors.
 Social value an integral part of the Council's procurement process and includes opportunities such as job creation for local people.
 Commitment to use local suppliers where possible.
 Secured the status of the Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone.

Page 37

Actions:
Actions
Implement the annual
targets from the
Blackpool Enterprise
Zone Delivery Plan
2030, facilitating the
growth of energy,
aviation and other
sectors.
(Target Date: March
2022)

Risk
Manager
Growth and
Prosperity
Programme
Director

Current Position










EZ lifetime target is 5,000 jobs.
First major new build will complete and open in December 2021 – this is
in the emerging medical technologies sector.
Strong pipeline of enquiries at feasibility stage.
Energy sector originally focussed on the Shale Gas sector – switched to
green energy and energy consultancy.
Emerging data/ digital sector on the back of the new Transatlantic and
local connectivity which is attracting strong interest.
Aviation sector badly hit by the pandemic and EU Exit for past 18 months.
Food and Drink sector showing resilience to negative economy.
Work ongoing to provide annual update and revision to delivery plan for
presentation to Executive in September.
EZ delivery team complement now increased to 4 plus finance support
which will give increased capacity to ramp up pace of delivery as obstacles
to progression are overcome.

Outcomes / Results



1,649 gross jobs to date on
target to achieve EZ lifetime.
Encourage economic growth
and job opportunities across
the Fylde Coast.

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report
Get hundreds of
people back into work
via job schemes for
the most vulnerable,
young people,
disadvantaged and
those who have lost
their job due to the
pandemic through
various employment
schemes delivered via
HealthWorks and
outreach provision.

Head of
Economic &
Cultural
Services

The Positive Steps into Work Service delivers a number of employment support
programmes offering one-to-one support from an Employment Adviser including:





Page 38

(Target Date: March
2022)







Support local
businesses to grow,
expand and recover
post pandemic by
maximising take up of

Head of
Economic &
Cultural
Services



Journey2Work - 12 months support programme for those with at least one
barrier to employment.
More Positive Together – in partnership with BCH offers employment
support to private rented and social housing tenants – for those with
multiple barriers to employment.
Individual Placement and Support Programmes – offers employment
support for those in drug and alcohol recovery services, and, in NHS Early
Intervention in Psychosis services – Blackpool & Lancashire respectively.
Young People’s NEET Team – in partnership with Blackpool Young People’s
service, offers employment support to young people aged 16-17, and 18-24
year old Care Leavers (new post), to move them into work, training or
internships.
Chance2Shine – work placement programme which brokers opportunities
with local businesses to help people upskill, gain confidence, and move into
paid work after completing a 4 week unpaid work placement.
Kickstart – new government funded job creation scheme to support young
people aged 16-24 to access a 6 month paid work placement – currently
under development.
Redundancy Support – information, advice and guidance for Council staff
at risk of redundancy to support them to move into work with alternative
employers.
Restart – 5-year contract secured to deliver employment support to long
term unemployed adults in Blackpool.
Youth Hub – two bids submitted to secure c£1m to create a youth
employment centre (aged 16-24) in partnership with Jobcentre Plus. To be
located at Bickerstaff House (ground floor unit).
The Blackpool Council Business Loans Fund has been in place for a number
of years. In February 2017, Full Council approved a decision to offer a
further £90 million of loans in addition to the existing £10 million, through a
new Business Loans Fund. The provision was further extended on the 27th
February 2019, when Full Council agreed to approve a decision to extend

Across all programmes:
2019/20 Achieved
 505 people offered
employment support.
 194 supported into paid
employment.
20/21 Targets
 484 people to be offered
employment support.
 168 people supported into
paid employment.
2020/21 Achieved
 444 people offered
employment support.
 160 people supported into
paid employment.
2021/22 Targets
 1,091 people offered
employment support.
 553 people supported into
paid employment.

As at the end of March 2021 the
fund had committed:
 £120m committed funds
 No of loans approved – 30
 Jobs Created – 647

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report
the Business Loan
Fund and available
grants.
(Target Date: March
2022)

Page 39

Commence delivery of
the Central Leisure
Quarter through the
delivery of the first key
milestones including
seeking planning
permission and
obtaining agreements
for the initial stage of
the development.
(Target Date: March
2022)
Complete
development of 21st
Century conference
offer at the Winter
Gardens and increase
numbers of new

Growth and
Prosperity
Programme
Director

Head of
Strategic
Leisure Assets

the Business Loans Fund scheme by a further £100million bringing the total
fund to £200million.
 The fund has twin aims: to promote economic development in Blackpool in
a sustainable manner in line with the Council’s priorities; and, to generate a
return on investment as a source of income for the Council.
 The Council’s loan fund is to enable growth and regeneration rather than as
a last resort for external businesses during the pandemic.
 Council Wholly Owned Companies have had access to 5 year recovery
loans.
 Government business loan schemes have been made available such as
Bounce Back and CBILS for this purpose. It is not known how much funding
has been loaned to Blackpool businesses; this information is not publicly
available.
 Value of all COVID grants distributed to Blackpool businesses: £100,962,031
administered by the Council.
 The Developer submitted a planning application for the Blackpool Central
Scheme in June. This will be presented at Planning Committee on 12th
October, following the formal statutory planning and consultation period.
 Subject to planning consent being granted and other conditions of the
Land Sale Agreement being met, the developer is anticipating
construction to start on site in the following months, with delivery of the
Enabling Phase (multi-storey car park).
 This initial phase will take approximately 15 months to deliver, with Phase
1 (Leisure attractions) to follow.





The Conference Centre is due to practically complete on the 27th
November 2021 with a view to being fully operational early in 2022.
We would hope to run test events in advance of a full operational
opening.
The first major event is the Conservative Party Spring Conference in
March 2022.

 Jobs Safeguarded – 1,099
Investments Supported:
 4 hotel developments
 4 hospitality/restaurant
businesses
 4 leisure/attractions
businesses
 2 manufacturing businesses
 1 health organisation
 1 Publishing/Marketing
business
 5 Council Companies –
BTS, BHC, BAOL, BOCL, BECL







Regeneration of the town.
Creation of job
opportunities.
Increased visitor offer.

Provision of a modern
conference centre facility in
the town.
Increased number of
business visitors.

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report
conferences and
events.
(Target Date: March
2022)
Commence delivery of
the projects identified
in the £40 million
Towns Fund
programme.
(Target Date: March
2023)

Growth and
Prosperity
Programme
Director






Page 40









Blackpool Council was invited to create a Town Deal Board in September
2020 and to develop a Town Investment Plan.
This secured a ring-fenced allocation of £39.5m of Town Deal funding
towards seven key interventions, with an additional £1m approved
immediately in fast track spend which has supported the acquisition of
the Devonshire Road former Hospital site.
By bringing together existing and new commitments, the Town Deal
enables the town and stakeholders to work with Government to provide a
strong, holistic response to the needs and opportunities of one of the
country’s most deprived, high profile towns and to deliver on its levelling
up agenda.
The current position is that 7 Green Book standard Business Cases are
under development which need to be submitted to MHCLG by November
17th 2021.
Before submission, these need to be the subject of an initial review of the
Town Deal Investment Panel (a sub group of the Town Deal Board) and
then an independent appraisal undertaken by an appointed consultant.
This appraisal will then be reviewed by the TDIP panel and assuming no
issues, provide a recommendation to Blackpool Council and the Town
Deal Board to approve the project and allow it to be submitted to MHCLG
with appropriate additional paperwork.
Substantial officer time and resource is being expelled in the creation of
these 7 business cases now working alongside consultancy support such
as AMION Consulting, whom were appointed to specifically support the
“economic case” making element of the business cases.
The Council also has bids in for c19million Levelling up Fund for a Town
Centre Access Scheme, development of a hotel at the old Post Office site
and the Winter Gardens frontage. A further c3million has also been bid
for as part of the Community Regeneration Fund.






Anticipated approval is
expected by end December
2021/January 2022.
Most projects are due to
commence activity from
March 2022 over a 5 year
programme life.
The projects combined will
work to support the growth
of the economy of the town
and provide opportunities
for the local community.
Inwards investment, skills
development, job creation,
employment support, health
benefits and new business
accommodation are all
typical outcomes.

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report
Delivery of the Hounds
Hill extension and
ongoing recovery
planning with the
retail sector to ensure
that use of space in
the Hounds Hill is
maximised to improve
the retail offer.

Page 41

(Target Date: March
2022)
Deliver phase two of
the Central Business
District at Talbot
Gateway and obtain
the necessary
commissions for phase
three of the project.
(Target Date:
November 2022)

Growth and
Prosperity
Programme
Director

Growth and
Prosperity
Programme
Director










Works have now commenced on site with in terms of cabling and utilities.
The Management Agent is working to deliver new tenants at the Hounds
Hill. Each case is being considered on its own merit with the ability to
generate footfall in the Hounds Hill and town centre.



Talbot Gateway Phase 2 total project value - £35m.
Holiday Inn (4 *equivalent) 144-room hotel (including Marco’s New York
Italian restaurant) with retail units on the lower ground floor.
Wide interconnecting underpass under Hotel and High Street between the
new tramway terminus and Blackpool North Station.
Talbot Gateway Phase 3 total project value c. £99.75m approved by
Executive in May 2021.
20,300 sq m Grade ’A’ office development in Town Centre for end user.
Hybrid planning application approved 16th November 2020.



Sub-Risk: Poor quality, housing in inner Blackpool continues to drive transience and
deprivation.
(weighting 30%)
Risk Score in 2020/21





Will reduce disruption in the
centre when the contractors
punch through into the
existing shopping centre.
An increase in leisure use in
the centre to diversify away
from pure retail is a key
priority.

Increased footfall in the
town centre.
Enhanced accommodation
offer for visitors.

Gross Risk Score
16

Nett Risk Score
12

16

12

Risk Owner: Director of Strategy (Assistant Chief Executive), Director of Community & Environmental Services
Existing Controls in Place:
 Maximise available powers to regulate the private rented sector.

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report





My Blackpool Home delivering better quality private rented housing.
Delivered 191 new council homes at Queens Park plus approval of the Council Homes Investment Plan.
Arrangements in place to reduce the risk of homelessness across the town.
Quality affordable rented offer, with more new Council / housing association homes.

Actions:
Actions

Director of
Development
(BHC)

(Target Date: March
2022)
Assist Blackpool
Housing Company to
expand the reach of its
work and tackle poor
quality properties
through the use of
grant funding through
the newly acquired
Registered Provider
status.
(Target Date: March
2022)
Work with My
Blackpool Home to

Current Position





Good quality housing, and
community facilities.



Good quality social housing.




Lumen have now let the first block of accommodation with Home England
funding.
Second scheme in pipeline (both inner area).
Also exploring opportunity for acquiring further social housing off new
build sites.



Still pipeline challenges due to pent up demand and market pressures.



Good quality private sector
housing.



Managing
Director (BHC)

Managing
Director (BHC)

Outcomes / Results

The site has been made safe and secure and continues to be monitored.
Obstacles to the surrender of the site to the Council have now been
overcome with formal surrender anticipated in August 2021 once
intellectual properties are released.
Exclusivity agreement entered into with Growing Places Housing
Association to work through options for delivering the homes on phase
three with extension of time to continue work to be agreed.
Agreement in principle reached with Homes England to vary the grant
funding agreement to enable an amended mix of housing and community
development to be delivered.



Page 42

Restart the Foxhall
Village development
following the collapse
of the contractor by
commissioning the
completion of building
the Phase Three
quality homes.

Risk
Manager



Strategic Risk Register Progress Report
build upon the 400
properties already
completed to a good
standard with a
revised target of 900
good quality homes.

Page 43

(Target Date: March
2024)
Continue with the
multi-disciplinary pilot
project to improve the
quality and value for
money of supported
housing across the
town.
(Target Date: March
2022)
Deliver the Selective
Licensing scheme in
Blackpool to regulate
private sector housing
in the area. Additional
Selective Licensing
currently being
delivered in the
Coastal Area to plan,
including the
introduction of the
Blackpool Standard to
regulate Private Sector
Housing.

Head of
Housing



Progress still being made with BHC currently having 488 completed units,
and 556 forecast by end of financial year.




Project well embedded with strong focused team.
Baseline assessment of existing quality of accommodation and support
undertaken.
Supply analysis undertaken.
Next steps are to develop improvement plans with providers, and
complete full needs assessment, based on supply and demand
information.
Work ongoing with MHCLG to push for more systemic change through
changes to legislation/regulation.




Head of Public
Protection









The selective Licensing Scheme in Central area commenced 24th March
2019 and was approved by the Secretary Of State.
As of 18/8/2021– 1,716 properties (2,133 units of accommodation) have
applied for a licence.
Payments due in total is £948,003 and total discounts of £437,288 have
been applied.
Discounts are £100 deduction for an early bird discount and 30% reduction
by declaring that the property is compliant with the Blackpool Standard.
The Blackpool Standard was introduced to enable landlords to get a
discount if their properties were are of a higher standard, free from
category 1 hazards, and all the management and safety documentation in
place.
Procedures are currently being updated and letters to be issued to all
landlords claiming the Blackpool Standard that if they do not meet the









Quality and value for money
of local supported housing is
improved.
System is changed to ensure
greater control of new
supported housing, and
more accountability of
providers.

Investigations are currently
ongoing to see if the
properties meet the Blackpool
Standard, and what legal
action can be taken when
they do not meet the
standard.
As of 18.8.21- 1,423
properties have stated they
meet the Blackpool Standard.
An initial assessment of
current EPCs have been
checked. Out of 100 EPC
checked 20% do not have a
current or valid EPC therefore

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report
(Target Date: March
2022)

standards they will be invoiced for the 30% of the licence fee and further
enforcement action taken.





Page 44

Prepare for the
implementation of any
changes to legislation
implemented
following the
Governments White
Paper on Social
Housing.
(Target Date: March
2023)
Commence delivery of
the Council Home
Investment Plan
adding 250 new
Council homes to the
portfolio.

Head of
Housing






Head of
Housing






(Target Date: March
2024)



Webinars attended and timescales understood.
Likely to be 3 years until fully implemented due to changes needed in
legislation.
Council approach will be to start to develop a framework and monitoring
arrangements this year, to be implemented across all housing stock.
BCH and BHC boards both briefed on proposed approach.



Progress has been slow due to financial constraints however work is
underway with Home England on building a case for affordable rent.
First Home England bid for 10 new homes has been successful, and 6 have
been identified.
This will remain challenging due to limited acquisition programme in Home
England – new build is favoured.
Also need to make sure we are not competing against Lumen if acquisition
funding becomes limited.
Objective is to grow stock of quality affordable homes to rent for local
people – may need to review the best vehicles for delivering this.





will have to pay back the 30%
discount.
To date, 8 failure to license
cases have been processed for
prosecution, and summons
issued.
In addition, 7 cases have been
submitted for civil penalties.
The aim is to improve the
quality and safety of
accommodation across
Blackpool.
Council has clear oversight
and assurance in relation to all
the rented housing stock in its
ownership.
Council is well prepared for
inspection regime.

Increase stock of quality
affordable homes to rent for
local people.

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report
Additional Action

Head of
Housing




Ensure the delivery of
new quality affordable
Council homes.



The delivery of the additional homes at Troutbeck continues with phase
one recently handed over.
Tender exercise is underway to appoint a contractor to deliver 131 new
Council homes on Grange Park and it is hoped that work will start on site
later in 2021.

Sub-Risk: Lack of appropriate transport infrastructure.
(weighting 20%)

Delivery of quality, affordable
Council housing.

Gross Risk Score
20

Nett Risk Score
12

20

12

Risk Score in 2020/21

Risk Owner: Director of Communication & Regeneration, Director of Community & Environmental Services

Page 45

Existing Controls in Place:
 Road Asset Management Strategy in place which sets out budget requirements based on whole life costs, and the Department for Transport Code of Practice.
 Highways Investment Group in place to review network capacity and regeneration of the town.
 Highways Risk Management Group in place which meets quarterly.
 A review of parking undertaken and a strategy in place.
 Blackpool Transport Services ticketing app with live travel information in place.
 Significant investment has taken place in Highways with upgrading works including upgrading of bridges, Yeadon Way and Quality Corridors.

Actions:
Actions
Complete the tram
extension at Blackpool
North Station and
start delivering a
service up the new
track.
(Target Date: Autumn
2022)

Risk
Manager
Growth &
Prosperity
Programme
Director

Current Position




The area for the completion of the Tram Extension was handed over to
Sisk on 8th April 2021.
The track work, OLE installation and part of the platform will be completed
by Sisk this calendar year and the testing of the tramway will take place in
2021.
Once the trams have been tested, the OLE will be curtailed back as far
west as practicably possible during the completion of the construction of
the Hotel.

Outcomes / Results


Increased tramway
infrastructure to improve
connectivity across the
town.

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report

£4.5million has been
awarded recently to
Blackpool to deliver
Project Amber, which
will provide significant
investment in the
highways going
forward and there is a
need to deliver this
project.

Head of
Highways &
Traffic
Management







Page 46

(Target Date: March
2022)



Deliver the
programme of road
works around the
Enterprise Zone to
improve access to the
area.
(Target Date: March
2022)

Growth and
Prosperity
Programme
Director







Work to the tram stop and shelter will be completed after the testing but
before the completion of the Hotel.
The main focus of the Project Amber framework was to unlock the
procurement barrier to smaller SME’s who have the latest innovative
treatments to repair areas of deterioration before they get too serious,
thus sustaining the network for years to come.
To support this there must be some supporting validation, so the
framework will see some KPI’s that will provide evidence to support this
strategy.
These will be around the extended life of the network based on the life of
the treatments, carbon reduction, efficiency savings and cost comparisons
with traditionalist method.
So by investing now in this way gives much more for less, is shovel ready
and gives time to plan strategically across the network, keeps the network
open and traffic flowing with less or no disruption and less tripping and
vehicle damage claims.
There is also going to be a KPI to demonstrate the local economy savings
based on transport of goods and services around the town and the knockon effect that traditional work with closing roads has on local
trade/economy.
The work on Project Amber has already commenced and will be
communicated to the DfT.
Work is ongoing to complete submission of Business plan to secure £7.5m
Town Deal towards an overall £18m project. This is due for finalisation in
August.
External consultants supporting the Transport assessment and BCR
assessment.
Highways team leading on design and procurement of construction of the
four elements of project.
Planning consent secured in June for first element of works at the Division
Lane junction, but LCC imposed planning constraint means work cannot
commence until March 2022 at earliest.
Outline planning application for Common Edge, Eastern Gateway access
and Amy Johnson Way in preparation for submission target date

The 6 KPI’s which will be reported as
outcomes are:
 Area of repair using
traditionalist approach vs
area of Project Amber
Framework Approach.
 Life of Project Amber repairs
and extended life or life
cycle of the entire section.
 Environmental benefits.
 Carbon Reduction.
 Local Economy Benefits.
 Reduction of liability claims
and efficiency savings.
 National efficiency savings if
used by other LHA’s.



Appropriate transport
infrastructure to facilitate
economic growth
opportunities presented by
the Enterprise Zone.

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report



Commission and
consider a feasibility
study into possible
improvements to the
South Fylde line.

Growth and
Prosperity
Programme
Director





Page 47

(Target Date: March
2022)




September 2021- but new issues re Greenbelt and Local Plan part 2
challenge may impact the approval date as has to be referred to Secretary
of State for decision.
Key third party property acquired in May 2021– to enable construction of
School Road Junction – negotiations for surrender and renewal of leases to
enable other elements of roads progressing and positive conclusion are
imminent.
In late 2020 MPs Scott Benton and Mark Menzies were notified of a
successful bid to the Restoring Your Railway (the Ideas Fund).
Fylde Council are leading the work on their behalf to submit a Strategic
Outline Business Case (SOBC) to the Department for Transport (DfT) for a
heavy rail passing loop to allow two trains per hour.
The SOBC must also appraise other options for the corridor, including tram
and tram/train.
Consultant Stantec have been appointed by Fylde Council, assisted by
Lancashire Country Council, to develop the SOBC.
Blackpool Council is represented on the project group (with all key
stakeholders) and was present at the inception meeting with the
consultant and other key stakeholders.

Sub-Risk: Lack of educational attainment / appropriate training to meet the needs of the
economy.
(weighting 20%)
Risk Score in 2020/21

Risk Owner: Director of Children’s Services
Existing Controls in Place:
 School Improvement Board in place.
 Links with the Regional Schools Commissioner and OFSTED embedded.
 School Improvement Strategy in place which is challenged through the school improvement governance structure.
 Ten year strategy in place for 2020 to 2030 and Inclusion Strategy in place.




SOBC being prepared, to be
submitted to the DfT in the
autumn.
There are synergies with the
Fleetwood - Poulton
Restoring Your Railway bid,
as this brings potential to
develop a Fylde Coast rail
loop.

Gross Risk Score
20

Nett Risk Score
16

20

16

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report


School Organisation Plan in place to predict requirements for school places so that provision can be made as demand increases.

Actions:
Actions
Further enhance the
tracking system for
school performance
and work in
conjunction with the
Regional Schools
Commissioner to hold
schools to account.

Page 48

(Target Date: August
2021)
Refine the Inclusion
Plan for schools.
(Target Date:
September 2021)
Review Medical
Admission Policy to
ensure the right young
people receive
specialist support and
maintain a good
understanding of
academies as
admissions authorities
to prevent delay in
school allocation.
(Target Date: August
2021)

Risk
Manager
Head of
Schools,
Standards &
Effectiveness

Current Position





Head of
Schools,
Standards and
Effectiveness



Head of
Schools,
Standards and
Effectiveness



Outcomes / Results

A comprehensive tracking system using publicly available education data is
in place.
This is used to define the order in which we allocate support to schools
and what that support looks like.
GCSE performance is improving, but the agreement not to publicise
performance figures until 2022 means that there is no reliable comparator
data.
Teacher / Centre assessed grades have not hindered pupil progression
onto the next stages of their education, in Blackpool, rather enhancing
their opportunities.



A renewed version of the inclusion strategy is now available and is
integrated into the Education Improvement Strategy 2020-30.










The Medical Admissions Policy relates to children who are unable to
receive a suitable education at a school because of their medical needs.
It becomes the responsibility of the local authority to arrange a suitable
education if one cannot be provided by a school, because the pupil’s needs
are too complex.
This policy has been reviewed and reissued.



Schools are largely good or
better.
Relationships with DFE / RSC
are good.

Pupil Referral Unit (PRU)
numbers are down to lowest
level since 2003.
Pupils excluded (PEX) are
lowest since 2003.
Fair and equitable system of
admission into the hospital
schools is in place.

Strategic Risk Register Progress Report
Further develop a
school led system
which improves
attainment at Key
Stage 3 and 4 whilst
holding individual
Trusts to account.

Page 49

(Target Date: March
2022)
Continue to gate-keep
the process for making
referrals to the Pupil
Referral Units and
ensure a robust
Admissions Policy and
Right of Appeal is in
place.
(Target Date: August
2021)

Head of
Schools,
Standards and
Effectiveness






Head of
Schools,
Standards and
Effectiveness




A 2020-30 Education Strategy is in place.
Operationalising of this strategy will take place more formally in 2021/22
school year.
A new Literacy Strategy is being launched with schools in September 2021
to further improve performance in this area.
An Education Improvement Board is in place chaired by an independent
person which provides critical challenge and scrutiny.



Strategy has been coproduced and is owned by
the partnership.

It is considered that a robust admission process is now in place and the
process of adhering to the policy is ongoing.
The Director of Children’s Services will be visiting all schools in the new
academic year to learn more about each school and there particular needs
and requirements.



PRU numbers are at very low
levels.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Report to:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer:

Tracy Greenhalgh, Head of Audit and Risk

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2021

RISK SERVICES QUARTER ONE REPORT
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To provide the Audit Committee with a summary of the work completed by Risk Services in quarter
one of the 2021/2022 financial year.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

The Audit Committee is asked to note to content of the report.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

To ensure that the Council has effective risk management processes in place.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

None.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The work of the internal audit team contributes to the achievement of all of the Council’s priorities.

6.0

Background information

6.1

Each quarter the Head of Audit and Risk produces a report summarising the work of Risk Services and
this includes the overall assurance statements for all audit reviews completed in the quarter.
The Risk Services Quarterly Report is reported to the Corporate Leadership Team prior to being
presented at Audit Committee.

6.2

On the completion of each audit an overall assurance statement is provided which summarises the
strength of controls in the area being audited. The opinions can provide positive assurance, such as
when controls are identified to be good or adequate, or negative assurance when the controls are
considered to be inadequate or uncontrolled.

Page 51

6.3

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 6(a) – Risk Services Quarter One Report.

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

All work has been delivered within the agreed budget for Risk Services.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

All work undertaken by Risk Services is in line with relevant legislation. This is particularly important
when undertaking fraud investigations where a number of regulations need to be adhered to.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

The primary role of Risk Services is to provide assurance that the Council is effectively managing its
risks and providing support to all services in relation to risk and control. Risks that have been
identified in the quarter are reported in the summary report.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

None.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

None.

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

The report was considered by the Corporate Leadership Team on 31 August 2021.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

National Audit Office - Initial learning from the government’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic
(May 2021).

Page 52

No

APPENDIX 6(a)
Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Audit and Risk Quarter One Report
1st April to 30th June 2021

Contents
1.

Page

Quarter One Summary .................................................................................................................. 2
 Service Developments ................................................................................................................... 2
 Performance .................................................................................................................................. 4

2.

Appendix A: Performance & Summary Tables for Quarter One ................................................... 8
 Internal Audit reports issued in period ......................................................................................... 8
 Progress with Priority 1 audit recommendations ....................................................................... 18
 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 ...................................................................... 19
 Insurance claims data .................................................................................................................. 19

3.

Appendix B – Insurance Claim Payments by Financial Year ........................................................ 20

Page 53

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

1.

Quarter One Summary
Service Developments

1.1

Internal Audit
Internal audits that have been scoped in the quarter and/or fieldwork underway include:
Directorate

Internal Audits

Adult Services

 Vitaline

Chief Executives

 Employee Health and Wellbeing

Children’s Services
Communication and Regeneration
Community and Environmental
Corporate
Resources















Early Years Services
School Improvement Strategy
Tourism and Destination Management
Town Deal
Animal Disease Outbreak Planning
Delivery of Track Maintenance Plan
Management of Investment Properties
Compliance with Corporate Arrangements
Covid Income Loss Grant Return
Capital Accounting
Budgetary Control
Carbon Emissions
Sundry Debtors

Details of the scope and final outcome for each of the above audits will be reported to Audit Committee
in the Audit and Risk quarterly report once the fieldwork has been completed and the draft report agreed.
Progress on delivering the 2021/22 audit plan has been less than expected due to the team currently
carrying two vacancies (one permanent and one temporary). Recruitment campaigns are underway
however are proving difficult to attract the right candidates to the roles. The impact on the internal audit
plan is under continual review by the Head of Audit and Risk and contingency arrangements are being
explored to ensure that an adequate level of assurance work is undertaken to enable an Annual Audit
Opinion to be provided at the close of 2021/22.
The team participated in the external assessment of its compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards. The final report from the assessment team will be shared with the Audit Committee once it is
ready.
1.2

Corporate Fraud
The Senior Counter Fraud Advisor has continued to support the Head of Revenues and Exchequer Services
and the Head of Economic and Cultural Services in the administration of various grants available to local
businesses who have been impacted by the pandemic which qualify for the various schemes in place.
During the quarter, the requirement to undertake pre-assurance checks on all applicants for a Restart
Grant has had a significant impact on team resource and therefore little else has been progressed in terms
of delivering the proactive fraud plan and the National Fraud Initiative exercise.
With the relaxation of lockdown restrictions and the associated grants it is hoped that the Corporate
Fraud Team will be able to move towards business as usual and make inroads into the current backlog of
active cases and proactive fraud prevention work. However, one of the Corporate Fraud Officers is leaving
the team and therefore a recruitment exercise needs to be undertaken to fill this role which will have an
impact on available resource.

Page 54

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

1.3

Risk and Resilience
The team are continuing to support services to review their business continuity plans and transfer these
onto the new template which combines business impact analysis and business continuity arrangements.
The team are in the process of procuring insurance for the Airport and Enveco Phase Two with a view to
have implemented the new insurance arrangements by September 2021.
Overall 82% of the scheduled risk management groups were held in the quarter and of these, 100% of
those held are now proactively using the risk management SharePoint sites.
The National Audit Office have published in May 2021 a report on initial learning from the Government’s
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The report made 39 recommendations in total with the most
relevant from a risk management and emergency planning perspective in local government being:

1.4



A comprehensive lessons-learned exercise involving all the main stakeholders, including local
government and representatives of the workforce and suppliers, would inform the planning for
future emergencies.



Emergency plans for dealing with a pandemic must provide for appropriate stockpiles of highquality PPE together with comprehensive and resilient arrangements for the rapid procurement
and distribution of PPE, based on reliable information. Plans need to include distribution of PPE
to social care and all parts of the health system. Organisations responsible for maintaining and
testing their plans must actively monitor for new threats that might overwhelm their plans.



Effective governance, lines of accountability, and resourcing responsibilities are important for an
effective rapid-response in an emergency situation. Developing these arrangements, and
ensuring that they remain up to date, should be part of the emergency plan for activation when
required.



Clear, timely, two-way information and communication are vital for both providing services at the
front-line and for managing the response at the national level. This includes information on
national and local PPE stocks and requirements,



Why national bodies provided more support to hospitals than to social care to prevent that
happening again.



Clear strategy for how national and local tracing teams will work together.



Consider how changes in testing policy will affect the workload of national and local tracing.



Everyone in has, for the first time, provided data on the potential scale of the population in
England which either sleeps rough or is at risk of doing so. MHCLG needs to build upon this
knowledge to understand fully the size and needs of this population and communicate this to
local authorities.



DHSC should ensure that healthcare data systems allow easy, but secure, access to healthcare
data.



DHSC should set out the core data requirements for a future pandemic or civil emergency and
how it can access data in a timely manner.



MHCLG should set out how it can establish the capacity and capability of local authorities to
support shielding-type exercises.



Monitoring to track the longer-term impact of COVID-19 disruption on all pupils’ development
and attainment.

Health and Safety
The team continue to have a key role in providing advice, support and guidance to all Council services and
schools with regards to safe working practices during the Covid-19 pandemic. This continues to involve

Page 55

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

reviewing government and Health and Safety Executive Guidance in relation to working safely during the
pandemic and implementing any necessary changes or systems to ensure that the Council continues to
be compliant. The team have been undertaking unannounced workplace inspections at some Council
buildings to continue to ensure compliance with the Covid Secure arrangements.
The team are supporting the corporate project to assess how the Council will work once lockdowns are
lifted which includes options such as greater home working / hybrid workers. As part of this, health and
safety legislation is being considered to ensure that we continue to keep staff safe, regardless of where
they work, and the Council’s health and safety arrangements will be amended accordingly once a decision
is made.
Face to face health and safety training has been delivered where necessary in a Covid Secure way and
progress is being made on developing virtual training to ensure all staff who require training are able to
access the training. Work is underway to review how health and safety training and communications are
delivered going forward including ‘how to’ tutorial videos which could help with staff queries.
1.5

Equality and Diversity
There has been some deterioration in services evidencing their consideration of the Public Sector Equality
Duty as part of the decision making process as shown in this quarter’s performance indicators. A number
of actions are being taken to address this including the development of a new training course for
managers on the Public Sector Equality Duty and Equality Analysis.
An Equality and Diversity
Development Plan is being prepared and consideration is being given to the scope of an Equality and
Diversity Strategy for the Council.
Work continues with the wholly owned companies to support them to assess their performance in
relation to equality and diversity. Blackpool Coastal Housing were reviewed in the quarter and contact
has been made with Blackpool Entertainment Company to progress their review.
Performance
Risk Services performance indicators
Performance Indicator

2021/22
Target

2021/22
Actual

85%

72%

2021/22
Target

2021/22
Actual

Percentage audit plan completed (annual target).

90%

17%

Percentage draft reports issued within deadline.

96%

91%

Percentage audit work within resource budget.

92%

100%

Percentage of positive satisfaction surveys.

85%

92%

Percentage compliance with quality standards for audit reviews.

85%

90%

(Description of measure)
Professional and technical qualification as a percentage of the total.
Internal Audit Team performance indicators
Performance Indicator
(Description of measure)

Page 56

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Risk and Resilience Team performance indicators
Performance Indicator

2021/22
Target

2021/22
Actual

Percentage of Council service business continuity plans up to date.

100%

100%

Percentage of risk registers revised and up to date at the end of the
quarter.

100%

74%

6

1

50

27

100%

0%

2021/22
Target

2021/22
Actual

0

2

100%

100%

(Description of measure)

Number of risk and resilience training and exercise sessions held
(annual target).
Number of trained Emergency Response Group Volunteers.
(for monitoring purposes only – responsibility lies with Adult Social
Care)
Percentage of property risk audit programme completed (annual
target).
Health and Safety performance indicators
Performance Indicator
(Description of measure)
RIDDOR Reportable Accidents for Employees
Training Delivered to quarterly plan

There were two RIDDOR case relating to employees reported in the quarter which included:



Adult Services (Mental Health Team) - Inpatient attacked employee in a ward corridor resulting in
the employee being absent for over 7 days.
Adult Services (Community and Reablement at Home) - Employee slipped on the back kitchen
doorstep resulting in an ankle fracture.

Equality and Diversity performance indicators
Performance Indicator

2021/22
Target

2021/22
Actual

Percentage of Executive Decisions made with evidence of Equality
Impact Assessments or due regard.

100%

0%

Percentage take up of Equality i-Pool course.

100%

81%

(Description of measure)

Page 57

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Corporate Fraud Team performance indicators
Performance Indicator
(Description of measure)
% of agreed Council employees completed i-Pool fraud awareness
course.

2021/22
Target

2021/22
Actual

100%

87%

As at 30th June 2021, the overall completion rate has decreased from 89% to 87%. Further analysis has
revealed that this decrease can be attributed to staffing changes which have occurred during the quarter.
The below graph showing directorate performance:

Mandatory Fraud Awareness Training by Directorate 2021/22
100%
90%

94%

90%

90%
81%

80%
70%

100%

97%

65%

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Page 58

94%

Disciplinary

Administrative Penalty

Prosecution

16

10

5

£1,387.60

15

0

0

0

0

7

2

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

2

4

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

4

Procurement
Fraudulent Insurance
Claims
Social Care
Economic & Third Sector
Support
Gross Misconduct
(Disciplinary Code)
Pension

0

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

2

1

2

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

1

0

-

0

0

1

0

0

2

0

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

0

Investment
Payroll & Employee
Contract Fulfilment
Expenses
Abuse of Position Financial Gain
Abuse of Position Manipulation of Financial
or Non-Financial Data
General Financial Fraud
Disabled parking
concessions
NFI 2018
NFI Single Person Discount
Proactive Exercise
NFI 2021

0

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

1

1

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

1

6

1

0

2

-

2

0

0

0

0

5

0

3

0

1

-

1

0

0

0

0

2

40

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

40

83

0

0

0

-

0

0

0

0

0

83

0

6,921

618

918

£127,960.04

1,536

0

0

0

0

5,385

149

6,943

629

926

£129,347.64

1,554

0

1

0

0

5,537

Type of Fraud
Council Tax - Single Person
Discount
Council Tax Reduction
(CTR)
Business Rates

Totals:

No Further Action

6

CORPORATE FRAUD
STATISTICS - 2021/2022

Fraud/Error Proven

Recommendation

Action Taken on Closed Cases

Number of Cases Currently Under
Investigation

Total Value of Fraud Proven / Error
Identified

Case Closures

No Fraud/Error Identified

Number of Cases Brought Forward
from 2020/21

Total Number of Referrals Received

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

ANNUAL SUMMARY 2021-22

Page 59

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

2.

Appendix A: Performance & Summary Tables for Quarter One
Internal Audit reports issued in period
Directorate

Review Title

Assurance Statement
Scope
The scope of the audit was to review:
 The progress made with the Selective Licensing
Scheme in the central area including the
procedures followed and whether these could be
strengthened;
 Enforcement and management of HMOs
including policies and procedures;
 The checks made on landlords’ compliance with
the Blackpool Standard;
 Enforcement of new legislation in relation to
energy certification; and
 Undertake a mini benchmarking exercise with
similar sized local authorities to identify areas for
improvement / best practice.
Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement

Chief
Executives /
Community
and
Environmental
Services

Regulation of Private
Sector Housing

Adequate
The pandemic has curtailed normal inspection and
enforcement action, however our review identified that
clear processes are in place to aid the improvement of
the private sector accommodation offering and on that
basis we consider that the controls in place are adequate.
Number of Recommendations Made
Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3

0
2
0

Management Response
Management will consider checking a selection of
landlords’ paperwork in relation to the Blackpool
Standard via email or through the post whilst the
inspection regime has been placed temporarily on hold.
Management will consider the development of a policy
for the enforcement of the Blackpool Standard that is the
most cost effective way to the Council.

Page 60

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Directorate

Review Title

Assurance Statement
Scope
Our agreed testing of the 2020-2021 submissions
involved undertaking the following compliance tests:







Children’s
Services

Trouble Families
Grant Certification
2020/21



For a sample of at last 10% of families per the
claim, check that the family was eligible to be
selected for the programme and met at least two
of the identified criteria;
For a sample of at least 10% of families per the
claim, check that the results have been attained
for each of the criteria identified for each of the
families tested;
Check that a minimum of 6 months sustainability
period has lapsed prior to the submission;
Review evidence of suitable school attendance
for all school age children or admission to further
education; and
Check for duplications in families being claimed
for in the current and previous submissions.

Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement
Adequate
Having carried out an appropriate level of testing we are
satisfied that the Troubled Families Payments by Results
returns submitted in June 2020, September 2020, January
2021 and March 2021 are satisfactory and comply with
the DCLG Financial Framework published in April 2020.
Number of Recommendations Made
Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3

0
0
0

Management Response
Management were pleased that the compliance audit did
not identify any issues.

Page 61

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Scope
The scope of our audit was to review:
 The progress of the Enterprise Zone and what
delays have been experienced due to Covid-19;
 Whether the risks associated with the Enterprise
Zone are adequately mitigated.
Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement
Adequate
Progress of the Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone has
been affected by a number of delays, particularly in
relation to road design and relocation of existing sports
pitches and the impact of Covid-19 restrictions imposed
has added further pressure over recent months. Despite
this, progress has been made in a number of areas as
outlined in the annual review report presented to
Executive in December 2020. The timely commencement
of the infrastructure works required is critical to enable
further progression of the project, so that the forecasted
future benefits can be realised.

Communication
and
Regeneration

Enterprise Zone

A number of key risks have been identified by the project
team and a risk register is in place. The risk register now
needs to be maintained and updated more frequently by
the project team so that actions being undertaken to
further mitigate the risks identified can be more closely
monitored, and the impact and likelihood of the risks
adjusted accordingly. We consider the controls in place
are adequate and have made several recommendations
to further strengthen the approach.
Number of Recommendations Made
Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3

0
3
2

Management Response
As part of the annual marketing evaluation, the
subsequent changes to the previously (pre-Covid)
planned approach will be outlined and evaluated. The
ongoing impact of Covid will be taken into consideration
and reflected in the 2021/22 Marketing Plan.
The recently updated risk register will be reviewed at
project team meetings so that risks are identified and
mitigated as soon as possible. The risk register will also
be updated to include the difficulties in recruiting and
retaining appropriately qualified and experienced Project
Managers for the scheme and the scenario based
approach to forecasting income levels will be factored
into the financial risks.

Page 62

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Directorate

Review Title

Assurance Statement
Scope
The scope of the audit was to review:
 The key local programmes including Positive
Steps into Work and Adult Learning;
 The work undertaken with local employers in
creating job opportunities and apprenticeship
schemes; and
 The impact of Covid 19 on learner numbers and
the recovery plans to be put in place.
Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement
Adequate
We consider that the controls in place are adequate with
some risks identified and assessed, with several changes
necessary. The recommendations made should address
these issues going forward and development of a strategy
will only strengthen the position further.

Communication
and
Regeneration

Skills and
Employment
Schemes

Number of Recommendations Made
Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3

0
1
3

Management Response
The service will explore ways to improve and strengthen
relationships between wholly owned companies and the
various employment and learning initiatives delivered by
Positive Steps & Adult Community Learning (ACL).
A skills and employment strategy will be developed in
support of the Council’s Priority 1 Goal – Economy.
Marketing of the ACL service will be reviewed and the use
of other mediums considered.
Further consideration will be given to alternative delivery
methods for ACL so that learner numbers improve and
expenditure levels remain within the grant allocation.
Accredited courses are now delivered earlier in the year
and delivery of Maths and English has increased to 3
times per week.

Page 63

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Directorate

Review Title

Assurance Statement
Scope
The scope of our audit was to review the selfmanagement agreement between Blackpool Council and
the Blackpool Federation of Allotments Association
(BFFA) to ensure the effective oversight, compliance with
the arrangements and assess the ‘fitness for purpose’ of
current arrangements.
Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement
Adequate
We consider that the controls in place are adequate with
some risk identified and several changes necessary. The
current operations do not reflect the arrangement set
out in the self-management agreement however they are
working well for both parties involved, therefore a review
of the self-management agreement would be advisable,
rather than reviewing current operational undertakings.
Number of Recommendations Made

Community
and
Environmental
Services

Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3
Allotments

0
0
4

Management Response
Operational oversight for the allotments will become the
responsibility of the Head of Parks, Leisure and Catering
Services.
The Head of Parks, Leisure and Catering Services, with the
Director of Community and Environmental Services and
relevant Cabinet Member will be included in annual
meetings with BFAA to improve transparency and ensure
that a formal agenda and minute is in place.
A review of the self-management agreement will take
place in conjunction with BFAA, to ensure it is still fit for
purpose and reflects current practices and expectations
of both parties. Specifically, the self-management
agreement will be amended to reflect an annual
submission of:





Independently verified accounts;
Clarity around the level of reserves that should
be held;
Minutes of the Annual General Meeting; and
Insurance Certificates.

A review of the BFAA Constitution will take place to
ensure it is fit for purpose and shared with all sites and
plot holders to ensure they are aware of the expectations
and processes.

Page 64

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Directorate

Review Title

Assurance Statement
Scope
The scope was to ensure that effective controls are in
place to minimise financial risk related to purchase cards.
Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement
Split Assurance
We consider that the controls in place for issuing and
distributing new purchase cards, amending card
restrictions, reporting management information and
managing the cards of leavers are adequate.
Our compliance testing identified that although guidance
and procedures are in place, a significant number of
purchase cardholders and authorisers are not
consistently adhering to the purchase card terms and
conditions. The level of controls in place for this process
have therefore been assessed as inadequate.
Number of Recommendations Made
Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3

Resources

Purchase Card
Financial Control
Assurance Testing

1
4
6

Management Response
The Section 151 Officer will contact all purchase
cardholders and authorisers reaffirming that they should
follow procedures and that non-compliance will result in
purchase cards being removed.
Advice will be sought from the bank and ICT services to
ensure that cyber security risks are mitigated.
The Transaction Limit Report will be reviewed annually
and the Purchasing Card User’s Manual will be updated
to make it explicit that split transactions are not
permitted.
A full list of purchase cardholders for each Directorate is
to be shared with each Director so that Directorates are
aware of purchase cards that can be used in emergency
situations.
Prepared bank reconciliation sheets will be scanned and
shared with the relevant Senior Accountant each month
to allow bank reconciliations to be timeously approved.
Inactive purchase cards are currently being reviewed by
an Assistant Corporate Procurement & Projects Officer.
This activity will be carried out annually and the outcome
will be reported to Directorates through end of year
reporting.

Page 65

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Directorate

Review Title

Assurance Statement
Scope
We reviewed the latest submission highlighting the
overall impact of COVID-19 had on the collection fund
and carried out testing to ascertain that the facts and
figures presented were accurate and in accordance with
issued guidance.
Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement
Good
We consider that the controls in place to be good with
some minor control improvements required mainly
concerning the maintenance of a clear audit trail. Our
testing revealed minor lapses in compliance with the
controls.

Resources

Impact of Covid-19
on the Collection
Fund

Number of Recommendations Made
Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3

0
0
5

Management Response
Management felt that a number of the best practice
recommendations would not be achievable due to the
regular changes to methodology and the additional time
it would take to implement these recommendations.
It was however acknowledged that there was a need for
succession planning, not just in relation to the reporting
on the collection fund, but the wider remit of the Finance
Team. This is currently being addressed as part of a
restructure of the service.

Page 66

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Directorate

Review Title

Assurance Statement
Scope
The scope of the audit included compliance testing in
relation to the data return submitted by the authority in
May 2021 to ensure the following:
 Eligible income loss that is covered by the
compensation scheme is claimed for;
 Income loss that falls outside the scope of the
compensation scheme is not claimed for;
 Sufficient justifications and evidence exists to
support each claim made.

Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement
Resources

Covid Income Return
(May)

Adequate
Having carried out an appropriate level of testing, we are
satisfied that the Covid Income Compensation Scheme
return submitted in May 2021 complies with the MHCLG
guidance.
Number of Recommendations Made
Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3

0
0
0

Management Response
Management were pleased that the compliance audit did
not identify any issues.

Page 67

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Directorate

Review Title

Assurance Statement
Scope
The audit testing which was carried out included:
 Governance
 Risk Management
 Financial Planning & Budgetary Control
 Payroll / HR Management
 Expenditure
 Income
 Unofficial Funds
 Security Of Assets
 Core Assurance Testing
Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement
Good
We consider that the controls in place are good with
most risks identified and assessed. Minor control
improvements have been recommended to further
strengthen the approach. Our testing revealed a
satisfactory level of in compliance with the controls.

Schools

St Johns CoE Primary
Schools

Number of Recommendations Made
Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3

0
0
3

Management Response
The Headteacher has recently completed a financial
benchmarking training course and will disseminate the
main content to Governors at a forthcoming meeting.
Benchmarking exercise and subsequent action plan is to
be included as an agenda item for Full Governing Board
meetings.
The school’s Financial Procedures have been updated to
formally document the scope of the use of the purchase
card. Financial Procedures are updated annually and
submitted to Governors for approval in the Summer
term.
The school’s administration officer will identify frequently
used suppliers for trips and visits. The Business Manager
will then look into options for setting them up as
suppliers on the Council’s finance system.

Page 68

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Directorate

Review Title

Assurance Statement
Scope
The audit testing which was carried out included:
 Governance
 Risk Management
 Financial Planning & Budgetary Control
 Payroll / HR Management
 Expenditure
 Income
 Unofficial Funds
 Security Of Assets
 Core Assurance Testing
Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement
Adequate
We consider that the controls in place are adequate with
some risks identified and assessed and several changes
necessary. We have made a number of recommendations
to further strengthen the approach. Our testing revealed
minor lapses in compliance with the controls.

Schools

Our Lady of
Assumption Primary
School

Number of Recommendations Made
Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3

0
1
4

Management Response
The Finance Manual will be reviewed on an annual basis
to ensure that financial procedures are up to date.
Benchmarking arrangements are discussed during
Autumn Term Resources Committee meetings. A
timetable is to be set out in October 2021 for the annual
review and scrutiny of financial benchmarking data to be
carried out.
A link to the schools financial benchmarking website has
now been published on the school’s website to allow
parents and stakeholders to access the school’s
Consistent Financial Reporting (CFR) statement of
income, expenditure and balances.
The governing body will be asked to consider the scope
for the use of the School Funds Account and steps taken
to ensure that it is used only for these purposes through
regular oversight.

Page 69

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Directorate

Review Title

Assurance Statement
Scope
The audit testing which was carried out included:
 Governance
 Risk Management
 Financial Planning & Budgetary Control
 Payroll / HR Management
 Expenditure
 Income
 Unofficial Funds
 Security Of Assets
 Core Assurance Testing
Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement

Schools

Educational Diversity

Good
We consider that the controls in place are good with most
risks identified and assessed. Minor control improvements
have been recommended to further strengthen the
approach. Our testing revealed a satisfactory level of in
compliance with the controls.
Number of Recommendations Made
Priority 1
Priority 2
Priority 3

0
0
3

Management Response
The Management Committee membership details will be
updated on the school website to define which subcommittees each governor is involved in.
A formal financial procedure manual will be documented
which outlines the operational processes for financial
management. The manual will be reviewed and approved
by the Management Committee.
The procedures for the disposal and write-off of ICT
equipment will be documented within the financial
procedure manual to be produced by the school.
Progress with Priority 1 audit recommendations
A number of priority one recommendations were implemented in the quarter including:



Vehicle Operators Licence x 1
Household Waste Recycling Centre x 1

A number of priority one recommendations which were due in the quarter have had their deadline
extended following discussion between the relevant Head of Service and the Head of Audit and Risk and
these include:



Community Engagement x 1
Water Self-Supply x 1

Page 70

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk




Managing the Leavers Process x 1
CCTV x 1

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
In line with best practice it has been agreed that the Council will report to the Audit Committee the
number of RIPA authorisations undertaken each quarter, which enables the Council to undertake
directed and covert surveillance. Between April 2021 and June 2021 the Council authorised no RIPA’s.
Insurance claims data
The graphs at Appendix B show the cost of liability insurance claims paid to date during each financial
year by the Council.

Page 71

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk
3.

Appendix B – Insurance Claim Payments by Financial Year

Total Number and Cost of Employer Liability Claims (Paid Amounts) as at 30.06.2021
£450,000

30

£400,000
25

Page 72

Total Cost of Claims

£300,000

20

£250,000
15
£200,000
£150,000

10

£100,000
5
£50,000
£0

Payments Made
Total Number of Claims
(By Notification Date)

20102011

20112012

20122013

20132014

20142015

20152016

20162017

20172018

20182019

20192020

20202021

£287,329 £301,170 £383,447 £345,395 £149,514 £173,921 £286,045 £299,961 £89,210 £58,467 £70,393
22

26

11

22

17

15

10

14

8

6

5

20212022
£8,946
1

0

Total Number of Claims

£350,000

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Total Number and Cost of Public Liability Claims (Paid) as at 30.06.2021
£1,000,000

160

£900,000

140

£800,000
120

Total Number of Claims

Page 73

Total Cost of Claims

£700,000

100

£600,000
£500,000

80

£400,000

60

£300,000
40
£200,000
20

£100,000
£0

Payments Made

Total Number of Claims
(By Notification Date)

201011

201112

201213

201314

201415

201516

201617

201718

201819

201920

202021

202122

£885,718 £669,626 £583,142 £729,041 £695,199 £808,739 £373,983 £248,806 £346,354 £118,272 £177,936 £124,731
142

91

101

129

75

58

70

61

62

43

29

29

0

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Total Number and Cost of Public Liability Highways Claims (Paid) as at 30.06.2021
£1,600,000

500
450

£1,400,000

400
£1,200,000

£1,000,000

300

£800,000

250
200

£600,000

150

£400,000
100
£200,000

£0

Payments Made
Total Number of Claims
(By Notification Date)

50

20102011

20112012

20122013

20132014

20142015

20152016

20162017

20172018

20182019

20192020

20202021

£1,460,5 £686,291 £934,112 £999,197 £936,676 £815,338 £282,325 £83,316 £167,924 £166,138 £21,369
288

392

455

237

223

215

122

84

96

63

65

20212022
£1,015
17

0

Total Number of Claims

Page 74

Total Cost Of Claims

350

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Total Number and Cost of Sensitive Claims/Notifications (Paid) as at 30.06.2021
£400,000

90

£350,000

80
70

Total Number of Claims

£300,000

Page 75

Total Cost of Claims

60

£250,000

50
£200,000

40
£150,000

30

£100,000

20

£50,000

£0

10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

Payments Made

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

Total Number of
Claims/Notifications
(By Notification Date)

0

0

0

0

37

4

13

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

£68,803 £103,722 £193,832 £336,667 £72,948
26

79

12

12

1

0

Blackpool Council: Audit and Risk

Total Number and Cost of Data Breach Claim (Paid) as at 30.06.2021
£1

14

£1
12
£1

Page 76

Total Cost of Claims

£1

8

£1
6

£0
£0

4

£0
2
£0
£0

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

Payments Made

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

£0

Total Number of
Claims/Notifications
(By Notification Date)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

13

8

1

0

Total Number of Claims

10

£1

Agenda Item 7
Report to:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer:

Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships

Relevant Cabinet Member:

Councillor L Williams

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2021

ANNUAL GOVERENANCE STATEMENT 2020/2021
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To provide the Audit Committee with the opportunity to review and approve the Annual
Governance Statement for 2020/2021.

2.0

Recommendation(s)

2.1

The Audit Committee is asked to consider and approve the draft Annual Governance
Statement for 2020/2021.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) require the Council to conduct a review on the
effectiveness of its system of internal control and publish an Annual Governance Statement
reporting on the review with the Statement of Accounts.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by
the Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:
None.

5.0

Council Priority:

5.1

The Annual Governance Statement is relevant to all Council priorities.

6.0

Background Information

6.1

Blackpool Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance
with the law and proper standards. It needs to ensure that public money is safeguarded,
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

6.2

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Delivering Good
Governance publication (2016) defines the various principles of good governance in the

Page 77

public sector and how they relate to each other and are defined as:


Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and
respecting the rule of law.



Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.



Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental
benefits.



Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes.



Developing the Council’s capacity, including its leadership and the individuals within
it.



Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public
financial management.



Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit, to deliver
effective accountability.

6.3

The governance framework at Blackpool Council comprises the systems and processes,
culture and values which the Council has adopted in order to deliver on the above principles.
The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies and
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness.

6.4

The governance framework incorporated into this report has been in place at Blackpool
Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of the approval for the
statement of accounts for that year.

6.5

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 7(a) – Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

Each of the actions identified in the Annual Governance Statement will be delivered within
the constraints of the agreed budget for 2021/2022.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) require the Council to conduct a review, at least
once a year, on the effectiveness of its system of internal control and include an Annual
Governance Statement reporting on the review with the Statement of Accounts.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

Risk management and the control environment have been considered throughout the draft

Page 78

No

of the Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021.
11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

The Council’s approach to equality and diversity is set out as part of the Annual Governance
Statement with a key action for 2021/2022 to roll out Public Sector Equality Duty training to
officers and elected members.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

None.

13.0

Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

13.1

A Good Governance Group was established in October 2016 and has led on the review of
effectiveness and the production of the Annual Governance Statement, including reviewing
the 2019/2020 statement to ensure that governance issues identified have subsequently
been addressed. This group is chaired by the Director of Governance and Partnerships and
attended by the Head of Audit and Risk, Head of Democratic Governance, Transformation
Manager, Head of Legal Services, Head of ICT, Chief Accountant, Head of Information
Governance and the Head of Organisation and Workforce Development.

13.2

A workshop was held on 9 September 2021 with representation from Scrutiny, Audit and
Standards and facilitated by the Head of Democratic Governance, Head of Audit and Risk and
Transformation Manager.

13.3

The Corporate Leadership Team was required to complete a control self-assessment
questionnaire providing assurance that their directorates were compliant with a number of
key controls.

13.4

Discussions on the Annual Governance Statement with the Leader of the Council and Chair of
Audit Committee took place on 27 September 2021 prior to the document being considered
by Audit Committee.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 7(a)

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Annual Governance Statement
2020/2021

Page 81

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Acknowledgement of Responsibility
Blackpool Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper
standards. It needs to ensure that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically,
efficiently and effectively.
The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) require the Council to conduct a review, at least once a year, on the
effectiveness of its system of internal control and include an Annual Governance Statement reporting on the
review with the Statement of Accounts.

The Principles of Good Governance
The CIPFA Delivering Good Governance publication (2016) defines the various principles of good governance in
the public sector and how they relate to each other and are defined as:


Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and respecting the rule of
law.



Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.



Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits.



Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes.



Developing the Council’s capacity, including its leadership and the individuals within it.



Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management.



Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit, to deliver effective accountability.

Blackpool Council Code of Governance and Framework
During 2020/21 the Council developed a Code of Governance and Governance Framework which was considered
by the Audit Committee in April 2021. The Code of Corporate Governance sets out the principles of good
governance and what arrangements it has in place to ensure that the Council conducts its business in accordance
with the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used
economically, efficiently and effectively.
This governance framework which is a part of the Code of Governance has been used to compile this Annual
Governance Statement for Blackpool Council to deliver on the aforementioned principles, for the year ended 31st
March 2021 and up to the date of the approval for the statement of accounts for that year. The system of
internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It
cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

Page 82

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Key Challenges
This section sets out key challenges faced by the Council in the year which have impacted on the governance
arrangements in place.

Impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic
The Council’s governance processes were reviewed during the Covid–19 crisis and a number of temporary
changes to these processes were made to address the urgent requirements of the situation. An urgent Council
Executive meeting was held on 23rd March 2020 which agreed that a major incident should be declared for the
Council in relation to Covid-19. The Council Executive meeting agreed to a temporary delegation of powers to the
Council Chief Executive, or in his absence the Council’s Director of Resources, on issues caused by the Covid-19
pandemic and to protect citizens in relation to public safety. To mitigate against any future emergencies, the
Council agreed that the Chief Executive (or in their absence a nominated deputy) can exercise any urgent Council
decision required relating to a major incident, including power to act outside of the Forward Plan, budget and
policy frameworks and Contracts Procedure Rules, following consultation with appropriate persons as set out in
the Constitution.
All Council services pulled together further embedding a culture of cross-departmental working in order to
respond effectively to the pandemic and continue to support the residents and businesses across the town.
In response to Covid–19, the Council invoked its established Business Continuity Management Framework. The
Corporate Business Continuity Plan includes the Council’s critical activities list, incorporating statutory
responsibilities and recovery timescales. The critical activities list was used to assess essential Council resource
requirements during Covid–19. The Corporate Leadership Team determined the emergency response impact on
service delivery and necessary service prioritisation.
In the first three months the Corporate Leadership Team met on a daily basis to discuss the critical activities list
and ensure that resources were appropriately deployed to those services which could not fail. The Senior
Leadership Team met virtually each week so that important information about the pandemic and the Council’s
response could be shared. Each week the Chief Executive and his management team also briefed the political
Group Leaders and both MPs on the decisions taken and those to be taken each week. Weekly meetings were
also held with the Trade Unions to keep them up to date on employee matters and to listen to, and respond
quickly to, any concerns. The frequency of these meetings has reduced during 2020/21 however the forums have
remained in place to ensure the quick and effective sharing of information and to enable actions to be taken as
soon as possible and necessary.
The decisions taken during the initial stages of the pandemic were logged on the Council’s Incident Decision Log
and an oversight was maintained to ensure appropriate decision making protocols were followed that that risks
were managed throughout.
The Council’s response to the Covid–19 pandemic was and continues to be co-ordinated with partners through
the Lancashire Resilience Forum. This includes co-ordination with all the local authorities across Lancashire and
with statutory agencies including Lancashire Constabulary, Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service and North West
Ambulance Service.

Page 83

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

The Council took on new responsibilities due to Covid–19 in relation to paying urgent grants to businesses and has
provided support to local businesses to help them to access the grants that they are entitled to and the payment
of a wide range of grants has continued during 2020/21. In addition to grants to businesses the Council has
received a number of new revenue streams during 2020/21 due to additional funding being provided by the
Government to fund issues such as infection control measures and to compensate for a proportion of lost income.
These additional revenue streams have resulted in additional challenges in terms of ensuring compliance with the
terms of the allocations and ensuring that these are correctly accounted for in the 2020/21 accounts.
Extensive targeted support to the community was provided through establishing Community Hubs and working
with voluntary sector agencies in the provision of a range of services such as befriending services for residents in
isolation were implemented.
The Council has proactively engaged with residents during the pandemic using a range of channels including social
media and it will continue to build on this engagement throughout the rest of the pandemic and going forward.
The Council will also continue with its Channel Change agenda to build on these connections with residents,
partnerships and businesses to provide support during the recovery phase of the pandemic.
As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, a monthly recovery report is being produced for Corporate Leadership
Team providing information on the impact of the pandemic on the residents of Blackpool as well as the economy
of the town and this helps inform decisions which the Council make around recovery from the pandemic.
The disruption caused by the pandemic has prompted a mini-review of the Council Plan to ensure that
unavoidable disruption to the timescales of major projects is reflected, and additional work needed to address
the ongoing issues caused is captured
The Council quickly adapted to new ways of working and controls were established relating to many Council staff
working from home due to Covid-19 including the introduction of a new Virtual Private Network to enable an
increased number of staff to securely access the Councils network from home. Likewise, the use of Zoom was
introduced early to enable the broadcast of public accessible meetings. Work is now underway to determine
what ‘returning to normal’ will look like with the potential of a hybrid working model adopted which will allow
staff more flexibility in terms of working from home and time spent in the office.
Significant work has been undertaken to ensure that the Council is a Covid Secure workplace to enable those staff
who need to be in work to undertake their roles safely. This continues to be reviewed in light of changes to
Government Guidance. Procedures were established or flexed to address the Human Resource implications of
the Covid-19 situation. A detailed employee support offer and sources of advice for staff was implemented. Staff
communications and changes to the use of staff resources have been addressed through employee frequently
asked questions published on the Hub. More proactive publicity of staff compliments is helping to increase
morale in services that have been struggling due to the pressures of the pandemic.
As the pandemic continued throughout the year steps were taken to ensure take-up of PCR and Lateral Flow
Testing and encouragement of vaccine roll-out across the town. In addition, contact tracing was picked up by the
Council to enable the quick and efficient establishment of ‘contacts’ to help reduce transmission in the town.
During periods where lockdown measures were relaxed the Public Protection Team had a key role in ensuring
that local businesses were operating in a Covid Secure way and the use of Covid Marshalls was introduced.

Page 84

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

The Council responded quickly and efficiently to changes in Government Policy and the latest public health advice
on infection control in order to keep our staff, residents and visitors to the town safe. This work continues into
2021/2022 as the world continues to live and manage a pandemic outbreak. Lessons learned to date have been
considered during 2020/21 and will continue to do so over the new financial year.

Exit from the European Union
The Council has been working to prepare for EU Exit which is being overseen by a working group of officers from
across the council, working in conjunction with the Lancashire Resilience Forum (LRF). The Council has continued
to engage on EU Exit related matters through a number of regional and national forums including working with
the Local Government Association (LGA) and various Whitehall departments. Due to the preparations which
were undertaken there has been minimal impact on the Council as a result of the UK leaving the European Union.

The Governance Framework
The key elements of the structures and processes that comprise Blackpool Council’s governance arrangements
are summarised below.

Code of Conduct and Behaviours
Codes of Conduct are in place that define standards of behaviours for elected members and officers. Adherence
to these is a key part of good governance. These are further supported by the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy,
Registers of Interests and Gifts and Hospitality Policies.
Processes are in place to deal with non-compliance through the Council’s Disciplinary Policy for Officers and the
Monitoring Officer and/or Standards complaints procedure for Elected Members.
A Leadership Charter is in place which aims to bring to life the vision for the Council’s workforce as outlined in the
Workforce Strategy 2016-2020 and it has been embedded with the Individual Performance Appraisal Process
(IPA). There are plans in place to refresh this during 2021/22 based on feedback from the staff survey which is
being undertaken.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Code of Conduct for Members

Blackpool Council constitution | Part 5a Code of conduct for members

Officer Code of Conduct

Blackpool Council constitution | Part 5b - Officer code of conduct

Registers
of
Members’
Allowances and registers of Interest (blackpool.gov.uk)
Allowances and Interests
Whistleblowing Policy

Agenda for Standards Committee on Thursday, 20th July, 2017, 6.00 pm
(blackpool.gov.uk)

Page 85

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Organisational Culture
The Council’s organisational culture is driven by the Corporate Leadership Team and Executive and a set of values
have been defined, previously agreed by Council which all employees and elected members are expected to
adhere to and these include:


We are accountable for delivering on the promises we make and take responsibility for our actions and
the outcomes achieved
 We are committed to being fair to people and treat everybody we meet with dignity and respect
 We take pride in delivering quality services that are community focussed and are based on listening
carefully to what people need
 We act with integrity and we are trustworthy in all our dealings with people and we are open about the
decisions we make and the services we offer
 We are compassionate, caring, hard-working and committed to delivering the best services that we can
with a positive and collaborative attitude.
The Director of Children’s Services and her staff are embedding a new culture across Blackpool ‘Blackpool Families
Rock’. Our commitment is to work with families not ‘do things to them’ with the child at the heart of everything
that we do and to work with families at the lowest possible level to prevent their needs from escalating to a higher
level.
To deliver its ambitions the Council needs to be efficient and resilient. An entrepreneurial culture has been
developed across the Council and continues to be embedded in order to develop different ways of working and
maximising our changes of achieving our outcomes. Examples of this include our Wholly-Owned Companies,
bidding for funding, working in partnership, the business loans fund and making savings whilst transforming our
services.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Senior Employees

Blackpool Council | Senior employees and officers

Council strategies, policies and
Blackpool Council | Council strategies policies and plans
plans
Working Well with Children and Early Help and Thresholds for Intervention | Blackpool Safeg...
(blackpoolsafeguarding.org.uk)
Families in Lancashire

Ethical and Responsible Governance
At its meeting of 26th June 2019, the Council passed a motion to declare a Climate Emergency. The primary
commitments made are to make the Council’s activities net-zero carbon by 2030 and achieve 100% clean energy
across the Council’s full range of functions by the same date.

Page 86

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

The declaration also covers leadership to achieve a reduction in emissions across the town generally, engagement
with the public and stakeholders, effecting a culture change across our organisation, wholly-owned companies,
staff and partners and taking a role to exert wider influence beyond Blackpool on this issue.
A steering group has been established to lead this issue internally, which includes representation from the Council’s
wholly-owned companies and an initial action plan is in place. A Citizen’s Assembly held across four sessions in
January and February 2021 brought a representative cross-section of the public to learn about the issues and make
recommendations, which are currently being assessed in terms of feasibility and fit with the agenda. Along with
work to identify a carbon reduction roadmap for the town and organisation, these pieces of work will result in the
development of a longer-term action plan. A new team is being created and recruited to, ensuring that progress
can be made at pace, with new performance indicators being identified to check progress.
The Council aims to fulfil its legal obligations on equalities. We understand that fairness means making reasonable
adjustments for people and groups so they can get access to services and support. Our approach to this is set out
in our equality goals, which are reviewed every 4 years.
All new Council plans and strategies are reviewed to make sure they are tailored to the needs of groups with
protected characteristics. Going beyond this, in the course of our work we also consider how to contribute to
eliminating discrimination, harassment and victimisation; how to advance equality of opportunity and how we can
help different groups of people get along together.
Our equality objectives aim to get more people to tell us they experience fair treatment by Council services; to
make our workforce representative of our communities, with more people from diverse backgrounds involved in
decision making at every level; that equality and diversity is embedded in staff culture; and that we celebrate
growing diversity and increase respect and understanding for all.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Climate Emergency Declaration

Blackpool Council climate emergency | Climate emergency

Workforce Diversity Report

Blackpool Council | Workforce diversity report

Gender Pay Gap Report

Blackpool Council Gender pay gap report 2020

Commitment to Openness, Communication and Consultation
The Council complies with the requirements of the Transparency Agenda and provides a range of information in
the public domain through its website.
The Council adopts a priority campaign planning approach using a variety of different marketing communications
channels. Key messages are also communicated to residents in the ‘Your Blackpool’ publication which due to the
pandemic has been largely delivered as an ‘e’ version rather than directly delivered to households. The Council
has enhanced its use of social media and has started to move towards greater use of these platforms as part of a
strategic approach to communications. The early part of the pandemic also saw more innovative ways of
communication such as key messages on ‘bin tags’ distributed via the Council’s wholly owned refuse collection
company Blackpool Waste Services Ltd.

Page 87

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

The Council continue to increase the direct communication and engagement with local businesses so that they
have a detailed understanding of the benefits of the regeneration work that the Council is undertaking. This is
being done via the Council’s own communication channels as well as utilising partner organisations including
StayBlackpool, VisitBlackpool, the Town Centre BID and the Blackpool Business Leadership Group.
The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 allowed meetings to be held virtually during the
pandemic. This increased access to the public with all formal meetings available to view live and after the event
on the Council’s You Tube page. The public were also able to continue to ‘attend’ and speak at committee and full
Council meetings through this medium.
The Council has in place a system to respond to Freedom of Information requests and compliance with the
timelines is managed by the Information Governance Team and reported through to the Corporate Leadership
Team by the Data Protection Officer. The team also prepared for a consensual inspection by the Information
Commissioner’s Office in April 2021 which saw ‘high’ assurance given in areas for freedom of information,
governance and accountability and information security.
Consultation and engagement with the public takes place by the lead service area, which can access the Council’s
in-house cost recovery research team Infusion Research, for wider ranging or more complex consultation
exercises.
The Council last undertook a resident’s survey in 2018 and was due to undertake one in 2020. However, the
impact of the pandemic has meant that the slot for the survey in May could not be used. It is important to ensure
the data is comparable and this would normally mean that the survey should be undertaken at the same time of
the year. Due to the ongoing impact of the pandemic, the survey has been postponed until May 2022.
Structures are in place to ensure consultation with other public and voluntary sector agencies through the
Fairness Commission and also local businesses through the Blackpool Business Leadership Group.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Council Agendas and Minutes

Browse Meetings, 2021 (blackpool.gov.uk)

Online Council meetings

Blackpool Council - YouTube

Open Government Licence

Open Government Licence (blackpool.gov.uk)

Transparency and Open Data

Transparency and open data (blackpool.gov.uk)

Freedom of Information

Freedom of information (blackpool.gov.uk)

Developing, Communicating and Translating the Vision
A thorough review of the Council Plan was undertaken in 2018 to ensure it continues to address the key issues
facing the town. As a result, the Council Plan 2019-2024 sets out the vision for Blackpool to continue to be ‘The
UK’s number one family resort with a thriving economy that supports a happy and healthy community who are
proud of this unique town’. The two priorities remain the same as the previous iteration of the plan:

Page 88

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021



The Economy: Maximising Growth and Opportunity across Blackpool.



Communities: Creating Stronger Communities and Increasing Resilience.

Beneath each priority the plan details the key challenges faced by Blackpool and the key projects and schemes
which will be implemented to address these issues. The Council Plan seeks to address the big issues and policy
drivers facing local government. The concept of organisational resilience – ensuring that the organisation is
capable of delivering the priorities, meeting its legal requirements, and maintaining sustainability into the future is captured throughout the plan, with the detail included in the Council’s wider policy framework. Given the
impact of the pandemic, the existing plan has been rolled forward, with the actions continuing, but a full review
being planned for Autumn 2021. The Council priorities feed into directorate business plans and are a key tool for
managers to use when developing business plans. The business plans then feed Into Individual Performance
Appraisals (IPA).
The Council has a key role in working with partner organisations in order to translate the vision for Blackpool into
deliverable actions. This has been particularly demonstrated through the core coordination role that the Council
took on board in response to the pandemic from March 2020 to ensure that the local community was effectively
supported by a wide range of organisations.
The Council’s Annual Staff Conference was not able to be held in the usual way this last year but the Chief
Executive and Leader of the Council hosted a ‘thank you’ event for staff in December 2020 marking all the hard
work, dedication and commitment displayed by staff, as a result of the pandemic.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Council Plan 2019 to 2024

Blackpool Council Plan 2019 to 2024

Performance Management
A Policy Framework is in place which sets out the corporate strategies and plans which are in place. Corporate
resource is available to support services on the development of strategies and shaping them in line with
corporate objectives.
The Council’s performance management system is now well established, with strategic performance reported to
Corporate Leadership Team, members of the Executive and the Scrutiny Leadership Board, whilst local
performance indicators are managed through the business planning process. The suite of Council Plan headline
KPIs will be reviewed so that some of the measures around post-COVID recovery can be incorporated into
ongoing performance reporting. This review will also look to incorporate KPIs for a new corporate priority around
organisational resilience, as recommended in the Corporate Peer Challenge which took place in March 2020.
In March 2019, the Secretary of State appointed a DfE Commissioner for Children’s Services in Blackpool,
following an inadequate judgement by Ofsted of the Council’s Children’s Services from its inspection in November
2018. One of the recommendations of the Commissioner was to establish a strategic and overarching Children
and Families Partnership. This Partnership Board was established in January 2020 and meets quarterly. It is
chaired by the Chief Executive and has an emerging set of principles and priorities around inclusion, literacy and
the social impact of poverty. The Children’s Improvement Board has been replaced by the Getting to Good Board;

Page 89

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

this partnership meets bi-monthly, monitoring progress and driving improvement in performance and practice in
children’s social care.
Following the HMIP inspection of youth offending services in October 2018, Blackpool's Youth Offending
Partnership developed an improvement plan to address the recommendations from the inspection. The actions
from this improvement plan were delivered throughout 2019/20. In February 2020, a peer review was conducted
by the Youth Justice Sector Improvement Partnership, the outcome of which has informed the development of a
new strategic improvement plan for 2020/21. The partnership is currently awaiting confirmation of the
arrangements for the next inspection by HMIP. Alongside this, the partnership undertook a self-assessment
against the new national standards for youth justice services (as required by the Youth Justice Board) which has
led to the development of action plans for each of the national standards themes. Senior officers from across the
partnership have been assigned as theme leads to drive delivery of these action plans. The delivery of the
improvement plan and theme action plans is supported by a robust performance and quality assurance
framework to ensure that improvements in performance and practice are embedded within services.
In order to improve performance the Council participates in peer reviews and benchmarking exercises to learn
from others and to ensure that services delivered are value for money. The LGA undertook a Corporate Peer
Challenge exercise for the Council in March 2020, as part of its work to strengthen the local government sector.
The challenge focussed on the Council’s understanding of the local context to set an appropriate vision and
priorities, provision of effective leadership of external stakeholders, financial planning and viability, organisational
leadership and governance, and capacity to deliver. Reflecting on our last Peer Challenge in 2014, the Council
developed a position statement outlining our strengths and challenges and hosted the LGA’s team for a week of
interviews and focus groups. The final feedback was delayed due to the team comprising of senior officers and
members at the forefront of responding to the pandemic. Initial feedback focused around three key themes
arising related to climate change, medium term financial sustainability and communications. A final report will
shortly be produced and that will be published along with an action plan demonstrating how the council has
responded to the recommendations. In addition, the Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 includes reviews of the three
identified areas to gain assurance that adequate progress is being made.
The Libraries service invited an LGA team in for a similar process as part of the development of their Libraries
Ambition Plan in June 2019. Commenting positively on the extensive research underpinning the plan, they judged
the Plan to be achievable, and advised on ways of further strengthening the likelihood of the plan being
implemented effectively. This fed into the ultimate approval of the Plan by the executive in June 2020. The process
of internal and external consultation / review and scrutiny of this plan prior to approval is an example of good
practice and a model which other services wishing to significantly transform will be encouraged to adopt going
forward.
The Individual Performance Appraisal process which is in place is part of the Council’s wider approach to
performance management. The IPA process is an important tool designed to provide an opportunity to establish
and understand expectations and to evaluate performance in order to help employees develop to their full
potential. The IPA process is not a replacement for day to day people management so in addition employees are
supported by their line managers and should be mentored, coached and directed according to their individual
needs. This may come through regular one to one meetings, formal supervision meetings, team meetings and

Page 90

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

informal feedback. During the pandemic flexibility in undertaking IPAs was given to those services which were most
impacted by the pandemic to enable them to focus on key priorities.
The Leadership Charter supports the Council’s priorities and values and is included in the Manager’s IPA template.
The Council has undertaken two Leadership surveys to benchmark performance and progress against the new
Charter and this has evidenced that from a good baseline there has been further improvement. Going forward the
plan is to undertake this survey at regular intervals.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Policy Framework
Children’s
Inspections

Service

Youth
Offending
Inspection

Blackpool Council constitution | Part 8 - Strategic planning process
Ofsted

Ofsted | Blackpool Borough Council

Team An
inspection
of
youth
(justiceinspectorates.gov.uk)

offending

services

in

Blackpool

Roles and Responsibilities
Responsibilities and functions are in place for each Council committee including Licensing, Planning, Standards,
Scrutiny Committees and the Audit Committee. These are reviewed annually with any changes made at the
Council’s Annual Meeting to ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose. The Executive has agreed a set of
criteria relating to the levels of decision making within the Executive Framework which provide clarity and
consistency for decision makers.
All Council Officers, including the Corporate Leadership Team, have a job description which set out their roles and
responsibilities. Annually, through the Individual Performance Appraisal process individual objectives are set for
each officer which align with their job description and the Business Plan for the Service in which they work.
The Corporate Leadership Team has been extended fortnightly to involve key Heads of Service in the decision
making process. Steps continue to be taken to address some of the concerns with ‘hard to recruit to posts’ such
as Children’s Social Workers. In addition, there is ongoing investment in digital technologies to help improve
capacity across the Council.
The Council’s Constitution, including the Scheme of Delegation, sets out the arrangements and protocols which
are in place to enable effective decision making within the authority.
The Council has in place effective arrangements to discharge the Head of Paid Service function and this role is
undertaken by the Chief Executive.
The Council has designated a Monitoring Officer and Deputy with appropriate qualifications and experience. The
Monitoring Officer has the specific duty to ensure that the Council, its officers and its Elected Members maintain
the highest standards in all they do and is responsible to the Council for ensuring that governance procedures are
followed and all applicable statutes and regulations are complied with.

Page 91

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Responsibilities for Functions

Part 3 - Responsibility for functions (blackpool.gov.uk)

Responsibilities for Functions - Part 3 - Responsibility for functions (blackpool.gov.uk)
Officers

Decision Making
The Constitution sets out the functions and responsibilities of the Council, the Executive and committees.
Included in this are the delegation arrangements adopted by the Council and the Executive and this is reviewed
on a regular basis.
All Executive decisions contain all relevant policy implications including financial, risk management, human
resources, equality analysis, legal, sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations and links to
Council priorities. All Executive decisions are subject to finance and legal approval before they are taken forward
for a decision to be made. The Monitoring Officer or a designated representative, receives all decisions before
they are processed and therefore is able to check the robustness of data quality prior to a decision being
submitted for formal approval.
Cabinet Member and relevant Officer Decisions are published to meet transparency requirements and inform the
public.
A framework for undertaking compliance checks to ensure that decision making processes are appropriate has
been developed and these reviews are jointly carried out by Internal Audit and Democratic Governance and the
findings reported to Audit Committee.
During the 2020/ 2021 as a result of the pandemic, the Executive and the Council both reviewed the ‘urgency’
decision making procedures and adapted them to allow decision making by the Chief Executive with appropriate
consultation and feedback to Cabinet Members in relation to the Executive and Group Leaders in relation to
Council. The May 2020 Council meeting also provided a first opportunity for full feedback and accountability in
relation to the early months of the pandemic. The Director of Public Health has also provided regular feedback to
the Council meetings during 2020/ 2021 and produced weekly updates via the Council’s you tube channel and
social media platforms.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Agendas and Minutes

Browse Meetings, 2020 (blackpool.gov.uk)
Browse Meetings, 2021 (blackpool.gov.uk)

Executive and Cabinet Member
, 1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021 (blackpool.gov.uk)
Decisions
Officer Decisions

Officer decisions, 1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021 (blackpool.gov.uk)

Page 92

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Compliance with relevant Laws, Regulations, Internal Policies and Procedures
A wide range of corporate policies and procedures are in place to ensure compliance with laws and regulations.
These cover all key areas including financial management, human resources, procurement, contract management,
risk management, business continuity, data protection, health and safety management arrangements and
safeguarding arrangements.
Internal and external audit arrangements are in place to provide a reasonable level of assurance on compliance
with the Council’s system of internal control.
The Council has obtained PSNN, PCI and N3 security compliance so that it can effectively share data with other
organisations including the National Health Service and Department for Work and Pensions. There is an ongoing
review of cyber risks and progress against this is monitored by the Audit Committee. An ICT Security Policy is in
place.
An Information Governance Team is in place managed by the Head of Service whom carries out the function of
the Statutory Data Protection Officer and works with Council services to ensure that personal information is
appropriately safeguarded in line with GDPR.
A Corporate Procurement and Projects Team supports Heads of Services and Service Managers to undertake
market engagement for those goods, services and works which are delivered through third-party organisations.
Procedures are in place to ensure compliance with the Public Contract Regulations Act 2015, European Union
Procurement Directive 2014 and the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. Standard Control Documents are used
to ensure consistency of practice, demonstrate value for money and to maximise social value through tendering
and contract arrangements.
Mandatory training is delivered in a number of ways including a mandatory training pack for non IT users and
through the iPool online system for IT users. This ensures casual, temporary and permanent employees are aware
of legislative requirements. Reporting tools have been developed to enable Managers to monitor completion of
mandatory training courses and completion of Individual Performance Appraisals in real time.
The Council’s Monitoring Officer has a role in ensuring that the Council acts within the remit of relevant law and
regulations and that a robust democratic process ensures the application of the Constitution. The Monitoring
Officer is responsible for the in-house legal team which serves as an additional control to ensure that the Council
operates within the constraints of the law and the team hold LEXCEL accreditation.
A number of arrangements are in place to deal with potential non-compliance and these include a Corporate
Complaints Panel and Serious Case Reviews. These are chaired independently of the service which has breached
requirements to ensure that objective decisions can be taken.
A Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Panel is in place which reviews any positive DBS’s in relation to preemployment checks to ensure Council wide robust and consistent decision making.
A Health and Safety Team is in place which provide advice, support and guidance to managers across the Council
regarding compliance with health and safety legislation. The team is responsible for issuing the Corporate
Arrangements which all employees should adhere too. The Health and Safety Team also undertake a programme
of audits to ensure that managers maintain their manuals and comply with statutory requirements.

Page 93

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Corporate Customer Feedback
Policy

Corporate Customer Feedback Policy - 0819 - FINAL VERSION - V1.1
(blackpool.gov.uk)

Data Protection and GDPR

Blackpool Council data protection registration | GDPR

Financial Management
The Council has an appropriately qualified and experienced designated Chief Finance Officer who holds Section
151 responsibilities and a deputy has also been appointed. The Chief Finance Officer has arrangements in place
for financial management, financial reporting and value for money which is assessed annually by the Council’s
external auditors.
Financial Regulations are in place which are supported by a Scheme of Delegation to ensure that managers are
aware of the level of expenditure they are able to authorise.
The Council sets a lawful annual budget and is part way through a six-year Medium Term Financial Sustainability
Strategy which runs to the end of the 2021/22 financial year. The associated plan is updated on an annual basis
to enable early planning on the financial position to take place. A full review of this strategy is planned for
2021/22.
Monthly financial monitoring reports, starting from month 0, are reported to the Corporate Leadership Team, the
Executive and Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny Committee.
The Council’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA
Statement on the Role of the Chief Finance Officer in Local Government (2016).
The Council facilitates a Public Inspection of the Accounts and publishes details of all payment transactions over
and above the minimum requirements of the Transparency Code.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Statutory Chief Finance Officer
(holding Section 151
responsibilities)

Blackpool Council | Senior employees and officers

Annual Budgets

Annual budgets (blackpool.gov.uk)

Budget and Policy Framework

Blackpool Council constitution | Part 4c Budget and policy framework

Financial Procedure Rules

Blackpool Council constitution | Part 4f - Financial procedure rules

Audit Arrangements
An Audit Committee is in place which is independent of the scrutiny function. As a full committee of the Council it
is able to discharge all the core functions of an Audit Committee outlined in the CIPFA Audit Committee: Practical

Page 94

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Guidance for Local Authorities (2018), from which the Committee has adopted the model terms of reference.
Over the past twelve months the Chair of the Audit Committee has continued to raise the profile of the Audit
Committee and has presented a report to Full Council on the work of the Committee and has proactively
requested Chief Officers and Head of Services to attend Committee to be challenged and held to account where
controls issues have been identified. Two independent member positions have co-opted onto the Committee to
enhance the robustness of the Committee and provide valuable experience and support to the Committee in its
work.
Modular training is delivered prior to each Audit Committee meeting to ensure that members have the
appropriate skills and knowledge to effectively discharge their duties.
The Council has an internal audit team who prepare an Annual Internal Audit Plan which is approved by the
Corporate Leadership Team and the Audit Committee. This includes a balance of risk and compliance work. The
audit opinion and assurance statement for each audit is reported quarterly to the Audit Committee.
In 2019/20 the Head of Audit and Risk provided an Annual Audit Opinion that sufficient assurance work was
undertaken to provide a reasonable conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment
and that the overall control environment at the Council is adequate. The exciting yet challenging regeneration
programme being implemented by the Council increases risk both in terms of project delivery and financial risks.
The financial position of the Council’s wholly owned companies also creates a number of financial sustainability
risks which need to be closely monitored going forward. The Covid-19 pandemic also impacted on the control
environment and this will continue to be monitored during 2021/22 and steps taken to manage risk as effectively
as possible given the challenging circumstances with a particular focus on recovery and impact on the
sustainability of the Council. Where weaknesses were identified through internal audit work the team have
worked with management to agree appropriate remedial actions and a timescale for improvement.
The Council’s internal audit arrangements conform to the governance requirements the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards. An external review of the Council’s compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
took place in 2016/17 which confirmed conformance with the standards. The recommendations made in the
external assessment report have been incorporated into the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme for
the service.
External audit arrangements are in place and representatives are invited to attend Audit Committee to present
the findings of their work and raise any concerns which they may have.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Internal Audit Charter

Appendix 7(a) - Agenda for Audit Committee on Thursday, 12th March, 2020,
6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Internal Audit Plan

Appendix 6(a) - Agenda for Audit Committee on Thursday, 12th March, 2020,
6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Annual Audit Opinion

Appendix 7(a) - Agenda for Audit Committee on Thursday, 29th April, 2021,
6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Page 95

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme

Appendix 8(a) - Agenda for Audit Committee on Thursday, 29th April, 2021,
6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Risk Management
A Corporate Risk Management Group is in place to coordinate and promote risk management activity in line with
the Council’s Risk Management Framework 2021-2025. It is supported by directorate and thematic risk
management groups.
All directorates have nominated risk champions to promote best practice in their areas and ensure that service
level risk registers are in place and that risk registers are developed for major projects and partnerships where
appropriate.
The Strategic Risk Register is reviewed by the Corporate Leadership Team and considered by the Audit Committee
annually. Chief Officers identified in the Strategic Risk Register are required to attend Audit Committee to explain
how the risks are being managed and what further mitigating controls may be required.
Risk management should be considered for all decisions made by the Council and these are evidenced in the
dedicated section on the decision making template.
A Corporate Business Continuity Plan and Critical Activities List are in place and this is supported by service level
business continuity plans.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Risk Management Framework

Appendix 8(a) - Agenda for Audit Committee on Thursday, 21st January, 2021,
6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Strategic Risk Register

Appendix 9(b) - Agenda for Audit Committee on Thursday, 12th March, 2020,
6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Business Continuity Framework

Appendix 9(a) - Agenda for Audit Committee on Thursday, 21st January, 2021,
6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Counter Fraud and Anti-Corruption Arrangements
The Council has developed counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements in line with the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption. A Fraud Prevention Charter has been developed and
approved by the Corporate Leadership Team and the Audit Committee. Any suspected instance of fraud or
corruption should be reported to the Head of Audit and Risk so that an appropriate investigation into the matter
can be undertaken.
A dedicated Corporate Fraud Team is in place which deals with a range of corporate fraud issues and proactive
work has commenced on high risk areas such as insurance fraud, blue badges and council tax. However, the focus

Page 96

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

of the teams work during the year is pre and post assurance work on the various business lockdown and restart
grants which have been made available by government as a result of the pandemic.
The Council has appropriate procedures in place to deal with the risk of money laundering and also to raise
awareness of the Bribery Act and ensure that appropriate controls are in place to reduce the risk. An Anti-Money
Laundering Policy is in place and this is supported by an iPool training course for employees to complete.
The Council participates in the National Fraud Initiative and progress against this and outcomes, are reported to
Audit Committee on quarterly basis.
A corporate group is in place to review the Council’s use of covert surveillance and to ensure compliance with the
Regulatory of Investigatory Powers Act (2000).
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Fraud Prevention Charter

Appendix 8(a) - Agenda for Audit Committee on Thursday, 12th March, 2020,
6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Anti-Money Laundering Policy

Appendix 5(a) - Agenda for Audit Committee on Thursday, 8th November,
2018, 6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Covert Surveillance Policy

Appendix 6(a) - Agenda for Audit Committee on Wednesday, 27th November,
2019, 6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Scrutiny Arrangements
Three Scrutiny Committees are in place which reflect the Council’s priorities namely a Children and Young
People’s Scrutiny Committee, Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny Committee and an Adults Social Care
and Health Scrutiny Committee. A Scrutiny Leadership Board chaired by an Independent Member of the Council
and also consisting of the Chairs and Vice Chairs of the three committees and the Chair of the Audit Committee
coordinates the work of the committees and manages the overall scrutiny work programme. In May 2021, the
Council agreed that the Scrutiny Leadership Board would scrutinise the wholly owned companies of the Council,
following liaison with the proposed Shareholder Committee of the Executive and would also be responsible for
monitoring and commenting on the Council’s, medium term financial strategy, financial outturn reports and any
other overarching financial strategies. There are also regular meetings with Senior Executive Members.
These committees help empower elected members and provide them with the opportunity to contribute to policy
making, hold in-depth reviews and challenge and hold decision makers to account. These Committees meet on a
regular basis and the minutes of the meetings and supporting documentation are published.
Elected member feedback on the revised scrutiny process has been positive and they consider this now enables a
more balanced approach to scrutiny across all political parties.
During the first 5 months of the pandemic, the scrutiny function was principally carried out by the Scrutiny
Leadership Board. Guidance issued by the Centre for Public Scrutiny on the role of scrutiny during the pandemic,
reiterated the need for scrutiny to continue during this time albeit in a reduced and more direct way. It was
recognised that scrutiny remained a statutory function and an important element of the governance structure at

Page 97

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

the Council. The guidance recommended that the existing Committees and workplans be temporarily
consolidated into one Committee which would have a substantive focus on oversight of the system response to
Covid-19, use of the social care powers set out in the Coronavirus Act, the work to protect vulnerable children and
the work of Public Health. In addition Children’s Services Improvement was added to this remit to ensure
continued scrutiny of progress following the Ofsted Inspection even at this time. The Scrutiny Leadership Board
therefore undertook this role with this directed remit until after the summer recess.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Scrutiny Committee Agendas
Committee structure (blackpool.gov.uk)
and Minutes

Learning and Development
An Induction and Probation process is in place for all new employees in the Council. Following successful
completion of the probation process employees will then receive a mandatory Individual Performance Appraisal
(IPA). The IPA incorporates an annual and interim review, held at an appropriate time in a private, comfortable
space and can be considered as the setting of a ‘roadmap’ for an employee for the coming twelve months.
A wide range of training is available corporately which is informed from Corporate Leadership team, Senior
Leadership team, various workforce groups and the development needs identified in the Individual Performance
Appraisals. The Council is committed to leadership development and various courses are available to continue
to develop skills and knowledge. An aspiring leadership programme has been delivered but further work is
required in relation to succession planning for Senior Leadership Team roles and this will form part of HRs work
plan for 2021/22. The attainment of professional qualifications in relevant disciplines is encouraged and the
Council is committed to funding studies where appropriate utilising the Apprenticeship Levy.
Many professionals across the Council maintain continuing professional develop records to ensure they continue
to meet the requirements of their professional bodies.
A Workforce Strategy is in place but was due to be refreshed last year. As a result of the pandemic this has been
delayed but work will take place during 2021/22 supported by an imminent all employee survey which has
recently been approved by the Corporate Leadership Team.
The Council encourages and promotes Apprenticeships to existing employees and through recruitment. The
costs of training are funded through the Council’s Apprenticeship Levy.
Project Search, the job scheme for young people with learning disabilities also ran for a third year where each of
the students learn personal and job skills for a two month period before embarking on work placements to find a
suitable job for them.
An induction programme is in place for all elected members. A three year development plan is in place for
elected members which helps deliver training to help them fulfil their role. Elected members can have a personal
development plan which helps to identify training needs.

Page 98

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

The Council takes the Health and Wellbeing of employees very seriously and there is a comprehensive suite of
support available in addition to an in house Occupational Health Service. This is promoted to employees via
regular newsletters and a ‘My Wellbeing’ section on the Council’s Hub.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Apprenticeships Levy Return

Annual apprenticeships return (blackpool.gov.uk)

Workforce Strategy

Appendix 3(a) - Agenda for Executive on Monday, 18th January, 2016, 6.00
pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Supporting The
Scrutiny Report

Workforce Appendix 10(a) - Agenda for Resilient Communities and Children's Scrutiny
Committee on Thursday, 7th February, 2019, 6.00 pm (blackpool.gov.uk)

Project Search

Project Search (blackpool.gov.uk)

Partnerships and Joint Working
The Council is involved in a number of key projects with partner organisations in order to transform the way in
which services are delivered. Examples include Better Start and HeadStart which focus on early intervention in
order to build resilience in the community. Boards with representation from partner organisations are also in
place for key risks faced by the Council to introduce an element of independence and challenge. Transformation
is also been achieved through the Opportunity Area funding stream which seeks to improve educational
attainment.
The Council is invited to attend the VCFSE Leaders meetings and aims to work alongside and in partnership with
our third sector colleagues. This includes work around community engagement, community development and
working together to ensure a more resilient Blackpool. This includes involving third sector representatives on key
boards such as the town deal and working together on projects including a Lancashire wide accord developed in
partnership with local authorities, NHS and the third sector, aiming to streamline communication pathways and
join working together. The Council’s relationships with the third / voluntary sector have been further
strengthened due to effectively working together in response to the pandemic staring in March 2020 and forging
new ways of working together which can continue to be developed.
Arrangements are in place for the provision of Shared Services with Fylde Borough Council in a number of areas,
the most significant being the Revenues and Benefits Service and Human Resources. Shared arrangements are
also in place with Blackpool Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in relation to emergency planning. The
Council is also working jointly with other Fylde Coast authorities on the development of an enterprise zone and
other economic prosperity opportunities to improve the local economy.
The Council wholly owns 8 companies which are currently operating (7 companies limited by shares and 1 limited
by guarantee). From a governance perspective each company has an adopted governance framework based on
good practice codes in the corporate sector. The Boards generally comprise both councillor appointed nonexecutive directors and independent non-executive directors. The independent non-executive directors are in the
majority. There is a group approach to corporate governance with the Company Secretary, Data Protection

Page 99

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Officer and Head of Audit and Risk all appointed across the group which helps provide assurance to the various
Boards of Directors and the Council in its role as shareholder.
In 2020/ 2021 the Council had a Shareholder’s Advisory Board, (comprised of 3 elected members) which acted in
order to ensure that the duties and responsibilities of the Council as the sole shareholder of each company were
exercised through the Company and to manage overall relationships between the Company and the Council. The
Shareholder’s Advisory Board held regular meetings with nominated Company representatives in relation to the
strategic performance of each Company, in particular the business plan objectives and long term development
and in doing so to provide feedback to the shareholder (as appropriate) and to each company on behalf of the
shareholder. It also sought assurance from each company on behalf of the shareholder, that there were
appropriate controls in place for good governance and risk management matters. This was particularly relevant in
2020/ 2021 as a number of the companies had been affected by the pandemic and this liaison allowed the
recovery plans for these companies to be monitored and supported by the Council. A review of the role of the
shareholder was undertaken and it was recommended for 2021 onwards to have a Shareholder Committee of the
Executive (chaired by the Deputy Leader of the Council and involving the Leader of the Council and the Deputy
Leader of the Conservative group) with decision making powers and more focused accountability.
Key Supporting Policies and Procedures
Shareholder’s Advisory Board Agenda
Committee details - Shareholder's Advisory Board (blackpool.gov.uk)
and Minutes

Annual Review of Effectiveness
Blackpool Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework, including the system of internal control. The stages included in the review process and
the key findings from each are summarised below.

Good Governance Group
A Good Governance Group was established in October 2016 and has led on the review of effectiveness and the
production of the Annual Governance Statement to ensure that governance issues identified have subsequently
been addressed. This group is chaired by the Director of Governance and Partnerships and attended by the Head
of Audit and Risk, Head of Democratic Governance, Transformation Manager, Head of Legal Services, Head of ICT,
Chief Accountant, Head of Information Governance and the Head of Organisation and Workforce Development.

Page 100

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Elected Member Workshop
A workshop with elected members from key committees including Audit Committee, Scrutiny Committee and the
Executive took place on the 9th September 2021.

Key Officer Consultation
In addition to consultation with the Good Governance Group the Annual Governance Statement has also been
considered by the Corporate Leadership Team.

Control Self-Assessment Questionnaire
All Chief Officers were asked to complete a return making a self-assessment of the control environment in their
directorates the outcome of which has been used to assist with the production of this document.

Review of 2020/21 Actions
Appendix 1 provides an update in terms of the actions completed during 2020/21.

Mid-Term Review
The mid-term review will be presented to the January 2022 Audit Committee so progress against identified
actions can be reported.

Assurance Statement
The results of the effectiveness of the governance framework have been considered by the Corporate Leadership
Team and Audit Committee who have determined that the arrangements are fit for purpose in accordance with
the governance framework.

Governance Issues
Actions have been identified as part of the 2020/21 review of the effectiveness of the governance framework and
these are captured in the following table. It should be noted that some of the issues identified are not deemed
significant but have been included to aid openness and transparency.

Page 101

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Issue

Code of Conduct and
Behaviours

Ethical and Responsible
Governance

Commitment to Openness,
Communication and
Consultation

Actions

Responsible
Officer (s)

A Governance Framework for the Council
will be developed.

Director of
Governance and
Partnerships

Before midterm review

Details of refresher training for elected
members will be provided in conjunction
with the approval of the new Code of
Conduct.

Director of
Governance and
Partnerships

After mid-term
review

Provide elected members with an up to
date organisation structure detailing
officer responsibility areas.

Director of
Governance and
Partnerships

After mid-term
review

A training course regarding applying the
Public Sector Equality Duty to decision
making should be developed and rolled
out to officers and elected members.

Director of
Resources

Before midterm review.

Develop an Ethical Policy clearly defining
expectations of the wholly owned
companies and the Shareholder and the
decision making process.

Director of
Governance and
Partnerships

After mid-term
review

Produce an action plan setting out the
roadmap to net zero as part of the climate
change agenda for Blackpool.

Assistant Chief
Executive and
Director of
Strategy

Before midterm review

Continue to deliver the channel shift
agenda to improve accessibility to
residents and reduce demand on Council
resources with a focus on helping with the
recovery of Blackpool following the
pandemic.

Director of
Resources /
Director of
Communication
and
Regeneration

After mid-term
review

Implement a Community Engagement
Strategy and supported guidance to
ensure a coordinate and robust approach
is in place building on the learning gained
during responding to the current
pandemic.

Director of Public
Health

Before midterm review

Page 102

Target Date

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Issue

Developing,
Communicating and
Translating the Vision

Performance Management

Compliance with Relevant
Laws, Regulations, Internal
Policies and Procedures

Financial Management

Audit Arrangements

Responsible
Officer (s)

Target Date

Consider the potential of developing a
programme of potential schemes which
would be ready should a funding stream
become available. Where appropriate
seek ways in which to better involve the
community, businesses and the third
sector in the development of this
programme.

Corporate
Leadership Team

After mid-term
review

Complete the review of the Council Plan
to ensure that the impact of the pandemic
is captured and ensure that Council
strategies are reviewed in light of the
pandemic and amended accordingly.

Assistant Chief
Executive and
Director of
Strategy

Before midterm review

Consider ways in which to better involve
elected members in the development of
the Capital Strategy to ensure the mix of
schemes not only focus on the economy
but also improving our communities’
wellbeing in residential areas.

Director of
Communication
and
Regeneration /
Director of
Resources

After mid-term
review

Ensure that the changes implemented as
a result of the Ofsted Report on Children’s
Services are adequately embedded to
drive performance improvements.

Director of
Children’s
Services

After mid-term
review

Implement the recommendations made
by the ICO in their recent audit of the
Council’s Information Governance
arrangements.

Director of
Governance and
Partnerships

Before midterm review

Undertake a full review of the Council’s
Medium Term Financial Sustainability
Strategy.

Director of
Resources

Before midterm review

Continue to embed effective working
relations with the Council’s new external
auditors.

Director of
Resources

Before midterm review

Actions

Page 103

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Issue

Risk Management

Learning and Development

Partnership and Joint
Working

Actions

Responsible
Officer (s)

Target Date

Participate in an external assessment of
the adequacy of the internal audit
services in terms of PSIAS compliance.

Director of
Resources

Before midterm review

Opportunities to review good practice
with other Audit Committees will be
explored.

Director of
Governance and
Partnerships

After mid-term
review

Undertake a project to assess the benefits
of hybrid working when employees return
to the office post pandemic.

Assistant Chief
Executive /
Director of
Strategy and
Performance

After mid-term
review

Undertake further work on succession
planning for Senior Leadership Team
roles.

Chief Executive

After mid-term
review

Use the findings from the staff survey to
develop a new Workforce Development
Strategy for the Council.

Chief Executive

After mid-term
review

Develop succession planning processes for
elected members who are appointed to
Director of
non-executive director roles at the wholly Governance and
owned companies to enable a smooth
Partnerships
transition.

After mid-term
review

Review the role profiles of elected
member position to include more
guidance on what training courses,
seminars and conferences would be
beneficial as the roles develop year by
year.

Director of
Governance and
Partnerships

After mid-term
review

Develop a Partnership Governance
Framework setting out partnership
governance principles and including a
register of significant partnerships.

Director of
Governance and
Partnership

Before midterm review

Page 104

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Issue

Actions
Continue to strengthen communication
with and support for the business sector
particularly in terms of recovery from the
pandemic and seek to maximise the
benefits from opportunities such as the
Enterprise Zone.

Responsible
Officer (s)

Director of
Communication
and
Regeneration

Target Date

Before midterm review

Maximise the opportunity for digital
literacy via the Fibre Blackpool project in
Director of
order to improve the health and wellbeing Resources
of our residents.

After mid-term
review

Implement a new Shareholder Committee
to strengthen Shareholder Governance
Arrangements with the Wholly Owned
Companies.

Director of
Governance and
Partnership

Before midterm review

Review the training opportunities for
Non-Executive Directors (including
elected member appointments) on the
wholly owned companies.

Director of
Governance and
Partnership

After mid-term
review

Conclusion
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the significant governance issues identified to further
enhance governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements
that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of
our next annual review.
Signed:

(Leader of the Council)

Signed:

(Chief Executive)

Page 105

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Page 106

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Appendix 1 – Actions Completed in 2020/21




















Developed a Local Code of Governance document which brings together and summarises the Council’s
overall approach to corporate governance.
Continued to deliver the web development plan ensuring that the Council adheres to the new
accessibility requirements which are now law.
Explored ways in which to improve communication with ward councillors so that they are aware of major
developments in their areas.
Identified ways in which data relating to the use of our green and blue spaces can be collated to help
inform future decisions in relation to development of these areas.
Delivered a thank you to all employees for the work that they have undertaken during the pandemic.
The suite of Council Plan headline KPIs has been reviewed so that some of the measures around postCOVID recovery are incorporated into ongoing performance reporting. This review also looked to
incorporate KPIs for a new corporate priority around organisational resilience, as recommended in the
Corporate Peer Challenge which took place in March 2020.
Continued the roll-out of Windows 10 incorporating training on how to work smarter using Office 365 and
Microsoft Teams.
Appointed to the vacant independent Audit Committee member post with two independent members
now in place.
The Audit Committee have sought assurance that systems of internal control have met the demands of
the emergency response to Covid-19 and that where issues have been identified action has been taken to
remedy these. This has been achieved through a series of ‘deep-dive’ reviews of pertinent strategic risk
register items.
Steps have been taken to ensure that the Council had robust arrangements in place in preparation for the
UKs exit from the European Union.
A process has been put in place to enable all elected members to attend the modular training delivered to
specific Committees. Where training is delivered virtually then consideration is given to recording these
sessions and make them available to all elected members.
Continued to work in partnership with the Lancashire Resilience Forum to ensure a pan-Lancashire
approach to dealing with the current pandemic including longer term impacts on economic, social and
environmental sustainability.
Data protection training was rolled out to staff who do not have IT access.
The Council’s Information Asset Register was updated.
A programme of GDPR compliance audits to ensure continued compliance with GDPR has been
implemented.

Page 107

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Report to:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer:

Steve Thompson, Director of Resources

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2021

DELOITTE VALUE FOR MONEY ARRANGEMENTS REQUEST LIST
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To consider the management response to Deloitte’s Value for Money arrangements request
list.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To consider the management response to Deloitte’s Value for Money (VFM) arrangements
request list for 2020/2021

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

Deloitte’s Value for Money audit for 2020/2021 requires a management response to the
requests made in their report.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by
the Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

None, as the Committee is required to approve the Statement of Accounts.

5.0

Council Priority:

5.1

The relevant Council Priority is:


The economy - maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool.

6.0

Background Information

6.1

As part of the 2020/2021 audit Deloitte are required to report on the Council’s arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. Their request list is
split into three areas:
1. Arrangements covering financial sustainability, governance and improving economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.
2. Adapting arrangements to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Page 109

3. Arrangements in specific arears.
Management have completed their response and this is now available to be considered by
the Committee.
6.2

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 8(a) – Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List.

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

None.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

None.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

None.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

None.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

None.

13.0

Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

13.1

None.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

Page 110

No

APPENDIX 8(a)
SUMMARY OF VALUE FOR MONEY ARRANGEMENTS AND REQUEST LIST
The purpose of this document is to summarise the organisation’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in the use of resources. This is based upon
the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 3, Value for Money Arrangements (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/wpcontent/uploads/sites/29/2019/12/AGN-03-Auditors-Work-on-Value-for-Money-Arrangements.pdf ), and accompanying supporting information.
In completing this summary of arrangements, there may be existing summaries for some areas that can be used (for example in the Annual Governance Statement). If this is
the case, this detail should be included in the “Description of the entity’s arrangements” column (rather than cross-referred) and supplemented as necessary.
Where relevant, the description should include reference to relevant statutory codes, statutory guidance and other relevant sector guidance (for example in the NHS the
Foundation Trust Code of Governance, or for Local Authorities various guidance including the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework for Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government, CIPFA Prudential Code, CIPFA Treasury Management Code, and MHCLG’s Investment Code and Statutory Investment Guidance).

Page 111

If there are any departures from requirements/guidance, these should be clearly identified with accompanying rationale (and where relevant reference to where this has
been disclosed if a “comply or explain” requirement). If any known weaknesses have been identified through internal processes, internal audit, external inspection,
regulators/national bodies, government departments or other sources, this should be clearly noted with reference to relevant reports.
The document is divided into three sections:
1. Arrangements – covering the overall arrangements the entity has in place in each of the three sub-criteria considered in our value for money work:
a. Financial sustainability: how the body plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services
b. Governance: how the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks,
c. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the body uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and
delivers its services,
2. Adapting arrangements in response to the Covid-19 pandemic – noting any changes that the entity has made in response to the pandemic to its arrangements
3. Arrangements in specific areas – covering arrangements in place for specific potential non-standard areas or developments during the year (for example significant
outsourcing, complex transactions, or other significant developments in the entity).

Where documentary evidence has not been provided to support this summary due to it not being available at the time of preparation / agreed date to provide the
document, please can you note this and indicate when it will be available.

1

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS
PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS

Page 112

1. Financial sustainability
1.1 How the body ensures that it
identifies all the significant financial
pressures that are relevant to its short
and medium-term plans and builds these
into them.

2

Description of the entity’s arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Reference to
documentation
which provides
evidence of the
arrangement
(Provide copy or
link)

Medium Term Financial Sustainability Strategy 2016/17
to 2021/22 contains sections on financial monitoring and
governance framework (see link 12th Sept 2016 Agenda).
This is currently being refreshed up to 2026/27 though
there will be little change to this element.

Director of Resources

Agenda for
Executive on
Monday, 12th
September, 2016,
6.00 pm

Head of Accountancy
Separate modelling of high risk areas such as Children’s,
Adult Social Care, Growth and Prosperity and Strategic
Leisure Assets – including separate Medium Term
Financial Plans (MTFP), monthly Senior Management
Teams, separate Children’s Board, monthly financial
tracking and monthly financial projections.

Wholly owned companies – company governance,
Shareholder Committee, separate financial work to see
impact on Council.

Director of
Governance

Link to ISA 260 financial sustainability response.

Director of Resources

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

ISA260 Response

Description of the entity’s arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

1.2 How the body plans to bridge its
funding gaps and identifies achievable
savings.

Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) incorporating
announcements regarding the Government Settlement.

Head of Accountancy

Series of CLT budget workshops starting 1st July 2021
with meetings arranged for August and September. This
is an ongoing process.
Start by estimating the budget gap, request lists of
savings, pressures from departments and then how
deliver the savings/budget. CLT budget away day on 24th
August 2021.

Director of Resources

The Strategic Risk Register includes a section on financial
sustainability and link is attached. And MTFS includes
section on this.

Head of Audit and
Risk

Page 113

PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS

3

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Reference to
documentation
which provides
evidence of the
arrangement
(Provide copy or
link)

Strategic Risk
Register Progress Report

Description of the entity’s arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Reference to
documentation
which provides
evidence of the
arrangement
(Provide copy or
link)

1.3 How the body plans finances to
support the sustainable delivery of
services in accordance with strategic and
statutory priorities.

MTFS dovetailed to Council Plan.

Director of Resources

Blackpool Council
plan

Page 114

PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS

Look at priorities such as response to Ofsted opinion on
Children’s Social Care, report on Climate Emergency and
environmental plan implications on Waste Services.
Climate Assembly
Report

Climate Assembly
Recommendations

1.4 How the body ensures that its
financial plan is consistent with other
plans such as workforce, capital,
investment, and other operational
planning which may include working with
other local public bodies as part of a
wider system.

4

Council strategies dovetail with the MTFS.
Capital Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy are
at 8th Feb link.

Workforce Strategy is currently being updated and was
awaiting responses following staff consultation. Previous
Strategy is attached.

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Agenda for
Executive on
Monday, 8th
February, 2021,
6.00 pm

PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS

Description of the entity’s arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

The Council had a good response from staff during the
pandemic with many staff being seconded to support the
community during the pandemic.

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Reference to
documentation
which provides
evidence of the
arrangement
(Provide copy or
link)
WorkforceStrategy2
015to2020.pdf

Recruitment is an issue for Blackpool.

Page 115

1.5 How the body identifies and manages
risks to financial resilience, e.g.
unplanned changes in demand, including
challenge of the assumptions underlying
its plans.

Timely budget monitoring regime
Recovery plans
Internal Audit Plan - attached
Reserves policy refresh is currently underway in light of
Government consultation.
Scrutiny Leadership board – reviewed budget process,
capital programme strategies – all key members of the
Scrutiny Committees. See attached minutes of the last
Scrutiny Leadership Board.

5

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Internal Audit Annual
Plan 21-22

Scrutiny Leadership
Board minutes

PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS

2 Governance
2.1 How the body monitors and assesses
risk and how the body gains assurance
over the effective operation of internal
controls, including arrangements to
prevent and detect fraud.

Description of the entity’s arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Annual Fraud Charter
Strategic Risk register
Audit Plan

Head of Audit and
Risk

See attached reports which were all reported to Audit
Committee in March 2021.

Reference to
documentation
which provides
evidence of the
arrangement
(Provide copy or
link)

Strategic Risk
Register 21-22

Page 116

AGS Half Year
Review

Risk Services
Quarter 3

2.2 How the body approaches and carries
out its annual budget setting process.

See email from Chief Accountant to all departments
detailing budget setting process and timetable.

Head of Accountancy

MTFS reviews section on annual budget setting process

Director of Resources

CLT Budget sessions

Director of Resources

Financial Regulations – see attached copy.

Head of Accountancy

FW 2021 22 Budget
Preparation Guidance.msg

Financial Regs 20-21

6

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Description of the entity’s arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

2.3 How the body ensures effective
processes and systems are in place to
ensure budgetary control; to
communicate relevant, accurate and
timely management information
(including non-financial information
where appropriate); supports its
statutory financial reporting
requirements; and ensures corrective
action is taken where needed.

Internal reviews with service budget managers
Review of monitoring by CLT, Executive and Scrutiny
Leadership Board.

Page 117

PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS

7

Reference to
documentation
which provides
evidence of the
arrangement
(Provide copy or
link)

Financial Control Assurance Testing on report budgetary
control
Non-finance statistics such as demand in Children and
Adult Social Care help to derive the budget figures.
Budget is reported to CLT from Month 0 so can make
corrective action if needed.

2.4 How the body ensures it makes
properly informed decisions, supported

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Executive decision making process and Scheme of
Delegation.

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Final Internal Audit
Report - Budgetary Control FCAT.pdf

PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS

by appropriate evidence and allowing for
challenge and transparency. This includes
arrangements for effective challenge
from those charged with
governance/audit committee.

Description of the entity’s arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Scrutiny Committees challenge the budget monitoring
reports.
See attached budget audit report and Scheme of
Delegation

Final Internal Audit
Report - Budgetary Control FCAT.pdf

Page 118

Scheme of
Delegation

2.5 How the body monitors and ensures
appropriate standards, such as meeting
legislative/regulatory requirements and
standards in terms of officer or member
behaviour (such as gifts and hospitality or
declarations/conflicts of interests).

3. Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness
3.1 How financial and performance
information has been used to assess
8

Reference to
documentation
which provides
evidence of the
arrangement
(Provide copy or
link)

Link to Annual Governance Statement

Head of Audit and
Risk

Austerity has forced local authorities down this route.

Transformation
Manager

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Blackpool Council
annual accounts

PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS

Description of the entity’s arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

performance to identify areas for
improvement.

Headline set of Council Plan KPIs which are monitored on Transformation
a quarterly basis by Corporate Leadership Team,
Manager
Leadership Board and Scrutiny.

Reference to
documentation
which provides
evidence of the
arrangement
(Provide copy or
link)

Children’s improvements driven by Ofsted report.
Improvements in Youth Justice services driven by HMIP
inspection report.

Page 119
3.2 How the body evaluates the services
it provides to assess performance and
identify areas for improvement.

Programme of scrutiny reviews. See attached list
Scrutiny Leadership
Board Plan

As above.
Regular benchmarking against other local authorities.
Peer Reviews and Challenges
ICO inspection

3.3 How the body ensures it delivers its
Director of Governance producing Partnership
role within significant partnerships,
Framework for September Audit Committee.
engages with stakeholders it has
9
Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Transformation
Manager

Description of the entity’s arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

identified, monitors performance against
expectations, and ensures action is taken
where necessary to improve.

June 2021 – New Executive responsibilities
New Shareholder Committee for Wholly Owned
Companies
Schools Forum for all schools and Academies
Joint working groups with partners, e.g. Merlin

3.4 Where the body commissions or
procures services, how the body ensures
that this is done in accordance with
relevant legislation, professional
standards and internal policies, and how
the body assesses whether it is realising
the expected benefits.

The Council has a Corporate Procurement Team of
procurement professionals who oversee the contractual
arrangements that are entered into and ensure that
Public Sector Contract Regulations 2015 are complied
with as appropriate. A suite of procurement control
documents exist and are updated in line with
Government procurement policy notes to ensure that
compliance is maintained.

Page 120

PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Reference to
documentation
which provides
evidence of the
arrangement
(Provide copy or
link)

Head of Procurement

Contract Procedure Rules are in place which govern the
process by which all procurement is undertaken.
A suite of other guidance documents, policies and codes
of practice are in place to support delivery of effective
and compliant procurement all of which flow down from
the Procurement Strategy 2019-23 which follows
National Procurement Strategy & guidance.
A copy of contracts are held on a contract register in
order to ensure that contractual arrangements are
retained and updated as appropriate.
10

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

2021 Part 4g Contract Procedure Rules (from constitution).pdf

Procurement
Strategy

PART 1 - ARRANGEMENTS

Description of the entity’s arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Reference to
documentation
which provides
evidence of the
arrangement
(Provide copy or
link)

Guidance on contract management is accessible to all
staff to ensure that contract requirements are fulfilled.

Page 121
11

There are a number of training modules which are
accessible to all Council staff via the iPool training
module covering:
Procurement & purchasing; e-procurement; social value
and contract management

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Code of Practive
Contract Mgt

PART 2 – ADAPTING ARRANGEMENTS IN RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC
PART 2 – ADAPTING ARRANGEMENTS IN
RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Details of changes made to arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

1. How has the entity adapted its
financial planning and monitoring
arrangements in response to Covid-19
pandemic?

Reported financial pressures to MHCLG on a monthly
basis by completing return in DELTA (this was optional
but Blackpool has done this for every month).

Head of Accountancy

Had regular meetings with MHCLG and BEIS.

Page 122

Completed all returns for financial support such as Sales,
Fees and Charges, Contain Outbreak Management Fund.
Performance of wholly-owned companies – risk was
identified early on and was included wef Month 2 202021 financial reporting.
Internal Audit appointed independent review for
business grants work.
Staff redeployed from day-to-day business to cover
business grant payments.

12

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Reference to
documentation
which provides
further
information on
the development

PART 2 – ADAPTING ARRANGEMENTS IN
RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Details of changes made to arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

Reference to
documentation
which provides
further
information on
the development

Chief Executive

Page 123

2. How has the entity adapted its
Emergency powers grants so Chief Executive could make
governance arrangements in response to decisions quickly rather than wait until Executive
Covid-19 pandemic (including in the areas meetings.
set out in Part 1)?
Government guidance followed so there are
arrangements in place regarding on line Committee
meetings and continues to be so Council can function
and make decisions.
3. How the entity has adapted its
As above.
arrangements for measuring
performance and evaluating the services
Also corporate management framework.
it provides.

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

4. How the entity has adapted its
arrangements for working with partners
and commissioning services from third
parties (including managing risks around
any new or significantly changed
partnerships or commissioning
relationships)

13

Closer working with Adult Social Care residential care
homes – guaranteed baseline payments for
sustainability.
Closer working with CCG re hospital discharges.
Participation in the Local Resilience Forum (LRF).
See attached report to Full Council regarding the
Council’s response to the pandemic.

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Chief Executive
Covid update

PART 2 – ADAPTING ARRANGEMENTS IN
RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Page 124
14

Details of changes made to arrangements (including
known issues/concerns/weaknesses)

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

The Corporate Procurement Team worked with
stakeholders during the Covid pandemic to ensure that
service continuity was maintained.

Head of Procurement

Government guidance (Procurement Policy Notes 01/20
and 02/20 – Responding to Covid & Supplier Relief) was
followed to ensure that suppliers were able to fulfil their
obligations and that amendments to arrangements were
made as appropriate.

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Reference to
documentation
which provides
further
information on
the development

PART 3 – ARRANGEMENTS IN SPECIFIC AREAS
(Note – while these will often involve new developments in the year, significant long-standing arrangements/ matters should also be included)
EITHER:
Details of development and related arrangements in
place around the development (including known
issues/concerns/weaknesses)
OR : confirmation that none.

1. Organisational change or
transformation, including mergers or
local authority reorganisation.

Internal redeployment of resources e.g. payment of
business grants.
Collaborative working with LRF.
Further collaboration across ICS footprint ahead of CCG
restructuring.
Lumen established
Reorganisation of Accountancy to address particular
themes/areas
No significant reorganisation

Page 125

PART 3 – ARRANGEMENTS IN SPECIFIC
AREAS

2. Outsourcing, or transfer to alternative
delivery models, e.g. formal partnerships,
mutuals, social enterprises, joint
ventures, or transferring services and
functions back in-house/insourcing
15

Adoption Board with LCC to provide Lancashire Wide
adoption services.
Enveco – Transfer of Cleansing services from Sept/Oct
2021

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Reference to
documentation
which provides
further
information on
the development

PART 3 – ARRANGEMENTS IN SPECIFIC
AREAS

Page 126

3. [NHS only] Integrated Care System /
STP (including governance of
relationships with other bodies in the
ICS/STP, as well as any specific new
arrangements or partnerships with other
bodies)
4. Major capital projects

EITHER:
Details of development and related arrangements in
place around the development (including known
issues/concerns/weaknesses)
OR : confirmation that none.

Reference to
documentation
which provides
further
information on
the development

Pooled budget for Safeguarding Boards across LCC,
Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool LAs and CCGs in
ICS region.
Use of Mersey Internal Audit Agency for ad hoc work.
N/A

See link for capital programme and capital strategy.
Planning for Town Deal bids

5. New commercial activities or existing
commercial activities where there has
been a material increase in their scale

Conference Centre
Golden Mile
Central Business District phase 3 - planning
Showtown Museum

6. New financing structures (including
debt restructuring, unusual or complex
forms of new borrowing, or where being

Link to MRP Policy Review

16

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Review of strategic leisure assets

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Agenda for
Executive on
Monday, 8th
February, 2021,
6.00 pm

Agenda for
Executive on

PART 3 – ARRANGEMENTS IN SPECIFIC
AREAS

used to finance unusual or complex
schemes)

7. Legislative/policy changes requiring a
body to take on a significant new
function

Page 127

8. Other significant developments /
changes in the entity

17

EITHER:
Details of development and related arrangements in
place around the development (including known
issues/concerns/weaknesses)
OR : confirmation that none.

Debt restructuring looked at on regular basis by Treasury
Management Panel.

Lumen social housing to deliver certain functions.

Councillor representation – Political balance of the
Council.

Summary of Value for Money Arrangements and Request List

Contact name for
individual who can
provide further
detail or explanation

Reference to
documentation
which provides
further
information on
the development
Monday, 8th
February, 2021,
6.00 pm

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Report to:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Relevant Officers:

Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships
Tracy Greenhalgh, Head of Risk and Audit

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2021

PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To consider adopting a Partnership Governance Framework, as recommended in the Annual
Governance Statement Action Plan and at the meeting of the Committee on 29 April 2021
where consideration was given to a local Code of Corporate Governance.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

The Audit Committee is asked to recommend Council to adopt the attached Partnership
Governance Framework and form part of the Council’s Constitution.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

The Annual Governance statement action plan agreed by Audit Committee in November
2020, identified that in terms of good practice the adoption of a Partnership Governance
Framework was recommended. This will assist and bring consistency in respect of good
governance in partnerships and will help mitigate the Council and other stakeholders’ risk in
being part of such partnerships.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by
the Council?

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

An amended version of the attached, although it should reflect the local Code of Governance
as considered by the Committee in April 2021.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The proposed Partnership Governance Framework is relevant to all Council priorities.

6.0

Background Information

6.1

Blackpool Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance

Page 129

No – this will be a
new framework
and will form part
of the
Constitution
Yes

with the law and proper standards. It needs to ensure that public money is safeguarded,
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. This applies equally
to its partnerships, which have become an increasingly important way of delivering strategic
objectives and services but which produce particular risk and governance issues. For
example, partners from different organisations with different priorities and cultures may not
have the same opinion about partnership objectives, outcomes and activity. The Council
needs to protect itself from risk when working with other partners on significant issues.
6.2

The Council therefore needs to know what its significant partnerships are, understand their
purpose, how they are operated and governed and be able to influence arrangements where
necessary. This framework plays a key role by setting expectations of how ‘Significant’
partnerships should be governed and by establishing the procedures the Council uses to
obtain assurance over them. Although this framework is aimed at ‘Significant’ partnerships,
the principles within it can be adapted for other partnerships.

6.3

To protect the position of the Council and its residents, the Council needs assurance that
partnership governance supports its operation, including in such key areas as decisionmaking, accountability and regulatory compliance. The proposed framework complies with
good practice, including ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’ (CIPFA/SOLACE)
2016 and ‘Governing Partnerships: Bridging the Accountability Gap’ (Audit Commission).

6.4

This framework is for those already involved in partnerships or who are looking at
establishing new partnerships. Its purpose is to help officers and members evaluate and
influence partnership governance by defining what a ‘Significant partnership’ is and setting
out the principles of partnership governance. The officer Good Governance Group, it is
proposed, is tasked with providing practical guidance, model policies and templates.
Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

No

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 9(a) – Proposed Partnership Governance Framework.

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

There are no specific financial considerations in the report although financial management is
a key principle of the proposed Partnership Governance Framework.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

There is no legal requirement to have a Partnership Governance Framework but it is recognised as
good practice and will help mitigate risk in respect of the Council in carrying out its duties with
partners.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

Risk management is a key principle in the proposed Partnership Governance Framework and

Page 130

a risk assessment is recommended to be undertaken in determining if a partnership meets
the criteria set out.
11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

There are no equalities considerations relating to this report.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

Ethical and responsible governance is a thematic area in the Code of Governance and is also
reflected in the Partnership Governance Framework.

13.0

Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

13.1

In October 2016 a Good Governance Group was formed at the Council. One of the roles of
the group will be to prepare the Annual Governance Statement and oversee the delivery of
the identified actions. This is chaired by the Director of Governance and Partnerships. A Sub
Group of this Group has put together this proposed Framework.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 9(a)

BLACKPOOL COUNCIL
PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1. Corporate Governance is a term used to describe how organisations direct and control what they do, as
well as systems and processes, including culture and values. It provides structure through which strategic
objectives are set and performance monitored. In Blackpool, this is led by the Council Plan with its
emphasis on working with ‘Communities, Economy and Organisational Sustainability’.
1.2. This Partnership Governance Framework, sits alongside the Council’s Code of Governance and sets out
the principles of good governance (for partnerships) and what arrangements it has in place to ensure that
the partnership conducts its business in accordance with the law and proper standards. In the same way
that the Council’s Code of Governance seeks to ensure that public money is safeguarded, properly
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively, this framework will do the same for any
significant partnership.
1.3. Working in partnership can bring a wide range of benefits, but also produces particular risks and
governance issues. To protect the interests both of the council and the residents of the borough, it is
therefore important that the Council knows what its ‘Significant’ Partnerships are and their purpose is
understood.
1.4. The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance sets out six principles behind the Council’s approach to
corporate governance. These principles should also support its work with partners and this framework is
based on these principles.
1.5. The purpose of this framework is to provide a holistic approach to the governance arrangements and to set
out:


the steps which the Council will take before entering into a partnership;



the minimum governance requirements each partnership must have (subject only to any variations
agreed by a relevant Director);



how the Council will support the governance of each partnership; and



how the Council monitors and reviews its involvement with each partnership.

Page 133

2. GOOD GOVERNANCE IN PARTNERSHIPS
2.1. This framework recognises that there is great variety in the scale and nature of the council’s
partnerships, but provides a standardised approach by which accountability can be strengthened, risks
managed and opportunities sought within a safe framework.
2.2. Partnerships vary in size, service area, membership and function, funding, legal status and structure. They
may be affected by the same pressures and challenges as the council. These include external factors such
as funding reduction, national changes in policy and legislative changes, or internal factors such as reducing
staff resource, service level reviews and organisational restructures. Partnerships can provide an effective
way of meeting these challenges but also carry risks because working across organisational boundaries and
cultures can add complexity and ambiguity and reduce accountability.
2.3. It is vitally important that prior to entering any partnership, both the benefits and risks are
identified and planned for and that such partnerships are reviewed to ensure they remain the
most effective way of achieving the desired aim.
3. PARTNERSHIP DEFINITION
3.1. In defining a partnership, there is the broad definition of partnerships used by the Audit Commission and
CIPFA: ‘An agreement between two or more independent bodies to work collectively to achieve an
objective, normally excluding the familiar relationships between client and contractor or employer and
staff.’ They may create new structures of processes to achieve their goal, may plan and implement a jointly
agreed project or service; may jointly provide or share staff or resources and may agree to share risks and
rewards. This Framework looks at ‘Significant’ Partnerships which need to be formed and have a set form
of governance.
3.2. The following relationships or groups are not considered to be ‘Significant’ Partnerships:
 Employer and staff relationship
 A partnership set up to consider specific topics
 If the council has direct and sole control over budgets and decision-making, including in such
circumstances Council led groups with external representation which are sometimes classed as
‘partnerships’
 The relationship between the council and a wholly owned subsidiary company (as a different
governance framework covers this)
 Where a subscription or membership payment is made for a service (e.g. the local
government association)
 A supplier of a contract.
3.3. In determining what is a ‘Significant’ partnership, the first consideration must be whether or not the
establishment of a partnership is mandatory (statutory) or discretionary. Mandatory or statutory
partnerships may be covered by more regulation, with fewer options in terms of structure or governance,
but must still be carefully managed.
3.4. Where the partnership is discretionary (voluntary) it is important to assess whether a partnership is
necessary or whether the same objective could be achieved more efficiently and effectively by the
council working alone, or through some other mechanism.
3.5. To help make that assessment the following should be considered:



Can the objectives, outcomes and benefits of the partnership be clearly expressed and linked to
council strategies and priorities?
Will the benefits of the partnership outweigh the costs when compared to other
arrangements, including issues such as co-ordination of activity and resources?

Page 134




What is the resource impact and who will meet the costs of delivery, and of strategic and
operational management?
Can the partnership provide ongoing and robust compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements?

3.6. To be considered ‘Significant’ partnerships should have one or both of the following:



Financial responsibility – Based on a threshold for the Council’s annual contribution of £100,000,
excluding staffing costs; and/or
Strategic importance – the partnership being critical to the delivery of key council objectives or
statutory obligations, or is a fundamental component of council priorities and functions and the
council’s reputation could be damaged by the partnership’s failure to deliver.

3.7. In determining a ‘Significant’ Partnership, it is advised that a risk assessment be undertaken based on this
Framework.
4. PARTNERSHIP PRINCIPLES
4.1. The following key principles should be considered when establishing a ‘Significant’ Partnership
which meets the criteria – not all will necessarily apply to every partnership, but their relevance
should be considered and a proportionate approach applied (these principles should also be
applied by way of good practice to partnerships which are not classed as significant).
a) Purpose, structure and membership – partners should formally agree the partnership’s structure,
purpose and aims, activities, roles and responsibilities, membership, regulatory framework, dispute
resolution, timeframe for operation and exit strategy.
b) Accountability and decision making – partnerships should account for their actions through
reporting, meetings, oversight and scrutiny of performance and regulatory compliance. There
should be open and transparent processes such as records of delegated authority and decisions
taken and effective scrutiny.
c) Monitoring and review – regular review and evaluation of membership, policies, performance and
risk.
d) Financial management – to ensure the partnership is well resourced to deliver its aims and
objectives and the responsibility for financial decisions is clear.
e) Meetings – operate efficiently, are well chaired and are of sufficient frequency to facilitate business.
5. PARTNERSHIP PRINCIPLES
5.1. The officer Corporate Leadership Team will recommend partnerships for inclusion on the register of
‘Significant’ Partnerships, following consideration of nominations from the relevant Director who has
corporate responsibility for the partnership. This will ensure that the strategic fit between the partnership
and the council’s objectives and priorities is maintained, strengthens lines of accountability and improves
collective oversight. Draft terms of reference and governance documents should be reviewed by the Head
of Legal and the Head of Democratic Governance before submission to the Corporate Leadership Team.
5.2. Approval for establishing, and resourcing significant partnerships will be subject to the appropriate
council decision making processes in accordance with the Council’s constitution.

Page 135

6. RESPONSIBILITIES
6.1. All employees involved in partnership working should be aware of their responsibilities for partnership
governance as shown in the table below.
6.2. When working with partnerships members and officers must be aware of their responsibilities under the
council’s code of governance and the member and employee codes of conduct. These codes apply whether
directly representing the council, acting in an advisory capacity, or as part of an interest group. Members
and officers should help to ensure that the principles for good governance set out in this framework are
agreed, adopted and adhered to by the partnerships they are involved in.
6.3. The partnership will clearly define the roles of representatives of the partnership and provide appropriate
support and training so that representatives perform effectively.
6.4. The Council will make sure that its representatives are clear about their role on the partnership and provide
support and training to its representatives.
Role

Responsibility

Executive



considering and approving all Significant Partnerships which
meet the criteria of a key decision for the council.

Leader of the Council



leading the council’s work on improving corporate
governance

Members



when representing the council on a partnership, promoting
good governance in line with the council’s Partnership
Governance Framework

Audit Committee



monitoring the effectiveness of the Partnership Governance
Framework as part of the Council’s Code of Governance and
the Annual Governance Statement

Scrutiny Leadership Board



scrutinising partnerships on the Council’s Significant
Partnership register in respect of performance, value added
and financial stability

Corporate Leadership Team



ensuring effective implementation, monitoring and review of
the Council’s Partnership Governance Framework

Director



ensuring that arrangements for good governance of
partnerships within their directorate are implemented in line
with the Partnership Governance Framework



signing non-key significant partnerships in line with the
definition in this framework, after consultation with the
relevant Cabinet Member and the officer Corporate
Leadership Team, in evidence of satisfaction with
documented governance arrangements



reviewing and challenging the evaluation of partnerships,
governance arrangements, performance, value added and
financial stability and reporting in the first instance to the
officer Corporate Leadership Team on the findings.

Page 136

Role

Responsibility


supporting the Directors in ensuring that arrangements for
good governance of partnerships within their service are
implemented in line with the Partnership Governance
Framework



likely to be the key point of contact between the Council and
a partnership and contribute corporately to the Council’s
knowledge of partnerships

Good Governance Group



regularly reviewing the Partnership Governance Framework

(Chaired by the Director of
Governance)



co-ordiantes and reviews the evaluation of partnerships and
provides guidance and recommends the officer Corporate
Leadership Team accordingly



agrees and reviews model documents and templates for
partnerships.

Head of Service

Strategy, Policy and Research
Manager

Head of Risk and Audit

On behalf of the Good Governance Group is responsible for


communicating and promoting the Partnership Governance
Framework



coordinating and facilitating an annual evaluation of
partnerships



maintaining the council’s register of ‘Significant’ Partnerships



auditing key elements for the council’s Partnership
Governance Framework and using the information to inform
the annual internal audit plan

7. MONITORING AND REVIEW
7.1. The Director of Governance (working with the Assistant Chief Executive and Director of Strategy) has
overall leadership responsibility for ensuring the effectiveness of partnership governance arrangements
and working with the Strategy, Policy and Research Manager will maintain a register of ‘Significant’
Partnerships that includes the category of partnership, date of establishment, terms of reference, council
representative(s) on the partnership, review date, risk assessment and identified link officer.
7.2. Partnership annual self-assessments should be considered and signed off by the relevant Director and
the outcome of those assessments be included as an element within the normal quarterly performance
reporting process and an annual review of the effectiveness of these arrangements will be undertaken
and reported within the Annual Governance Statement.
7.3. Directors should ensure that a proportionate approach, based on the principles within this
framework, is established for approving and reviewing the value and operation of non-significant
partnerships within their corporate areas of responsibility.
7.4. Each partnership is also encouraged to review its own governance arrangements.

Page 137

8. GUIDANCE
The officer Good Governance Group will maintain guidance notes and model documents for prospective
partnerships, covering:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Flowchart for determining a ‘Significant’ Partnership
Risk Register template
Terms of reference template
Model partnership agreement/ Memorandum of Understanding
Self-Assessment review forms

Page 138

Page 139

Criteria
Purpose,
structure and
membership

Good governance
 Aims, objectives, outputs and outcomes are agreed and
communicated
 Membership is aligned to objectives to provide relevant
interests experience and expertise
 There is an appropriate board and committee structure with
clearly defined remits
 Personal interests of members do not impact on decisions.

Accountability
and decisionmaking






Monitoring
and review

 There is regular review and evaluation of membership,
policies, performance and risk
 Awareness is maintained of what is working and what is not,
and action is taken to address issues
 There are strategies for change and exit.
 Disputes between partners are addressed effectively

Financial
management

 The partnership is resourced to deliver its aims and objectives
 Responsibility for financial decisions is clear
 The partnership can show that it manages funding
appropriately to add value efficiently and effectively

Good leadership promotes supportive culture and behaviour
Roles, responsibilities and accountabilities are understood
Decision-making is open and transparent
Reporting to officers and/or members supports scrutiny of
decisions and activity

Good practice
Establish a partnership agreement which includes:
 Key messages and an agreed description of what the partnership is trying to
achieve (purpose and deliverables)
 Roles and responsibilities
 Structure chart
 Partnership board and committee criteria
 Declaration of personal and pecuniary interest and requirement to
withdraw from meetings/decisions
 Exit strategy for partners and the partnership
 Responsibilities for decisions are agreed and recorded
 Minutes of meetings record decisions, agreed action and relevant related
discussion.
 There is regular reporting within existing democratic structures
 A communication strategy sets out internal and external communication
processes, including how external stakeholders may engage with the
partnership, spokesperson designation and process for approval of press
statements
 The partnership is regularly reviewed to ensure it remains fit for purpose
and aligned to council objectives and priorities
 There are clearly defined indicators of performance to monitor delivery of
the partnership objectives
 Performance and risk are actively monitored, managed and reported
 Processes are in place to resolve disputes, for partners to exit (or join) the
partnership, and for its termination
 Consideration is given to internal and external audit requirements
 Processes are in place for dealing with external complaints and compliments
 The accountable body for funding is identified
 Financial and business plans show clearly how funding and resources will be
used to deliver objectives
 Financial accounting budgeting and reporting arrangements are in place and
subject to appropriate external scrutiny
 Processes are in place by which financial, legal and other technical advice

Criteria
Meetings

Good governance

Good practice
may be provided to the partnership
 Meetings operate efficiently and are of sufficient frequency to  Partnership terms of reference specify arrangements for meetings to
facilitate business
include quorum, voting, representation and deputising, declarations of
interest and arrangements for extraordinary meetings or other procedures
 The chair ensures meetings address the agenda, promotes
for decision-making
contributions from all and ensures decisions are open and
transparent
 Agendas and minutes are produced to specified times, and arrangements
 Attendees bring expertise, knowledge and experience
for wider access (transparency) are clear
relevant to the objectives of the partnership and have the
 Decisions, action points and accountable leads are clearly identified within
necessary authority to make decisions
the minutes
 Arrangements for a secretariat and resources to support it are in place if
required

Page 140

Agenda Item 10
Report to:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer:

Nicola Wright, Partner, Deloitte

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2021

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/2021
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To consider Deloitte’s External Audit Plan 2020/2021.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To note the plan and make any recommendations considered appropriate.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

To ensure overview of the Council’s External Audit Plan.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by
the Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

None.

5.0

Council Priority:

5.1

The relevant Council priority is:


Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience.

6.0

Background Information

6.1

The Council’s external auditors are required to review and report on the Council’s:
 Financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement),
providing an opinion on the accounts; and
 Use of Resources, concluding on the arrangements in place for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources (value for money).

6.2

The audit planning process and risk assessment is an ongoing process and the assessment
and fees in the plan will be kept under review and updated where required.

Page 141

6.3

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 10(a) - Planning report to the Audit Committee for the year ending 31 March 2021.

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

See attached report at Appendix 10(a).

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

None.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

None.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

None.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

None.

13.0

Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

13.1

None.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

Page 142

No

APPENDIX 10(a)

Page 143

Planning report to the Audit Committee for the year ending 31 March 2021
Issued on 20 September 2021 for the Audit Committee on 30 September 2021
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

Contents
01 Planning report

02 Appendices

Introduction

3

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

5

Our audit explained

6
7

Scope of work and approach

Page 144

Continuous communication and reporting

9

Our risk assessment process

10

Materiality

11

Covid-19 impact

12

Significant risks

15

Value for Money

22

Revisions to auditing standards

24

Purpose of our report and responsibility
statement

28

Prior year misstatements

30

Prior year disclosures

31

Fraud responsibilities and
representations

32

Independence and fees

34

Our approach to quality

36

Value for Money deadline extension

39

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

2

Introduction
The key messages in this report:
Audit quality is our
number one priority.
We plan our audit to
focus on audit quality
and have set the
following audit quality
objectives for this
audit:
•

•

Page 145

•

A robust challenge
of the key
judgements taken
in the preparation
of the financial
statements.
A strong
understanding of
your internal control
environment.
A well planned and
delivered audit that
raises findings early
with those charged
with governance.

We have pleasure in presenting our planning report to the Audit Committee for the 2021 audit. We would like to draw
your attention to the key messages as set out below:
Audit
Scope

Our principal audit objective is to obtain sufficient, relevant and reliable audit evidence to enable us
to express an opinion on the statutory accounts of the Council prepared in accordance with the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (“the Code”) issued by CIPFA for the period ending 31
March 2021. We will conduct our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
(“ISAs UK”) as adopted by the UK Auditing Practices Board (“APB”), and Code of Audit Practice
issued by the National Audit Office.
Our responsibilities as auditor, and the responsibilities of the Council, are set out in the ‘PSAA
Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies: Principal Local Authorities and Police
Bodies’ published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.

Significant
Risks

In our audit planning report for 2020, we identified the following areas of significant audit risk which
we expect to remain as significant risks of material misstatement in the 2020/21 statement of
accounts:
• Completeness of accrued expenditure – there is an inherent fraud risk associated with the under
recording of expenditure in order for the Council to report a more favourable year-end position.
We specifically focus this on expenditure accruals.
• Management override of controls – auditing standards presume there is a risk that the accounts
may be fraudulently misstated by management overriding controls. Key areas of focus are: bias
in the preparation of accounting estimates; inappropriate journal entries; and transactions which
have no economic substance.
• Land and Buildings, and Investment Property valuations – valuations are inherently judgemental
and include a number of assumptions
Through our planning work performed, we have identified the following changes in audit risks:
• Risk of fraud in revenue recognition – we have identified this as a significant risk in the current
year as, under ISA 240, there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. Our judgement is that the significant risk at the Council relates to the
recognition of grants with terms and conditions attached including the Covid-19 grants received.
There is a risk that the Council will recognise the income before the terms and conditions have
been met. There are also a number of grants relating to covid-19, such as the business rates
relief, where management need to determine if they are acting in the capacity of an Agent or
Principal.
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

3

Introduction
The key messages in this report (continued):
Value for
Money

The National Audit Office’s 2020 Code of Audit Practice revises the scope of the required work of the auditor on bodies’
arrangements to secure value for money, moving away from a binary conclusion on arrangements in the audit report to a
narrative commentary in a new “Auditor’s Annual Report” (which replaces the Annual Audit Letter). The new requirements
in this area are discussed further on pages 22-23.

Brexit

The Council will be preparing its Annual Report against the backdrop of continued uncertainty related to Brexit.
The Council will also need to consider the inclusion of Brexit in the Annual Report for 2020/21, particularly in the areas of
risk reporting, going concern and impairment.

Page 146

Covid-19

See pages 12 to 14 for details of how Covid-19 may impact the Council’s Narrative Report, financial statements and the
overall audit process.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

4

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
Helping you fulfil your responsibilities
Why do we interact with
the Audit Committee?
To
communicate
audit scope

Page 147

To provide
timely and
relevant
observations

To provide
additional
information to
help you fulfil
your broader
responsibilities

As a result of regulatory change in recent years, the role of the Audit Committee has
significantly expanded. We set out here a summary of the core areas of Audit Committee
responsibility to provide a reference in respect of these broader responsibilities.

- At the start of each annual
audit cycle, ensure that the
scope of the external audit is
appropriate

- Review the internal control
and risk management systems
- Explain what actions have
been, or are being, taken to
remedy any significant failings
or weaknesses

- Ensure that appropriate
arrangements are in place for
the proportionate and
independent investigation of
any concerns that are raised
by staff in connection with
improprieties

Oversight of
external audit

Integrity of
reporting

Internal controls
and risks

Oversight of
internal audit

Whistle-blowing
and fraud

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

- Impact assessment of key
judgements and level of
management challenge
- Review of external audit findings,
key judgements, and level of
misstatements
- Assess the quality of the internal
team, their incentives and the need
for supplementary skillsets
- Assess the completeness of
disclosures, including consistency
with disclosures on operational
model and strategy

- Monitor and review the
effectiveness of the internal
audit activities
- Consider annually whether the
scope of the internal audit
programme is adequate

5

Our audit explained
We tailor our audit to your business and your strategy
Identify changes in your business
and environment
We have spent time with management
understanding the current year matters
to assist with the preparation of our risk
assessment for the audit. The matter
which will have the biggest impact will
be the continuing impacts from the
Covid-19 pandemic. We will continue to
keep this under review throughout the
audit process.

Page 148

Identify
changes
in your
business and
environment

Determine
materiality

Scoping
Our work will be carried out in
accordance with the Code of
Audit Practice and supporting
auditor guidance notes issued
by the NAO.
More detail is given on page 7.

Scoping

Significant
risk
assessment

In our final report
In our final report to you we will conclude on
the significant risks identified in this paper,
report to you our other findings, and detail
those items we will be including in our audit
report.

Conclude on
significant
risk areas

Other
findings

Our audit
report

Quality and Independence
Determine materiality
We have determined materiality for the Group and
Council only of £11.2m (2019/20 £10.8m) and
£10.5m (2019/20 £9.9m) respectively. This is
based on 2% of gross expenditure per the
2020/21 draft financial statements. We have set
performance materiality for the Group and Council
of £7.3m (2019/20 £7.5m) and £6.8m (2019/20
£6.9m) respectively. We will report to you any
misstatements above £0.5m (2019/20 £0.5m).
We will also report to you any misstatements
below this threshold if we consider them to be
material by nature.

Significant risk assessment
The significant risks identified for
2020/21 are the same as those for
2019/20, except for the risk of fraud
in revenue recognition as noted on
page 3. More details on the significant
risks for the current year are given on
pages 15 to 19.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

We confirm all Deloitte network firms
and engagement team members are
independent of Blackpool Council. We
take our independence and the
quality of the audit work we perform
very seriously. Audit quality is our
number one priority.

6

Scope of work and approach
We have four key areas of responsibility under the Audit Code
Financial statements

Annual Governance Statement

We will conduct our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit
Practice and supporting guidance issued by the National Audit Office
(‘’NAO’’) and International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”)
as adopted by the UK Auditing Practices Board (“APB”). The Council
will prepare its accounts under the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting (“the Code”) issued by CIPFA and LASAAC.

We are required to report on whether other information published
with the audited financial statements is consistent with the financial
statements.

We report on whether the financial statements:

Page 149

•

Give a true and fair view of the financial position and income and
expenditure; and

•

Are prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting (‘’the Code’’).

Other information includes information included in the Statement of
Accounts, in particular the Narrative Report. It also includes the
Annual Governance Statement which the Council is required to
publish alongside the Statement of Accounts.
In reading the information given with financial statements, we take
into account our knowledge of the Council, including that gained
through work in relation to the Council’s arrangements for securing
value for money through economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

Value for Money conclusion

Group audit

The National Audit Office’s 2020 Code of Audit Practice revises the
scope of the required work of the auditor on bodies’ arrangements
to secure value for money, moving away from a binary conclusion
on arrangements in the audit report to a narrative commentary in a
new “Auditor’s Annual Report” (which replaces the Annual Audit
Letter). See pages 22-23 for full details of the new requirements in
this area.

We are undertaking our scoping of the components for the Group
audit and will perform direct testing of the subsidiary balances which
are material to the Group financial statements. In the prior year, we
noted the main subsidiary companies in the context of the Group
audit were Blackpool Transport Services and Blackpool Coastal
Housing. However, due to their size, they were not considered to be
significant components.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

7

Scope of work and approach
Our approach
Liaison with Internal Audit

Promoting high quality reporting to stakeholders

The Auditing Standards Board’s version of ISA (UK) 610 “Using the
work of internal auditors” prohibits use of Internal Audit to provide
“direct assistance” to the audit. Our approach to the use of the
work of Internal Audit has been designed to be compatible with
these requirements.

We view the audit role as going beyond reactively checking
compliance with requirements: we seek to provide advice on
evolving good practice to promote high quality reporting.

We will review Internal Audit reports and meet with the team to
discuss their work. We will discuss the work plan for Internal Audit,
and where they have identified specific material deficiencies in the
control environment, we will consider adjusting our testing so that
the audit risk is covered by our work.

We recommend the Council complete the Code checklist during
drafting of their financial statements.
We will perform an early review of the draft financial statements and
will provide any insights to management on a timely basis.

Page 150

Using these discussions to inform our risk assessment, we can work
together with Internal Audit to develop an approach that avoids
inefficiencies and overlaps, therefore avoiding any unnecessary
duplication of audit requirements on the Council's staff.

Approach to controls testing
Our risk assessment procedures will include obtaining an
understanding of controls considered to be ‘relevant to the audit’.
This involves evaluating the design of the controls and determining
whether they have been implemented (“D & I”).
The results of our work in obtaining an understanding of controls
and any subsequent testing of the operational effectiveness of
controls will be collated and the impact on the extent of substantive
audit testing required will be considered.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

8

Continuous communication and reporting
Planned timing of the audit
As the audit plan is executed throughout the year, the results will be analysed continuously and conclusions (preliminary
and otherwise) will be drawn. The following sets out the expected timing of our reporting to and communication with you.

Planning

Year end fieldwork

Page 151

Planning meetings to
inform risk
assessment; and agree
on key judgemental
accounting issues.

Document design and implementation of key
controls and update understanding of key
business cycles.

Update understanding
of key and changes to
financial reporting.

Scoping of components for the Group audit.

Review of key Council
documents including
Executive, Council and
Audit Committee
minutes.

Finalisation of work in support of value for money
responsibilities.

Update on value for money responsibilities.

Substantive testing of all areas.

Detailed review of annual accounts and report,
including Annual Governance Statement.

Reporting activities
Year-end closing
meetings.
Reporting of significant
control deficiencies.
Signing audit reports in
respect of Financial
Statements.
Whole of Government
Accounts reporting.
Issuing Auditor’s
Annual Report.

Review of final internal audit reports and opinion.
Completion of testing on significant audit risks.

2020/21 Audit Plan

September
2021

Verbal update to the Audit Committee

Final report to the
Audit Committee

August - October
2021

November 2021

Ongoing communication and feedback
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

9

Significant risks
Our risk assessment process

Principal risk and uncertainties

Page 152

We consider a number of factors when deciding
on the significant audit risks. These factors
include:
• the significant risks and uncertainties
previously reported in the Narrative Report
and financial statements;
• the IAS 1 critical accounting estimates
previously reported in the Narrative Report
and financial statements;
• the disclosures made by the Audit Committee
in their previous Audit Committee report;
• our assessment of materiality; and
• the changes that have occurred in the
business and the environment it operates in
since the last Narrative Report and financial
statements.
Deloitte view
Management must carefully consider the
principal risks, uncertainties and accounting
estimates of the Council.
Page 15 summarises the significant risks
that we will focus on during our audit.

•

Resource management

•

Information governance

•

Ability to secure commercial
opportunities

•

Underachievement of savings

•

Health & Safety

Changes in your business and
environment
•
•

Impacts of Covid-19
Continued overspends in Children &
Young People’s Services

•

Overspend in Health and Adult
Services

•

Increasing income generation from
more commercial activities

NAO – Auditor Guidance Note 06

The National Audit Office identified
transitional protection for certain
pension scheme members, Guaranteed
Minimum Pensions Equalisation,
Dedicated Schools Grant – negative
reserve, and pension guarantees to
other entities as key issues in their
Local Government Audit Planning
guidance issued in June 2021.
We reviewed the approach being taken
by the Council in response to these in
the prior year audit and will refresh
our understanding for the current year.
We do not believe any of these
matters represent a significant audit
risk but we will carefully review the
approach being taken by the Council to
address these issues.

IAS 1 Critical accounting
estimates
•
•

Future funding levels
Property valuations

•
•

Recognition of schools’ fixed assets
Pension liabilities

•
•

Valuation of investments
Provisions and contingencies

•

Investment valuations

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

10

Materiality
Our approach to materiality
Basis of our materiality benchmark

Reporting to those charged with governance

•

We have determined materiality for the Group and Council • We will report to you all misstatements found in excess of
only of £11.2m (2019/20 £10.8m) and £10.5m (2019/20
£0.5m (2019/20 £0.5m).
£9.9m) respectively, based on professional judgement, the
• We will report to you misstatements below this threshold if
requirements of auditing standards and the financial
we consider them to be material by nature.
measures most relevant to users of the financial
Reporting on Group Accounts
statements.

•

We have used 2% of gross expenditure based on the draft
2020/21 accounts as the benchmark for determining our
preliminary materiality.

• Based on our assessment of the draft year end position we
have identified that we will need to undertake detailed
testing on the subsidiary balances which are material to
the Group financial statements.

Page 153

Although materiality is the
judgement of the audit partner,
the Audit Committee must satisfy
themselves that the level of
materiality chosen is appropriate
for the scope of the audit.

Council Materiality

Gross Expenditure
£525.6m

Gross Expenditure

Materiality £10.5m

Audit Committee reporting
threshold £0.5m

Materiality

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

11

Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on our audit
Requirements

CIPFA has issued guidance highlighting the importance of considering the impact of Covid-19 in preparation of the financial
statements, including communicating risks and governance impacts in narrative reporting. This is consistent with the Financial
Reporting Council’s guidance to organisations on the importance of communicating the impact of Covid-19 and related
uncertainties, including their impact on resilience and going concern assessments.
Entity-specific explanations of the current and expected effects of Covid-19 and the Council’s plans to mitigate those effects should
be included in the narrative reporting (including where relevant the Annual Governance Statement), including in the discussion on
Principal Risks and Uncertainties impacting an organisation.
As well as the
the impact on
management,
and resilience

Actions

effects upon reserves, financial performance and financial position, examples of areas highlighted by CIPFA include
service provision, changes to the workforce and how they are deployed, impacts upon the supply chain, cash flow
and plans for recovery. Risks highlighted include those relating to subsidiaries and investments, capital programmes,
of the community including partner organisations and charities.

We therefore expect a thorough assessment of the current and potential future effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including:

Page 154

•

A detailed analysis across the Council’s operations, including on its income streams, supply chains and cost base, and the
consequent impacts on financial position and reserves;

•

The economic scenario or scenarios assumed in making forecasts and on the sensitivities arising should other potential scenarios
materialise (including different funding scenarios); and
The effect of events after the reporting date, including the nature of non-adjusting events and an estimate of their financial
effect, where possible.

•

Impact on the Council
We will consider the key impacts
on the business such as:

•

Interruptions to service
provision
Supply chain disruptions

•
•

Unavailability of personnel
Reductions in income

•

The closure of facilities and
premises

•

Impact on annual report and financial statements
We have considered the impact of the outbreak on the annual report and
financial statements, discussed further on the next slide including:

Impact on our audit
We have considered the impact on the
audit including:

•
•

Principal risk disclosures
Impact on property, plant and equipment

•
•

Resource planning
Timetable of the audit

•
•

Valuation of commercial or investment properties
Impact on pension fund investment measurement and impairment

•
•

•
•

Going concern assessment
Events after the reporting period and relevant disclosures

Impact on our risk assessment
Logistics including meetings with
entity personnel

•
•

Bad debts provision policy
Narrative reporting

•
•

Impairment of non-current assets
Allowance for expected credit losses
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

12

Covid-19 impact on annual report and financial statements
Impact on
property, plant and
equipment

The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors issued a practice alert in March 2020, as a result of which valuers identified a
material valuation uncertainty at 31 March 2020 for most types of property valuation, resulting in disclosure in financial
statements and “emphasis of matter” paragraphs in audit reports. By September 2020, RICS considered that there was no
longer material uncertainty over valuations from that date, and therefore valuations at 31 March 2021 are not expected to be
affected by material valuation uncertainties. However, the on-going financial impact of the pandemic has impacted valuations,
both through demand for particular asset types and weakening the financial standing of tenants.
The Council needs to consider its approach to the measurement of property, plant and equipment (PPE). Where property held
at current value is based on market valuations the Council should consider with their valuers the impact that Covid-19 has
had on current value. The Council will also need to consider whether there are any indications of impairment of assets
requiring adjustment at 31 March 2021.

Following the Covid-19 pandemic, the fair value measurements for financial instruments and investment properties held by
the Council needs to be reviewed against the conditions and assumptions at the measurement date. Although volatility is
lower relative to 31 March 2020, there have been significant market movements during the year which may impact
valuations.

Impact on pension
fund investment
measurement

As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, pension fund investments have been subject to volatility. It is important to engage
early with custodians and fund managers to not only gather information for year-end measurements but to also understand
any estimation techniques and any changes to those techniques that may be needed to measure the financial instruments.
Where such volatility exists it may mean that the inputs used in the fair value measurement may change and may require a
change of measurement technique, and consideration of the level of uncertainty in valuations where there is significantly
more estimation.

Expected credit
losses

Since 31 March 2020, there has been a significant downturn in economic activity, with many businesses and individuals
significantly impacted. The Council will need to consider the provision for credit losses for receivables, including for expected
credit losses for assets accounted for under IFRS 9.

Recoverability of
long term debtors

The Council has provided loans to a number of its subsidiaries and also, under the Business Loan Fund, to private companies.
Due to the potential detrimental impact of Covid-19 on a wide range of companies within the economy, there is an increased
risk over the recoverability of these loans. The Council will need to perform a detailed assessment of the recoverability of the
outstanding loans.

Page 155

Valuation of
commercial or
investment
properties

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

13

Covid-19 impact on annual report and financial statements
(continued)
The Council needs to report on the impact of financial pressures and its financial sustainability in the Narrative Report and
the relevant liquidity reporting requirements under the Code’s adoption of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.

Narrative and other
reporting issues

The following areas will need to be considered by local authorities as having being impacted on by the Covid-19 pandemic.
• Narrative reporting as well as the usual reporting requirements will need to cover the effects of the pandemic on
services, operations, performance, strategic direction, resources and financial sustainability.
• Reporting judgements and estimation uncertainty, the Council will need to report the impact on material transactions
including decisions made on the measurements of assets and liabilities

Events after the
reporting period

The economic environment and impact of the pandemic continues to be highly uncertain. The Council will need to consider
the events after the reporting period and whether these events will be adjusting or non-adjusting and make decisions on a
transaction by transaction basis. The nature of the Covid-19 pandemic will mean that the Council will need to continue to
review and update these assessments up to the date the accounts are authorised for issue.

Page 156

Financial risk
disclosures

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

14

Significant risks
Significant risk dashboard
Risk

Material

Fraud risk

Completeness of
Accrued Expenditure

Planned approach to
controls

Level of management
judgement/ estimate

Slide no.

Page 157

D+I

16

Management Override
of Controls

D+I

17

Property Valuations

D+I

Risk of Fraud in
Revenue Recognition

D+I

18

19

D+I: Assessing the design and implementation of key controls
Low level of management judgement/
estimate

Moderate level of management judgement/
estimate

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

High level of management judgement/
estimate

15

Significant risks
Risk 1 – Completeness of Accrued Expenditure
Risk identified

Under ISA 240, there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue
recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements
may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition. In the current year, we have identified the risk
as relating specifically to year end accruals.
There is an inherent fraud risk associated with the under recording of expenditure in order for the Council
to report a more favourable year-end position. For Blackpool Council, there is therefore an inherent risk
that it may materially misstate its expenditure through the understatement of accruals in an attempt to
report a more favourable year end position.

Our response

Our work in this area will include the following:

Page 158

•

We will update our understanding of, and test the design and implementation of, the key controls in place
in relation to recording of accruals;

•

We will review and discuss with management any accounting estimates relating to expenditure
recognition, such as manual accruals, for evidence of bias; and

•

We will perform focused testing in relation to the completeness of accruals through testing of post-year
end payments made.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

16

Significant risks
Risk 2 – Management Override of Controls
Risk identified

In accordance with ISA 240 (UK), management override of controls is a significant risk due to fraud for all entities.
This risk area includes the potential for management to use their judgement to influence the financial statements as
well as the potential to override the Council's controls for specific transactions.
The key judgements in the financial statements include those which we have selected to be the significant audit risks,
(completeness of accrued expenditure, the Council’s property valuations and recognition of grant income) and any oneoff and unusual transactions where management could show bias. These are inherently the areas in which
management has the potential to use their judgment to influence the financial statements.

Our response

In considering the risk of management override, we plan to perform the following audit procedures that directly
address this risk:
• We will test the design and implementation of key controls in place around journal entries and key management
estimates;

Page 159

•
•
•

We will risk assess journals and select items for detailed testing. The journal entries will be selected using computerassisted profiling based on areas which we consider to be of increased interest;
We will review accounting estimates for biases that could result in material misstatements due to fraud; and,
We will obtain an understanding of the business rationale of significant transactions that we become aware of that
are outside of the normal course of business for the Council, or that otherwise appear to be unusual, given our
understanding of the entity and its environment.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

17

Significant risks
Risk 3 – Property Valuations
Risk
identified

The value of land and buildings and investment properties represent significant balances in the Council’s financial statements
and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to make
material judgements in respect of key assumptions and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances
recorded in the balance sheet.
The Council has adopted a rolling revaluation model which sees all land and buildings revalued over a four year cycle. As a
result of this, however, individual assets may not be revalued for three years and any changes to the factors used in the
valuation process could materially affect the value of the Council’s assets as at year end.
There is therefore a risk that the value of property assets materially differ from the year end fair value, particularly given
that valuations are inherently judgemental and include a number of assumptions.

Page 160

Our
response

It should be noted that investment properties are all valued in full on an annual basis. As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic
there has been significant market movements during the year which will impact on the valuations of the investment
properties held by the Council. This increases the level of judgment required in valuing the assets.
Our work in this area will include the following:
•
•

We will review the design and implementation of the controls in place in relation to property valuations;
We will consider the work performed by the Council’s valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed,
their professional capabilities and the results of their work;

•

We will engage our valuation specialists, Deloitte Real Estate, to review and challenge the appropriateness of the
assumptions used in the valuation of the Council’s property assets;
We will sample test key asset information used by the Council’s valuers in performing their valuation, such as gross
internal areas, back to supporting documentation;

•
•
•
•

We will review assets not subject to valuation in 2020/21 and confirm that the remaining asset base is not materially
misstated;
We will consider the impact of Covid-19 on the valuation of property assets and ensure, where necessary, the Council has
reflected the impact in their valuations; and
We will review the presentation of revaluation movements, and the disclosures included in the Statement of Accounts.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

18

Significant risks
Risk 4 – Risk of Fraud in Revenue Recognition
Risk
identified

Under ISA 240, there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. Local
authorities have a statutory duty to balance their annual budget and are operating in a financially challenged environment
with reducing levels of government funding and increasing demand for services. Achievement of budget is critical to
minimising the impact and usage of the Council’s usable reserves and provides a basis for the following year’s budget. Any
deficit outturn against the budget is therefore not a desirable outcome for the Council and management, and therefore this
desire to achieve budget increases the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated.
Our judgement is that the significant risk at the Council relates to the recognition of grants with terms and conditions
attached, including the new grants received in year relating to Covid-19 where terms and conditions may be less clear and
there is no historical basis for the accounting treatment. There is a risk that the Council will recognise the income before the
terms and conditions have been met. There are also a number of grants relating to Covid-19, such as the business rates
relief, where management need to determine if they are acting in the capacity of an Agent or Principal.

Page 161

Our
response

Our work in this area will include the following:
•

We will test the design and implementation of key controls in place around the recognition of grant income;

•

We will review the accounting treatment of new Covid-related grants for 2020/21 to confirm that they have been correctly
accounted for as either an Agent or Principal arrangement; and

•

We will test a sample of grants including the new Covid-related grants to ensure that any terms and conditions were met
prior to recognition as income.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

19

Other areas of audit focus
Other accounting judgments and areas of focus which have not currently
been identified as significant audit risks are as follows
Our response

Pension liability valuation

Our work in this area will include the following:

The net pension liability is a material element of the Council’s
balance sheet. The valuation of the Scheme relies on a number of
assumptions, including actuarial assumptions, and actuarial
methodology which results in the Council’s overall valuation.
Furthermore there are financial and demographic assumptions used
in the calculation of the Council’s valuation – e.g. the discount rate,
inflation rates, mortality rates. These assumptions should also
reflect the profile of the Council’s employees, and should be based
on appropriate data. There is a risk that the assumptions and
methodology used in the valuation of the Council’s pension
obligation are not reasonable. This could have a material impact to
the net pension liability accounted for in the financial statements.

•

Page 162

Risk identified

•
•
•

We will evaluate the competency, objectivity and independence of
the actuarial specialist;
We will review the methodology and appropriateness of the
assumptions used in the valuation, utilising a Deloitte Actuary to
provide specialist assessment of the variables used;
We will review the accounting treatment for the pension
prepayment; and
We will review the pension related disclosures in the financial
accounts.

In the current year, the Council has made the decision to pay the
employer pension contributions and deficit contributions for 21/22
and 22/23 upfront. The total value of the contributions was £23m.
Investment valuations

Our work in this areas will include the following:

The subsidiary entities are valued by an external valuer, based on a
range of assumptions including the future expected performance of
the individual entities. Due to the impact of Covid-19 on the
economy, there is an increased risk that some of these investments
may require impairment if the business plans have been impacted
significantly.

•
•
•
•

We will obtain the valuations provided by Smith Craven;
We will involve our valuation specialists to assist in our
assessment of the assumptions and methodology underpinning
the valuations;
We will hold discussions with Smith Craven to further develop our
understanding of the valuation approach; and
For a sample of the investments held by the Council, we
developed an independent valuation range to assess the
reasonableness of the Council’s current investment values.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

20

Other areas of audit focus
Other accounting judgments and areas of focus which have not currently
been identified as significant audit risks are as follows (continued)
Risk identified

Our response

Long term debtor recoverability

Our work in this area will include the following:
• We will obtain loan agreements from the Council for a sample of
loans. We will review the terms and conditions included in the
agreements, with a particular focus on any collateral that is
included in the agreements;
• We will review and assess the current operational status of each
company in our sample, including reviewing the latest set of
audited financial statements for the company, in order to identify
any potential risks to the recoverability of the loan provided by
the Council; and
• We will obtain and review management’s assessment of the
recoverability of the loans.

Page 163

At 31 March 2021, the Council had provided loans totalling £86m to
a number of its subsidiaries and private companies. During the
year, the Council offered a six month repayment holiday from 1
April 2020 to 30 September 2020 to all businesses with a loan from
the Council. Due to the impact of Covid-19 on a wide range of
companies within the economy, we believe there is a risk that some
of these entities may not be able to repay the loans provided by the
Council, and as a result the value of the loans at 31 March 2021,
may need to be impaired.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

21

Value for Money
Areas of focus
We are required to consider the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. Under the
revised requirements of the Code of Audit Practice 2020 and related Auditor Guidance Note 03, we are required to:
•

Perform work to understand the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources against each of
the three reporting criteria:
•

Financial sustainability: How the body plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services.

•

Governance: How the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks.

•

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: How the body uses information about its costs and performance to improve the
way it manages and delivers its services.

•

Undertake a risk assessment to identify whether there are any risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements;

•

If any risks of significant weaknesses are identified, perform procedures to determine whether there is in fact a significant weakness in
arrangements, and if so to make recommendations for improvement;

Page 164
•

Issue a narrative commentary in the Auditor’s Annual Report (which replaces the Annual Audit Letter), setting out the work undertaken in
respect of the reporting criteria and our findings, including any explanation needed in respect of judgements or local context for findings. If
significant weaknesses are identified, the weaknesses and recommendations will be included in the reporting, together with follow-up of
previous recommendations and whether they have been implemented. Where relevant, we may include reporting on any other matters arising
we consider relevant to VfM arrangements, which might include emerging risks or issues.

•

Where significant weaknesses are identified, report this by exception within our financial statement audit opinion.

The National Audit Office and the audit firms are continuing to discuss the practical implementation of these new requirements and expectations as
to the extent of procedures underpinning these requirements, including the timetable required for VfM work and reporting for 2020/21.
Expectations in this area are likely to continue to evolve as practical issues emerge in implementation. We have included a letter to the Audit
Committee on page 39 detailing the VfM extension.
Specific areas that we expect to focus on in understanding the Council’s arrangements include the Council’s response to the financial pressures
from Covid-19 in 2020/21 and the Council’s longer term planning for financial sustainability, the 2018 Ofsted findings in relation to children’s
services and the Council’s commercial activities.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

22

Value for Money
Areas of focus (continued)
Ofsted Findings

Financial Sustainability

In November and December 2018, Ofsted conducted an inspection of
children’s social care services. Following this inspection, the Children’s
Services were given an overall rating in the report (January 2019) of
‘Inadequate’.

The Council, like most of local government, faces significant
challenges over the short and medium term due to the ongoing cuts
in funding and increased demand for services. Covid-19 presents a
significant financial challenge for the Council in 2020/21 and beyond.

Our work in this area will involve:
• Review of any subsequent correspondence with Ofsted;
•

Page 165

•

Consideration of the findings and conclusions made in the Ofsted
report, including review of the Council’s progress to date in
delivering actions to address the findings; and
Review of management progress in developing an action plan and
the arrangements put in place by the Council to deliver
improvement

Commercial Activity

Our work in this area will involve:
•

Obtaining an understanding of the Council’s Medium Term
Financial Plan, budget for 2021/22 and transformation
programmes;

•

Discussions with the Director of Resources, and senior operational
staff;
Review of the Council’s draft Narrative Report, Annual Governance
Statement and Council papers and minutes;

•
•
•

The Council has a number of ongoing commercial activities including
the purchase and redevelopment of Houndshill shopping centre and
the business loans made to its subsidiaries and private companies.
There is an inherent risk associated with commercial activity and the
Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on a number of
sectors including retail and hospitality.

•

Consideration of issues identified in our financial statements audit
work;
Consideration of the Council’s financial results, including delivery
of savings, and the Council’s plan; and
Review of any reports from regulators issued in the year.

Our work in this area will involve:
•

•

Consideration of the robustness of the Council’s governance
arrangements used to assess the ongoing viability and other risks
associated with the commercial activity; and
Review of the processes in place to assess the risks to the Council
when issuing new loans to third parties.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

23

Revisions to auditing standards coming into effect
ISA (UK) 570 – Going concern

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) issued a revised going concern standard in
September 2019, that takes effect for periods commencing on or after 15
December 2019. For Local Government bodies, this will be March 2021 year ends
and later.
The revision was made in response to recent enforcement cases and well-publicised
corporate failures where the auditor’s report failed to highlight concerns about the
prospects of entities which collapsed shortly after.

Page 166

We have summarised below the key areas of change in the standard – however,
the Public Audit Forum is also consulting on changes to Practice Note 10, with the
intention of reflecting public sector considerations in the approach to going concern,
and so the ultimate impact of ISA (UK) 570 changes will be affected by this.

“The revised standard means UK
auditors will follow significantly
stronger requirements than those
required by current international
standards.”
FRC’s press release, 30 September
2019

The key changes affect:
•

Risk assessment procedures and related activities, increasing consideration of
the entity’s business model, operations and financing;

•

The auditor’s evaluation of management’s assessment of the going concern
assumption (which therefore requires a clearly documented assessment);

•

Enhanced professional scepticism requirements, including around the evaluation
of the sufficiency and appropriateness of audit evidence;

•

Considering the appropriateness of disclosures; and

•

Reporting in enhanced audit reports.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

24

Revisions to auditing standards coming into effect
ISA (UK) 540 – Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related
Disclosures
Since 2015, the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) has
sought to identify audit issues relating to accounting estimates for financial
institutions and other entities. Initially, this focused on the impact of IFRS 9
Financial Instruments, because it would fundamentally change the way that banks
and other entities account for loan assets and other credit exposures.
However, the IAASB concluded that most, if not all, issues identified for expected
credit losses would be equally relevant when auditing other complex accounting
estimates. Accordingly, a holistic revision of ISA 540 was undertaken and the new
standard takes effect for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2020. For
Local Government bodies, this will be March 2021 year ends and later.

“There is a clear need to update ISA
540 to support better quality audits
of increasingly complex accounting
estimates”
FRC letter to the IAASB, July 2017

Page 167

We summarise on the next few slides how this will impact our audit.

Area of change

Impact on our audit

Assessment of oversight and In connection with our planning work to understand the entity and its
governance relating to
environment, including internal control, we will specifically inquire
estimates
regarding management’s processes, and the oversight and
governance of those processes relating to accounting estimates.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

Impact on the directors
You will need to consider the
adequacy of your processes and
controls over estimates, and
documentation thereof.

25

Revisions to auditing standards coming into effect
ISA (UK) 540 – Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures

Area of change
Identification of inherent
risk factors; separate
assessment of inherent risk
and control risk

Impact on our audit
Recognising a spectrum of inherent risk, we will assess risks of
material misstatement in estimates with reference not only to
estimation uncertainty, but also complexity, subjectivity or other
inherent risk factors, and the interrelationship among them.

Page 168

Objectives-based work effort We will specifically assess control risk relating to estimates, which
requirements
may require us to evaluate the design and determine implementation
of an increased number of internal controls. Our subsequent audit
procedures will be responsive to this assessment, and designed to
obtain evidence around the methods, significant assumptions, data
and (where applicable) the selection of a point estimate and related
disclosures about estimation uncertainty.

Enhanced “stand back”
We will specifically design our procedures, to enhance our application
requirement, to evaluate the of professional scepticism, so that they are not biased towards
audit evidence obtained
finding corroborative evidence; our overall evaluation of the evidence
obtained will weigh both corroborative and contradictory evidence.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

Impact on the directors
You will need to provide clear
documented rationale for (a) the
selection and application of the
method, assumptions and data
in making the accounting
estimate, including any changes
in the current year, and controls
relating to those aspects; and/or
(b) the selection of a point
estimate and related disclosures
for inclusion in the financial
statements.

You should expect more
challenge of the evidence
provided in support of
accounting estimates, use of
external data sources and your
consideration of contradictory
evidence.

26

Revisions to auditing standards coming into effect
ISA (UK) 540 – Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures

Area of change
Enhanced requirements
about whether disclosures
are “reasonable”

Page 169

New requirements when
communicating with those
charged with governance

Impact on our audit

Impact on the directors

The extant ISA 540 required us to evaluate whether disclosures were
“adequate”. The change to “reasonable” will involve greater
consideration of the overall meaning conveyed through disclosures.
For example, where estimation uncertainty associated with an
estimate is multiple times materiality, we will consider whether the
disclosures appropriately convey the high degree of estimation
uncertainty and the range of possible outcomes.

You should expect more
challenge on disclosures relating
to estimates, particularly for
where you have selected a point
estimate from a range and those
with high estimation uncertainty.

In accordance with ISA (UK) 260 and ISA (UK) 265, our
communications from the audit have included significant qualitative
aspects of your accounting practices and significant deficiencies in
internal control. With the revised ISA (UK) 540, these
communications will specifically include matters regarding accounting
estimates and take into account whether the reasons for our risk
assessment relate to estimation uncertainty, or the effects of
complexity, subjectivity or other inherent risk factors.

You should expect increased
reporting in relation to
accounting estimates.

Areas where we consider the impact to be greatest:
Key areas impacted will include property valuations, revenue recognition and provisioning, accruals and provisions.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

27

Purpose of our report and responsibility statement
Our report is designed to help you meet your governance duties
What we report

What we don’t report

Our report is designed to establish our respective
responsibilities in relation to the financial statements
audit, to agree our audit plan and to take the opportunity
to ask you questions at the planning stage of our audit.
Our audit plan, includes our consideration of key audit
judgements and our planned scope.

As you will be aware, our audit is not designed to identify
all matters that may be relevant to the Council.
Also, there will be further information you need to
discharge your governance responsibilities, such as
matters reported on by management or by other
specialist advisers.

Page 170

Finally, the views on internal controls and business risk
assessment in our final report should not be taken as
comprehensive or as an opinion on effectiveness since
they will be based solely on the audit procedures
performed in the audit of the financial statements and the
other procedures performed in fulfilling our audit plan.

Use of this report

Other relevant communications

This report has been prepared for the Audit Committee on
behalf of the Council, as a body, and we therefore accept
responsibility to you alone for its contents. We accept no
duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties, since
this report has not been prepared, and is not intended,
for any other purpose. Except where required by law or
regulation, it should not be made available to any other
parties without our prior written consent.

We will update you if there are any significant changes to
the audit plan.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss our report with
you and receive your feedback.

In the prior year, we communicated audit findings and
control recommendations to management, and these will
be followed up as part of our audit visits to assess how
these have been addressed in the current year.

Deloitte LLP
Newcastle upon Tyne | 20 September 2021

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

28

Appendices
Page 171
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

29

Audit adjustments
Prior year unadjusted misstatements
The following uncorrected misstatements were raised as part of the prior year audit. These uncorrected misstatements
decreased the surplus by £6.7 million, decreased net assets by £7.1 million and decreased unusable reserves by £0.5
million.
Debit/ (credit) CIES
£’000

Debit/ (credit)
in net assets
£’000

Debit/ (credit) prior year
reserves
£’000

Misstatements identified in prior year

Impairment of investment - BTS

[1]

Cr Investment

(£5,750)

Dr Expenditure

Page 172

Promenade, Tramways valuation

£5,750
[2]

Dr Capital adjustment account

£496

Cr Property, Plant and equipment
Goodwin

(£496)
[3]

£900

Dr Expenditure
(£900)

Cr Pension liability
Impairment reserve

[4]

Dr Revaluation Reserve

£9,251

Cr Capital adjustment account
Opportunity Area grant
Dr Income
Cr Expenditure
Total
[1]
[2]
[3]
[4]
[5]

(£9,251)
[5]
£2,966
(£2,966)
£6,650

(£7,146)

£496

Judgemental misstatement in relation to the value of the Council’s investment in BTS.
Judgemental misstatement in relation to the valuation of the Promenade, Tramways asset.
The Council has elected not to include the adjustment in relation to the Goodwin ruling within the pension balance.
Judgemental misstatement in relation to the impact of the Council assessment of reversal of historic impairments.
Factual misstatement in relation to the opportunity area grant
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

30

Audit adjustments
Prior year disclosures
Disclosure misstatements
The following uncorrected disclosure misstatements were identified as part of the prior year audit.
Disclosure

Summary of disclosure requirement

Disclosure of judgement/uncertainty around business
loan recoverability

There has been a widespread impact from the Covid-19 pandemic on the UK economy, one of the ways in which
this affects the Council’s financial statements specifically is an increased risk around the recovery of loans that it
has provided companies in Blackpool from the Business Loan Fund. Given the judgemental nature of the
assessment of recoverability this should be disclosed within the notes to the accounts.

Page 173

FV disclosures

We identified some potential differences in the fair value disclosures as set out in Note 20 of the financial
statements. As these items are disclosure only, we did not propose to amend the financial statements. However
we do propose that the Council reviews the calculations from the treasury adviser to confirm that the
methodology used complies with the accounting standards and CIPFA guidance.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

Cash and non-cash flows have been aggregated rather than being split into separate columns within the
reconciliation.

Prior year Public Health gross expenditure

The prior year public health gross expenditure figure included an immaterial internal recharge amount which was
not removed as part of the financial statement preparation process.

Trade Union Facility Time

Under the regulations the Council is required to include the facility time data in the Annual Report as well as
publish on the Council's website.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

31

Fraud responsibilities and representations
Responsibilities explained

Page 174

Your Responsibilities:
The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud
rests with management and those charged with governance,
including establishing and maintaining internal controls over the
reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of
operations and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

We will request the following to be
stated in the representation letter
signed on behalf of the Council:
•

We acknowledge our responsibilities for
the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud and error.

Our Responsibilities:

•

We have disclosed to you the results of
our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud.

•

We are not aware of any fraud or
suspected fraud / We have disclosed
to you all information in relation to
fraud or suspected fraud that we are
aware of and that affects the entity or
group and involves:
(i) management;
(ii) employees who have significant
roles in internal control; or

• We are required to obtain representations from your management
regarding internal controls, assessment of risk and any known or
suspected fraud or misstatement.
• As auditors, we obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.
• As set out in the significant risks section of this document, we
have identified the risk of fraud in expenditure accruals, grant
income recognition and management override of controls as key
audit risks for the Council.

(iii) others where the fraud could
have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Fraud Characteristics:
• Misstatements in the financial statements can arise from either
fraud or error. The distinguishing factor between fraud and error
is whether the underlying action that results in the misstatement
of the financial statements is intentional or unintentional.

•

• Two types of intentional misstatements are relevant to us as
auditors – misstatements resulting from fraudulent financial
reporting and misstatements resulting from misappropriation of
assets.
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

We have disclosed to you all
information in relation to allegations of
fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting
the entity’s financial statements
communicated by employees, former
employees, analysts, regulators or
others.

32

Fraud responsibilities and representations
Inquiries
We will make the following inquiries regarding fraud:
Management:
• Management’s assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated due to fraud,
including the nature, extent and frequency of such assessments.
• Management’s process for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the entity.
• Management’s communication, if any, to those charged with governance regarding its processes for identifying
and responding to the risks of fraud in the entity.
• Management’s communication, if any, to employees regarding its views on business practices and ethical
behaviour.
• Whether management has knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity.
• We plan to involve management from outside the finance function in our inquiries.

Page 175

Internal audit
• Whether internal audit has knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity, and to
obtain its views about the risks of fraud.

Those charged with governance
• How those charged with governance exercise oversight of management’s processes for identifying and
responding to the risks of fraud in the entity and the internal control that management has established to
mitigate these risks.
• Whether those charged with governance have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting
the entity.
• The views of those charged with governance on the most significant fraud risk factors affecting the entity.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

33

Independence and fees

As part of our obligations under International Standards on Auditing (UK), we are required to report to you on the
matters listed below:

Page 176

Independence
confirmation

We confirm the audit engagement team, and others in the firm as appropriate, Deloitte LLP and,
where applicable, all Deloitte network firms are independent of the Council and will reconfirm our
independence and objectivity to the Audit Committee for the year ending 31 March 2021 in our
final report to the Audit Committee.

Fees

There are no non-audit fees for 2020/21 outside of those noted in the table on the following
page.

Non-audit
services

We continue to review our independence and ensure that appropriate safeguards are in place
including, but not limited to, the rotation of senior partners and professional staff and the
involvement of additional partners and professional staff to carry out reviews of the work
performed and to otherwise advise as necessary.

Relationships

We have no other relationships with the Council, its directors, senior managers and affiliates, and
have not supplied any services to other known connected parties.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

34

Independence and fees (continued)
The professional fees expected to be charged by Deloitte in the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 are as
follows:
Current year
£

Prior year
£

84,818

84,818

-

TBC

TBC

-

84,818

TBC

Audit related assurance services – Teachers pension return

TBC

4,000

Audit related assurance services – Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts

TBC

4,000

Total assurance services

TBC

8,000

Total fees

TBC

TBC

Financial statement audit including Whole of Government [1]*
Additional fee for prior year audit [2]*
Additional fee for changes in the current year [3]*
Total audit

Page 177

[1] The fee reflected here is the scale fee. In line with recent PSAA correspondence that scale fees should be negotiated by individual
s151 officers based on the individual circumstances of each body, we will be looking to discuss with the Council the current level of
fee.
[2] Fee for additional audit work to be agreed. This will include the impact of the acquisition of Houndshill, Covid-19 procedures and
prior year restatements.
[3] Fee for additional audit work relating to changes to the work required on Value for Money, updated auditing standards and Covid19 procedures. We expect this to be in the range of £25,000 - £30,000.
* All additional fees are subject to agreement with PSAA.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

35

Our approach to quality
AQR team report and findings
Executing high quality audits remains our number one priority. We are
committed to our critical public interest role and continue to embed
our culture of quality and excellence into all of our people. This
includes using new technology and tools to continue to transform our
audit approach.
In July 2021 the Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”) issued individual
reports on each of the seven largest firms, including Deloitte, on Audit
Quality Inspections providing a summary of the findings of its Audit
Quality Review (“AQR”) team for the 2020/21 cycle of reviews.

inspection cycles in the areas subject to rotational review by the FRC.
However, we are continually enhancing our processes and controls
across our business and such changes will directly or indirectly affect
audit quality.
All the AQR public reports are available on its website.
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditors/audit-quality-review/audit-firmspecific-reports

Page 178

We greatly value the FRC reviews of our audit engagements and firm
wide quality control systems, a key aspect of evaluating our audit
quality.
In that context, overall FRC inspection results, showing an
improvement since last year from 76% to 79% of all inspections
assessed as good or needing limited improvement, reflect the
progress we are making. The overall profile of our ICAEW inspections
and our internal inspection programme also show a similar overall
improvement since last year.
The results for the inspections of FTSE 350 entities fell short of our
overall scores, reflecting specific findings on those particular audits
rather than issues pervasive across other audits. Our objective
continues to be for all of our audits to be assessed as good or needing
limited improvement and we know we still have work to do in order to
meet this standard.
We agree with and accept the FRC’s findings on the individual
inspections. The FRC has recognised improvements following the
actions and programmes for previous years and we welcome the good
practice points raised, including in respect of impairment and revenue
where individual findings continue to occur.
Overall, we are pleased that there have been no significant findings
over our firm wide processes and controls over the last three

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

36

Our approach to quality
AQR team report and findings
The AQR’s 2020/21 Audit Quality Inspection Report on
Deloitte LLP
“We reviewed 19 individual audits this year and assessed 15 (79%)
as requiring no more than limited improvements. Of the 11 FTSE
350 audits we reviewed this year, we assessed eight (73%) as
achieving this standard”.

“The firm has taken steps to address the key findings in our
2019/20 public report, with actions that included increasing the
extent of consultations, and enhanced learning, coaching and
support programmes.

“Our key findings related primarily to the need to:

We have identified improvements, for example, in the extent of
challenge of management by audit teams in respect of the
estimates used for model testing. This was identified as a key
finding last year.

Improve the evaluation and challenge of management’s key
assumptions of impairment assessments of goodwill and other
assets.

•

Enhance the consistency of group audit teams’ oversight of
component audit teams.

Page 179

•

•

Strengthen the effectiveness and consistency of the testing of
revenue.“

We also identified good practice in a number of areas of the audits
we reviewed (including robust procedures relating to going concern
and evidence to support the challenge of management in areas of
key judgement) and in the firm-wide procedures (including
establishing a centre of excellence focused on credit for banking
audits to encourage the consistent application of the firm’s
methodology and guidance).“

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

37

Our approach to quality
AQR team report and findings
Improve the evaluation and challenge of management’s key assumptions of impairment assessments of goodwill and
other assets
How we have addressed this area as a firm

•

To respond to the poor quality and untimely preparation of
information by the company for audit, we expect, where
appropriate, to increase the communication with
management and those charged with governance so that
there are clearer expectations in respect of the quality of
information prepared for audit.

•

We have updated our impairment template memo to reflect
the most recent inspection findings we will develop
additional training materials on hot topics and areas of
regulatory focus, for example, guidance to assist in the
challenge of cash flow assumptions and cost reduction
initiatives.

•

We also developed a new template to support teams in
auditing accounting estimates in response to the
requirements of ISA (UK) 540 revised ‘Auditing Accounting
Estimates & Related Disclosures’.

To address this finding, we have done, or plan, the following:
We refreshed our Impairment Centre of Excellence (“COE”) to establish
clear partner leadership and introduced frequent communication
touchpoints to share best practice, hot topics and technical updates.

•

We performed a risk focused strategic allocation of impairment
specialists for a selection of December 2020 audit engagements, taking
into account industry knowledge and experience. Going forward we will
seek to involve the EQCR partner to determine whether the allocated
specialist should have industry knowledge or whether generalist
knowledge would provide an enhanced independent challenge to an
industry focused engagement team.

Page 180

•

•

We will update our impairment guidance notes and consultation
document to include specific risk criteria which require further
discussion with a panel of specialists, including, but not limited to,
where the audit team develop their own model or where cashflow
forecasts extend beyond a commonly used period.

•

The launch of the Digital Blueprint project management tool will assist
teams in prioritising their time across all areas of the audit.

•

We will hold workshops with our partners and directors to bring to life
the common causes that have led to FRC findings and to ensure
greater consistency in expectations in respect of the expected depth of
review.

•

We have introduced a new coaching program to support the
development of primary reviewing skills and to identify any reviewing
skills gaps which need addressing.

How we addressed this area in our audit
•

We have identified the impairment of the long term debtors
as an area of audit focus and we will obtain and challenge
managements assessment over the recoverability of the
balances.

•

We will review the key estimates in the financial statements
as part of our planning procedures and ensure we complete
all the required documentation relating to ISA 540.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

38

Value for Money deadline extension
Letter to the Audit Committee highlighting Value for Money deadline
extension
Dear Audit Committee
The National Audit Office issued guidance to auditors on 16 April 2021 setting out a revised timetable for completion of
work on arrangements to secure value for money. This revised timetable reflected the impact of the ongoing pandemic on
preparers and auditors of accounts. That guidance, established that the Auditor’s Annual Report should be published
within three months of the signing of the Audit Opinion. Therefore we have not yet issued our Auditor’s Annual
Report. Under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice, we are required to provide this letter setting out the reasons for the
Auditor’s Annual Report not being issued by 30 September 2021.
Yours faithfully

Page 181

Nicola Wright
Audit Partner

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

39

Page 182
This document is confidential and it is not to be copied or made available to any other party. Deloitte LLP does not
accept any liability for use of or reliance on the contents of this document by any person save by the intended
recipient(s) to the extent agreed in a Deloitte LLP engagement contract.
If this document contains details of an arrangement that could result in a tax or National Insurance saving, no such
conditions of confidentiality apply to the details of that arrangement (for example, for the purpose of discussion with tax
authorities).
Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC303675 and its
registered office at 1 New Street Square, London, EC4A 3HQ, United Kingdom.
Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom affiliate of Deloitte NSE LLP, a member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a
UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL”). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and
independent entities. DTTL and Deloitte NSE LLP do not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about
to learn more about our global network of member firms.
© 2021 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

Agenda Item 11
Report to:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer:

Tracy Greenhalgh, Head of Audit and Risk

Date of Meeting:

30 September 2021

EXTERNAL ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL AUDIT
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To provide the outcome of the external assessment to determine whether the internal audit team
conforms to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

The Audit Committee is asked to note to content of the report.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

To ensure that the Council has effective internal audit processes in place.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

None.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The work of the internal audit team contributes to the achievement of all of the Council’s priorities.

6.0

Background information

6.1

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require that an external assessment of an
organisation’s internal audit function is carried out once every five years by a qualified, independent
assessor or assessment team. External assessments can be in the form of a full external assessment,
or a self-assessment with independent external validation.

6.2

An independent external validation process was used for this assessment as approved by the
Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) and Audit Committee in June 2019. The Council’s internal audit
team carried out a self-assessment of compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
which was reported to CLT and Audit Committee in 2020 prior to the external validation taking place
in June/July 2021.

Page 183

6.3

Overall it has been identified that the Council’s internal audit team continues to conform to the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards with no significant recommendations for improvement made.

6.4

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 11(a) – External Assessment of Internal Audit

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

All work has been delivered within the agreed budget for Audit and Risk Services.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

All principal local authorities and other relevant bodies subject to the Accounts and Audit (England)
Regulations 2015 (amended), the Accounts and Audit (Wales) regulations 2005, section 95 of the
Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the Amendment to the Local Government (Accounts and
Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006 must make provision for internal audit in accordance with
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) as well as the (CIPFA) Local Government Application
Note.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

The assessment has identified that the internal audit service is effectively delivering a risk based
internal audit service.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

The outcome of the external assessment has been considered in terms of any impacts on equality and
it is not felt that the proposed recommendations would result in direct/indirect discrimination. The
report has also been assessed according to the three criteria of the Public Sector Duty. The proposal
will not adversely affect our responsibility to tackle discrimination, promote equality of opportunity,
and support greater community cohesion.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

None.

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

None.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

Page 184

No

APPENDIX 11(a)

BLACKPOOL BOROUGH COUNCIL

PEER REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT AGAINST THE UK
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS

AUGUST 2021

Review Team
Mark Beard, Head of Audit and Investigations, Hyndburn Borough
Council
Jo Billington, Head of Governance and Business Support (also Chief
Internal Auditor), Wyre Borough Council
Assessment Dates:

22 – 25 June 2021 & 6th July 2021

Final Report Issued: 23 August 2021

Page 185

1

Introduction

1.1

All principal local authorities and other relevant bodies subject to the Accounts
and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 (amended), the Accounts and Audit
(Wales) regulations 2005, section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973 and the Amendment to the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006 must make provision for internal audit in
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) as well as
the (CIPFA) Local Government Application Note.

1.2

A professional, independent and objective internal audit service is one of the
key elements of good governance in local government.

1.3

The PSIAS require that an external assessment of an organisation’s internal
audit function is carried out once every five years by a qualified, independent
assessor or assessment team from outside of the organisation. External
assessments can be in the form of a full external assessment, or a selfassessment with independent external validation.

1.4

The Lancashire Districts Chief Auditor Group (LDCAG) has established a ‘peerreview’ process that is managed and operated by the constituent authorities.
This process addresses the requirement of external assessment by ‘selfassessment with independent external validation’ and this report presents the
summary findings of the review carried out on behalf of Blackpool Borough
Council.

1.5

“An independent assessor or assessment team” means not having either a real
or an apparent conflict of interest and not being a part of, or under the control
of, the organisation to which the internal audit activity belongs.” This review has
been carried out by the Heads of Internal Audit at Hyndburn and Wyre Borough
Councils. Their ‘pen pictures’, outlining background experience and
qualifications, are included at Appendix A.

2

Approach/Methodology

2.1

The LDCAG has agreed a detailed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) that
outlines the broad methodology for the conduct of this review. A copy of the
MoU is available upon request. However, in summary, the key elements of the
process are:


The peer review is undertaken in three stages: pre-review; on-site review;
post-review and covers audit activity during the period covered in the latest
Head of Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion. For this review the onsite part has been carried out remotely via Microsoft Teams due to the
Covid19 restrictions. The Internal Audit Annual Report for the year ending
2020/21 has been considered and the time scale is from 1st April 2020 to
31st March 2021, although evidence demonstrating key points or aspects of
the Standards has been considered from examples relating to earlier
financial years where necessary.

Page |2
External Peer Review of Blackpool Borough Council Internal Audit Service – June / July 2021

Page 186











Blackpool Borough Council has completed and shared its self-evaluation
of the Internal Audit service together with any relevant supporting
evidence/documentation in advance of on-site (via Teams) review
commencement. The LDCAG has agreed that the self-assessment will
use the CIPFA Local Government Application Note (LGAN)
questionnaire. Typically, supporting evidence will include the Internal
Audit Plan and Charter, The Head of Internal Audit Annual Report and
Opinion, Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and examples
of final audit reports.
To support what would have been the on-site review, a customer survey
was carried out via Survey Monkey which was issued to key personnel
within Blackpool Borough Council.
The review itself comprised a combination of desktop evaluation and a
series of meetings via Teams which equates to what would normally be
the ‘on-site’ review.
The review cannot reasonably consider all elements of the LGAN selfassessment and the review team used the ‘desktop’ period to determine
strengths, weaknesses and subsequent key lines of enquiry in order that
the review itself is risk-based, timely and adds real value. Blackpool
Borough Council’s Internal Audit Team has been assessed against the
three broad themes of: Purpose and Positioning; Structure and
Resources; and Audit Execution. Impact is considered an overarching
theme within these areas.
Upon conclusion, the Review team offers a ‘true and fair’ judgement and
each Authority will be appraised as Conforms, Partially Conforms or
Does Not Conform against each thematic area of the LGAN, from which
an aggregation of the three themed scores gives an overall Authority
score.

3

Summary Findings

3.1

Following a detailed examination process, the review team has concluded the
following judgements:

Area of Focus

Judgement

Purpose & Positioning

Conforms

Structure & Resources

Conforms

Audit Execution

Conforms

Overall Judgement: Conforms

Page |3
External Peer Review of Blackpool Borough Council Internal Audit Service – June / July 2021

Page 187

Assessment against the individual elements of each area of focus is included
in the table at Appendix B.
Overall Opinion
3.2

Overall the Peer Review was an extremely positive exercise with feedback
from all interviewees mirroring a consistent view that the Internal Audit Team,
in particular the Head of Audit and Risk, is seen as a key strategic partner
within the Organisation. It is clear the Audit Service is a highly valued service
offering sound, subjective and independent advice across the organisation.
The auditors were reported by all interviewees as experienced and
knowledgeable in the work they perform and it is clear that the Audit Team
have evolved, particularly over the last few years and significant
improvements have been made in their approach under the management and
guidance of the Head of Audit and Risk. Owing to the trust and abilities of the
Head of Audit and Risk, over recent years she has taken on a number of
different service responsibilities and whilst this demonstrates the confidence
the organisation places in her, it has led to pressures within the Internal Audit
Team itself. It is acknowledged that a recent restructure was implemented to
address this however the restructure is in its infancy and further development
of key audit staff is still required to be fully effective.

3.3

All evidence provided supporting the PSIAS Self-Assessment was well
organised, detailed and provided a clear audit trial.

3.4

The peer review only identified 7 points for consideration into the service’s
QAIP (Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme) of which 2 had been
carried forward from the previous peer review in 2016.

Last Peer Review (2016)
3.5

The Peer Review Team considered the 10 recommendations arising from the
previous peer review carried out in 2016. A number of recommendations were
in relation to carrying out and the reporting of Consultancy Engagements. It
was identified that no consultancy work (other than that of the wholly owned
companies) had been carried out during the period examined, therefore these
earlier recommendations could not be considered as part of this review.
However, it is clear from examination of core audit documents e.g. the Internal
Audit Strategy, that procedures / working practices have been updated to
address the issues raised around consultancy working.

3.6

Two recommendations were still found to be outstanding. These relate to
obtaining formal feedback from Chair of Audit Committee regarding the
performance of the Head of Audit and Risk and the requirement for audit staff

Page |4
External Peer Review of Blackpool Borough Council Internal Audit Service – June / July 2021

Page 188

to formally acknowledge acceptance of the Internal Audit Code of Ethics
periodically. Both of these issues have been referred to below
3.7

Significant Observations (i.e. leading to a ‘does not conform’ judgement)
There are no significant observations

3.8

Minor Observations (i.e. areas for improvement/development, minor elements
of non-conformance, gaps in ‘good practice’ statement)
The minor observations are detailed in 3.8.1 to 3.8.7 below.
Purpose and Positioning

3.8.1 Whilst it was clear to the Peer Review Team that a collaborative approach is in
place for the preparation of the Risk Based Internal Audit Plan which includes
involvement from all Directors, Chief Officers and Managers it was reported to
the Peer Review Team by the Head of Audit and Risk that often the risks areas
identified to be audited exceeds resources available. In order to arrive at an
achievable Annual Internal Audit Plan to ultimately deliver an Annual Audit
Opinion, the risks need to be condensed to match available resources. It was
found that this is more a ‘thought process’ rather than a clear documented
process as described in PSIAS standard 2010.
3.8.2 It was identified that whilst a recent meeting had taken place between the
Council’s External Auditors (Deliotte UK), s151 Office, Chair of Audit Committee
and the Head of Audit and Risk, no regular liaison meetings have taken place
since appointed as Blackpool Borough Council’s External Auditors in
accordance with the current Public Sector Audit Appointments contract. Whilst
it has been agreed that going forward regular liaison meetings will take place
which is in accordance with PSIAS standard 2050, at the point of writing this
report these have yet to be diarised.
3.8.3 The Head of Audit and Risk confirmed that whilst informal discussions take
place between the s151 Officer and the Chair of Audit Committee in respect of
her performance this is not documented contrary to PSIAS standard 1110.

Structure & Resources
3.8.4 The Peer Review Team identified there was a very high level of reliance on the
Head of Audit and Risk which creates a potential risk to the organisation, in
addition to her audit role and responsibilities she is the lead on Risk
Management, Insurance, Counter Fraud, Health and Safety, Emergency
Planning, Business Continuity, Equality and Diversity and Trade Union
Management Support. A recent restructure within the Audit Team was
implemented to address Team pressures, allow for succession planning and
ensure service continuity. Whilst it is acknowledged that some responsibilities
had begun to transfer to the two new Senior Auditor posts, a number of the
Page |5
External Peer Review of Blackpool Borough Council Internal Audit Service – June / July 2021

Page 189

interviewees felt that this had not progressed as quickly as it could have done
and the pressures on the Head of Audit and Risk were still apparent. This, in
part, is due to the role that the Head of Audit and Risk has had in the pandemic
response which has reduced time available for developing the internal audit
team. Resourcing issues in the team have also had an impact. This links back
to PSIAS standard 1220.
3.8.5 Following the restructure, 2 Senior Auditors were created in place of an Audit
Manager. Whilst both of these Senior Auditors have demonstrated the ability to
effectively carry out their roles particularly over the last 12 months when
frequently deputising for the Head of Audit and Risk, it is acknowledged that
one of the Senior Auditors does not hold the full certified audit qualification. If
this Senior Auditor is to take on responsibility of the Audit Committees for the
wholly owned Companies, achieving this qualification should be a priority. This
links back to PSIAS standard 1200.

Audit Execution
3.8.6 The Peer Review Team found that whilst a detailed Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme (QAIP) was in place and regularly reviewed it was
not referred to / reported as part of the Annual Internal Audit Report and Opinion
as required by the PSIAS standard 1320 Reporting on the Quality Assurance
and Improvement Programme.

Other Area for Consideration
3.8.7 The previous Peer Review in 2016 highlighted that staff had not formally
acknowledged acceptance of the Internal Audit Code of Ethics periodically.
Whilst it is acknowledged that this is not a requirement of the PSAIS it is
considered best practice to ensure all audit staff are aware of the expected
attitudes and behaviours. The Head of Audit and Risk confirmed that no
periodic acceptance had been completed for 2019/20 owing to the ongoing
pandemic.

PSIAS Action Table
3.8.8 This details suggested actions to improve the service, its status or impact and
quality of the service provided. The points raised in 3.8.1 to 3.8.7 above are
contained in this action table at Appendix C.

Thankyou
3.9

The Peer Review Team would like to express their thanks to Management,
Chair of Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Team at Blackpool Borough
Council for all the help afforded to the Peer Review Team during the course of
the review.

Page |6
External Peer Review of Blackpool Borough Council Internal Audit Service – June / July 2021

Page 190

Appendix A
Review Team

Mark Beard
Mark has been Head of Audit and Investigations at Hyndburn Borough Council for 18
years but has over 30 years Audit experience. He has a wealth of experience in the
management and operation of internal audit in district councils and is a chartered
member of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors. His expertise in counter fraud
is well respected in the Lancashire District Chief Audit Group.

Jo Billington
Jo has been Head of Audit at Wyre Borough Council for 12 years, however has over
18 years Audit experience. She recently ran a shared audit service and also
manages a number of other services which include Insurance, Elections, Democratic
Services, Legal and Human Resources. She is a chartered member of the Chartered
Institute of Internal Auditors and also holds a qualification in Internal Audit
Leadership.

Page |7
External Peer Review of Blackpool Borough Council Internal Audit Service – June / July 2021

Page 191

Appendix B

Ref

Does not
conform

PSIAS

Partially
conforms

Conforms

Detailed Assessment
Comments

Purpose & positioning
1000

 Remit

X

1000
1110
2010
2050






X
X
X
X

Reporting lines
Independence
Risk based plan
Other assurance
providers

See 3.8.3 above
See 3.8.1 above
See 3.8.2 above

Structure & resources
1200
1210

 Competencies
 Technical training &
development

X
X

See 3.8.5 above

1220
1230

 Resourcing
 Performance
management
 Knowledge
management

X
X

See 3.8.4 above

1230

X

Audit execution
1300

2000
2200
2300
2400
2450

 Quality Assurance &
Improvement
Programme
 Management of the
IA function
 Engagement
planning
 Engagement
delivery
 Reporting
 Overall opinion

Conforms

X

X

See 3.8.6 above

X
X
X
X
X

Partially
Conforms

Does Not
Conform

Page |8
External Peer Review of Blackpool Borough Council Internal Audit Service – June / July 2021

Page 192

Burnley Borough Council Internal Audit Service – PSIAS Action Table

Appendix C

The following points for consideration to develop the Audit Function arise from the review undertaken:

PSIAS Ref

Report ref
3.8.1

2010
Planning

Page 193

3.8.2
2050
Co-ordination

3.8.3
1110
Organisational
Independence
3.8.4
1220
Due Professional
Care

Point For Consideration

Responsible

Action

The Head of Audit and Risk should formally document Head of Audit and Risk The Annual Audit Plan
the risk based approach used to populate the annual
will be expanded to
Audit Plan.
set out in more detail
the risk based
approach used to
develop the plan.
Regular liaison meetings between Internal and Head of Audit and Risk The external auditor
External Audit should take place.
have been asked to
have liaison meetings
with the Head of Audit
and Risk going
forward.
The Chair of Audit Committee should provide Director of Resources This will be
feedback on the performance of the Head of Audit
considered as part of
and Risk.
the next IPA cycle.

The two new Senior Auditor posts need to be utilised Head of Audit and Risk
more effectively which will be achieved in part by the
transferal of some responsibilities from the Head of
Audit and Risk.

Page |9
External Peer Review of Blackpool Borough Council Internal Audit Service – June / July 2021

Once the current
issues with staff
shortages are
addressed
development plans

PSIAS Ref

Report ref

Responsible

Action

Page 194

will be implemented
for the two Senior
Auditors to enable this
to happen.
Head of Audit and Risk One senior auditor is
fully qualified. The
other is currently
studying towards the
required qualification.

3.8.5

It is recommended that both Senior Auditors hold full
Internal Audit qualifications particularly if they are to
take on audit responsibilities for the wholly owned
companies and / or other higher level responsibilities
currently held by the Head of Audit and Risk.

3.8.6

The Annual Internal Audit Report and Opinion should Head of Audit and Risk This will be included
make reference to the existence and review of the
in the 2021/22 report.
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme

3.8.7

In accordance with best practice, Audit Staff should
formally acknowledged acceptance of the Internal
Audit Code of Ethics periodically.

1200
Proficiency and
Due Professional
Care

1320
Reporting on the
Quality
Assurance and
Improvement
Programme

N/A
Outstanding 2016
Recommendation

Point For Consideration

P a g e | 10
External Peer Review of Blackpool Borough Council Internal Audit Service – June / July 2021

Senior Auditors

This will be
implemented in
2021/22.

AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTION TRACKER

Page 195

2

24.09.20

3

24.09.20

4

30.11.20

5

30.11.20

ACTION
That the impact of the newly
established joint working
arrangements with the
Department for Work and
Pensions be reported to the
Committee at a future
meeting.
To receive a 12 month update
on the Internal Audit
recommendations from the
review of advertising.
The Committee requested that
further assurance around the
governance framework for the
Council’s wholly owned
companies be provided to
Members via a briefing
session.
To receive an update on the
sub-risk ‘Lack of educational
attainment/appropriate
training to meet the needs of
the economy,’ after a period
of 12 months.
To invite the Leader to present
the Annual Governance
Statement to the Committee.

TARGET
DATE
March 2022

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER
Mrs Tracy
Greenhalgh, Head
of Audit and Risk

December
2021

Mr Philip Welsh,
Head of Tourism
and
Communications
Mr Mark Towers,
Director of
Governance and
Partnerships

April 2021

November
2021

Director of
Children’s Services

September
2021

Mr Mark Towers,
Director of
Governance and
Partnerships

UPDATE

RAG
RATING
Not yet
due

Not yet
due

Briefing session has been scheduled for Members
to take place November 2021.

Not yet
due

Invited to attend 30 September 2021 meeting.

Agenda Item 12

1

DATE OF
REQUEST
23.01.20

Page 196

ACTION

6

DATE OF
REQUEST
30.11.20

7

30.11.21

November
2021

8

30.11.20

9

21.01.21

To receive an update on the
Commissioner’s feedback in
relation to Children’s Social Care
at a future meeting of the
Committee.
To receive the results from the
CIPFA benchmarking exercise
at a future meeting of the
Committee.
To receive a progress report
on the local Voluntary
Community Faith Sector
(VCFS) accord.

10

21.01.21

TBC

11

25.03.21

To receive, in due course,
Deloitte’s detailed log of all
additional work and the
associated costs, with any
materially significant queries
identified.
The Committee agreed to
revisit the communications
strategy after a period of four
months to receive an update
on progress.

To receive an update report
on the cost analysis findings of
Traffic Regulations Orders at a
future meeting of the
Committee.

TARGET
DATE
November
2021

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER
Mr John
Blackledge,
Director of
Community and
Environmental
Services
Director of
Children’s Services

UPDATE

RAG
RATING
Not yet
due

Not yet
due

December
2021

Mrs Tracy
Greenhalgh, Head
of Audit and Risk

Not yet
due

December
2021

Mrs Chloe Pieri,
Community
Engagement and
Partnership
Manager
Ms Nicola Wright,
Deloitte

Not yet
due

December
2021

Mr Philip Welsh,
Head of Tourism
and
Communications

Not yet
due

Page 197

ACTION

12

DATE OF
REQUEST
29.04.21

13

29.04.21

That the Chair of the Audit
Committee give further
consideration as to the role of
the Committee in relation to
contract management and
procurement arrangements, in
conjunction with Mrs Tracy
Greenhalgh, Head of Audit and
Risk.

That follow-up of the Priority
Two and Priority Three
recommendations from the
internal audit review of the
household waste recycling
centre be added to the Audit
Committee’s plan.

TARGET
DATE
December
2021

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER
Mrs Tracy
Greenhalgh, Head
of Audit and Risk

TBC

Mrs Tracy
Greenhalgh, Head
of Audit and Risk

UPDATE

RAG
RATING

This page is intentionally left blank

